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“This vear we have delivered a solid performance
across the Group. Our Operational Excellence
Programme is progressing well with pos tive
results achieved. Major erowth programmes
continue to progress, underpinning mediurm

term prospects.”

Michzel Slowe s
Group Chief “xecutive
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Operating profit growh of 149 to 00 4m

Earnings per share™ inceased 25 ¢ to [29p
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Operatonal | xcellence Prrgramme deliverirg further
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Net debt of £8Cm reflected solic cash gereration across
the Group, offset by the investment i working <apital in
the Frersetics sesmen® and the normalisatinn of supplier
payment practices

Board recormmending a final dividend of 20p per ordinary share,
aiving a total dividend of 2.0o per ordinary shase (20146 | 3p)

Cide  baok at year end of £478m (2016:£593m . fall pairtl
due to FX and fulfilrne -t of la-ge 40mnwn contiacts in
Eneretics segment. £360r0 currently due as reverue in FY 18,
70 coverase of FY 8 tarpeted revenue

ACEOUNTING POLICIES

.
OTHER INFORMATION
i

Ta Find nut more visig
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2017 PERFORMANCE

REVENUE OPERATING PROFIT* ORDER BOOK
£547m  £554m £478m
(+15%) (+14%) (-19%)
Significant growth in Improverment reflects site Targeted 2018 revenue
Energetics segment consolidations and focus on approxirately 70% covered
operational performance by orders in hand
PROGRESS SAFETY 2018 OUTLOOK
Operational momenturn of Rernains our first priority, no Tangible and sustained

H2 2016 continued and
customer deliveries made
to plan

injuries resutting from
energetic incidents in year

improvement in operational
performance, combined with
our Programs of Record
underpin short and medium-
term confidence in cur
business

* References 10 operating profit and earrings per snare throughout his strategie report are to underlying measures, sea note 3 far a reconciliation to statutory measures
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Overview

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

2017 PERFORMANCE

In 2817 the Group has focused on maintaining
and developing a safe and sustainable business
and by investing in our infrastructure, peopie
and technology, we are creating opportunities
ta deliver future growth.

Designed w promote collaboration across the
Group and deliver tangible improvements in
safety, praductivity. profitability and working
capital, the Operatignal Excellence Programme
was established during the year and s already
delivering benefits. Safery maturity, engineering
raturity and LEAN roll out is ongoing, with these
workstreams, combined with the enhancerment
of our procurement function, expected to deliver
financsal returns in 2018 and beyond.

Historically, Chemring operated in an
environment where the individual business Jnits
largely operated in isolation from one anather.
Perhaps the most rewarding aspect therefore,
has breen the way In which the programme has
heen embraced across the entire Group and a
cuhture of close collaboration is being
established. While stll i its early stages, che
Programme is already delivering benefits with
best practice being shared and the Group
working towards a commoh purpose -
engineering critical salutions that protect and
safeguard in an uncertain world.

Other initiatives designed to underpin future
efficiency have also delivered solid progress.
Site consolidation activities have continued to
plan with the closure of the second
countermeasures manufacturing facility in
Philadelphia completed this year, as wel! as
minar site closures in Charloteesville and
Tallahassee. The ¢losure of the California facilivy
remains on wack for completion in 2018.

02

2017 has seen the Group build upon many of
the efforts of previous years and deliver a
strong and consistent performance across al
operational and functional areas.

Carl-Peter Forster
Charrmar

The Group has maintained its position and
investment in the US Programs of Record, all of
which are progressing positively. Extensive trials
and development effort continue on the Husky
Mounted Detection System ("HMDS")
counter-lED program, with fleet refurbishment
and expansion contracts antiopated in 2018,
Tendering activity for future stages of the Next
Generation Chemical Detector (*NGCD")
program is ongoing, with contract awards
anticipated in 2018, The Joint Biotogical Tactical
Detection System {*|BTDS") program has
progressed through Critical Design Review and
now moves INto customer testing prior to
maving into production phases. Success on
these programs remains a key driver of the
Group's future growth.

Chemring's trading environment started to
show signs of recovery in 2017, particutarly in
the dominant US market, with this recovery
coinciding with improved operational
performance and a strengthened balance sheet.
Despite continued geopelitical instability, this
has enabled the Group to deliver 2 solid set of
resules in 2017 and it is well positioned to
capitalise on future opportunities.

Reverue increased 15% o £547.5m

(2016: £477.tm) and undertying operating profit
increased |4% to £55.4m (2016: £48.5m) and it
was pleasing to see an improvement in the first
half / second half split, as operational
performance became more consistent. The
dosing order book af £478.0m (2016: £392 9m)
provides good visibilicy of 2018 revenue,
particularfy in the Countermeasures segment
which saw strong order intake in the second half
of the year

Operating profit*

£55.4m

(2016: £48.5m)

-ror meore 'aformation see page 9

STRATEGY

The Group's strategy is to be a market leader in
our chosen niche markerts, with operationaily
excellent execution, delivering better than
average margins.

We are clearly at the start of the journey 1o
deliver this vision. In 2 number of our markets
we are either market leader, or one of the
market leaders. In others we have the
opportunity to take a significant share through
securing long-term Programs of Record. The
Operational Excetlence Programme is focused
an production efficiencies, waste reduction,
more efficient working capital management and
delivering margin improvement through
CORTiMUOUS improvement in operational
performance and execution.

SAFETY

Safety underpins all that we do and, as always,
remaing an absolute priority for the Group. As a
Board we continue to drive investment and
improvernent in this area white fostering 2
culture of safety awareness. While there is
never room for complacency, it was pleasing to
note that there were ho serious injuries
sustained by any emaloyee during the year. The
one energetic incident of note could have been
more serious were it not for the investment
made in recent years in automation and
removing employees from harm's way.

EMPLOYEES

The Board has visited several sites throughout
the year, spending time at each with a number of
aur employees. We are continualfy mpressed
by the knowledge and expertise of our entire
workforce, and the commitment they show in
meeting the needs of our customers,



In particular, in 2017 our employees have risen
to the chaltenge of embracing the Operational
Excellence Programme and on behalf of the
Board i thank them for their high level of
commitment and enthusiasm.

DIVIDENDS

The Board is recommending a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 October 2017
of 2.0p (2016: 1.3p) per ardinary share.

With the interim dividend of | .Dp per share
{2016: nil}, this results in a total divideng of
3.0p (2016: 1.3p) per ordinary share.

If approved. the final dividend will be paid on
20 April 2018 to shareholders on the register
on & Aprit 2018,

In accordance with accounting standards, this
final dividend has not been recorded as a Hability
as at 31 Ccrober 2017,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Andrew Lewis joined the Group on 9 Jahuary
1017 and was appointed ta the Board as Group
Finance Director on 19 jJanuary 2017, Andrew
was previously the Group Finance Director of
Avan Rubber p.i.c.

The membership of the Group’s Board has
substantially changed in recent years and this
fresh perspective and experience is an invaluable
asset as we pasition the Group w capitalise on
the opportunities for future growth.

CURRENT TRADING

AND OUTLOOCK

Trading since the start of 2018 has been in fine
with expectations across ali businesses.

‘While we continue to work towards a more
balanced delivery of revenue and profit, the
expected profile of orders, revenue and margins
in 2018, combined with routine seasonality
within the business, means that the Group

again expacts to reflect a significant second-half
weighting to trading performance.

The order book as at 31 October 2017 was
£478.0m, of which £360.9m is currendy
expected to be recognised as revenue in 2018,

The order book at 3|1 December 2017 was
£453.8m.

The Board's expectations for the Group’s 2018
performance remain unchanged, based on
current foreigh exchange rates.

Carl-Peter Forster
Chairman
19 January 2018
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Strategic report

BUSINESS MODEL

QOur core purpose is to engineer critical
solutions that protect and safeguard in an

uncertain world.

I .5mi||ion

flares produced in 2017

88%

of NATO combat aircraft use
our flares

30

countries using our Sensors 1o
detect and protect

60

devices on Mars Rover
Programme

04

: WHAT WE OFFER

Qur purpose underpins everything we do across ail our business
segments — Countermeasures, Sensors and Energetics.

COUNTERMEASURES

Qur countermeasures protect aircraft and ships
from guided missile attack by decoying the
threat away from the platform they are
protecting. Our businesses combine a deep

. understanding of platform signatures, missile

seekers and chemical formulations to develop
new decoys against new threats. Cur factories
are designed to protect our workforee from the
potentially hazardous materials invoived and te
produce the large volumes of flares required to
support military training and operations.

= More than 50% share of gtobal market

« Sole supplier of F-35 and Typhoon flares

SENSORS
Our sensors protect people, piatforms and
information by detecting threats with a very high
degree of confidence. Qur targets include
explosive, chemical, biclogical, radio and cyber
threats, which are all becoming more complex,
driving a constant need to engineer improved
technological solutions to meet customer needs.
« Building export success — over 200 HMDS
systems delivered and used by six countries;
150 Resalve Electronic Warfare systems
delivered and used by |2 countries
* Developing next generation counter-1ED,
piclogical and chemical sensors for three
US Programs of Record

ENERGETICS
Our energetic materials, components and
products harness the ability of energetic ’

materials to very rapidly release energy o
perfarm any of a number of functions; from
propelling an aircraft ejection seat to illuminating
a battlefield at night. We are expert at the full
range of technical disciplines needed to safely

partfolio

~ design, develop, test and manufacture our
1 products from our dedicated energetics sites. ’

different energeuc components in

Our components businesses operate batch

production to deliver a very wide variety of cartridge products delivered per weaek

products; aur products businesses can scale up

to deliver very farge volumes in batch or

continuous production,

= Sole supplier of NASA Standard Initiator

+ Components on every single Marzin-Baker
ejection seat




WHERE WE OPERATE

We operate in four hame markets in the UK, US, Australia and
Norway, and export our products and services around the world.

QUR LOCATIONS

OUR BUSINESSES
Our businesses operate in the UK, J5, Australia
and Morway.

UK

Chemring Countermeasures UK
develops and manufactures air and naval
countermeasures

Chemring Technology Sclutions
develaps C-iED and EW products

Roke provides contract engineering services
Chemring Energetics UK manufactures
energetic components

Chemvring Defence LK supplies milicary
pyrotechmcs

usA

Chemring Countermeasures USA
operates from two sites producing Special
Material Decoys (Philadelphia} and
conventional flares (Tennessee)
Chemring Sensors &k Electronic
Systems develops sensors to detect [ED,
chemical and biclogical threats
Chemring Energetic Devices
manufactures aircraft, missile and space
components

Chemring Ordnance manufactures
ammunition and military pyrotechnics

AUSTRALIA

+ Chermring Australia manufactures
countermeasures and pyrotechnics
and supports other Group products
in the region

NORWAY
* Chemring Nobel synthesises high-
quality explosive materials

OUR CUSTOMERS

Qur customers are national defence and
security agencies, and defence prime
contractors, Qur home markets in the UK,
US, Awustralia and Norway represent some
of the most demanding users in the world,
with well-funded militaries and international
credibility which helps achieve export sales.

= 71% of Group sales are to our businesses’

home markets

= The US DoD is our largest customer
at 36% of Group sales

*  No other customer represents more
than 10% of Group sales

= UK MOD represents less than 5%
of revenues

84%

of Group szles outside the UK

/1%

of Group saies ta home
markets

36%

of Group sales to US DoD

60

countries bought Chemring
products and services last
year

05
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Strategic report

BUSINESS MODEL conTinuED
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Operational Excellence —
paying for itself

Our Operational Excellence
Programme is targeted at several
aspects of the business, but
particularly focuses on eliminating
non-conformance in manufacturing
operations. This delivers significant
returns, and also benefits from a
multiplier effect, as improved
processes deliver higher quality, less
re-work, increased capacity, improved
cycle tirme, faster and more
predictable deliveries to customers,
reduced working capital and
improved cash flow. This virtuous
circle is delivering financial payback in
weeks or months, releasing cash for
further reinvestment.

¥

HOW WE MAKE MONEY

We invest in advanced technology and manufacturing capability to meet
customers' needs safely, reliably and on time. Efficient operations deliver
strong cash generation, reward shareholders and enable reinvestment in

the business.

IMVYESTMENT IN TECHNOLOGY
AND MANUFACTURING

Chemring is an engireering and manufacturing
group — our solutiohs, frequentdy deployed in
harm's way, require extensive development,
qualification and testing to ensure that they
work every time, Qur investments secure our
products in a competitive marketplace, and
ensure that our factories are safe and efficient.

WIN ORDERS

We operate in niches within the defence and
security market, and compete for the majority
of our business. Qur technology investment is
critical to deliver winning products throughout
the business, particularly in the Sensors segment
where evolution of threats and competitors’
technologies drive a need to constantly upgrade
and innovate. We win arders based on our
extensive customer relationships, and
maintaining compelling value propasitions in all
the solutions we offer.

REVENUE

The specialist hature of our products mean
that almost all our cutput is built to order.
Our manufacturing operations are scaled and
scoped to meet expected levels of customer
demand safely and reliably. Our investments
in manufacturing are targeted to secure a safe
operating environment for aur work-force,
deliver efficient cperations and build a
momentutn af continuous improvement
throughout the business, Efficient operations
minimise operational cyde-time from order 1o
delivery, which in turn secures strong cash
conversion.

122%

of underlying operating profit converted to
cash from underlying operations over the last
three years

CASH FLOW

We have a good record of cash conversion
delivering £168.9m of cash from underlying
operations over the last three years,

REINVESTMENT

Our cash flow from operations underpins our
ability to reinvest 1o deliver to our customers
leading-edge solutions from safe and efficient
operations. Over the last three years, we have
investad £43 8m in tachnology development and
£32.0m in upgraded facilities.

SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

The cash generated from operations allows

us to deliver fair shareholder returns whilst
continying ta secure the future prosperity

of the Group. Over the last three years we
have paid £i4.3m to our shareholders and our
capital allocation policy should continue to
share the benefits of our improving profitability
in the future.



HOW WE SET CURSELVES APART

Chemring is characterised by a willingness to do hard things well, to
respond to custormer needs, and to invest to sustain its future and protect

its workforce.

Key Differentiators

SAFETY

OCur factories, particularly in Countermeasures
znd Energetics, are handling dangerous
materials in potentially lethal quantities.
Through constant, critical self-assessment we
aim to operate the safest factories in our
industry,

INVESTMENT

IN INFRASTRUCTURE

In addiion to mamtaining safe operations,

we inteiligently sustain investment in our
manufacturing operations to secure reliable
product delivery and quality. Where
appropriate, we have investad 1o consolidate
two or more operations onte a single upgraded
site, delivering improved product quality,
reduced overhead costs and enhanced safety.

RESPONSIVENESS

The ongoing conflices of recent years have
created many new operational threats. As these
threats emerge, our customers urgently require
solutions to protect people and save lives. From
developing a new detector to building a new
production line to defiver thousands of flares a
week, we respond quickly, intelligently and
vigorously.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
Intellectual property (“IP") is critical throughout
our business, whether itis embedded ina
patented software algorithm or the know-how
associated with manufacturing a critical
component of a satellite deployment
mechanism. We carefully nurture and protect
our IP? through technology investment, paterts
and detailed manufacturing process
understanding, Many of cur products are
manufactured only every two or three years, sa
understanding, maintaining and documenting all
the critical features, parameters and processes
are key to ensuring consistent defivery.

CUSTOMER DELIVERY

We operate with some of the world's most
techrically demanding customers, who
reasonably expect cur advanced technology
solutions on fme and to the required quality.
Frequently, operatianal capability for a new
aireraft ar ship can only be achieved with a
stock-pile of our consumables to protect the
fleetin the event of 2 war, so our factories also
need 1o deliver large volumes of product, We
constantly strive 1o meet 2ll our customers’
expectations from placing an order to
delivering the fast unit of a production run,
and supporting products in the field. even in
war-zones where our users are operating.

INTERNATIONAL FOOTPRINT
Cur facifities in the U5, Europe and Auscralia
provide local access to our home market
customers whao lead the definition of the
requirements for our next-generation
praoducts. Developing products to meet these
demanding requirements creates a range of
competitive products, which we can export
around the world. Combining technologies
from different requirements can leap-frog
competitors to create a sustained lead in our
markets — for example, we are wransferring
UK developed capabilities in countermeasures
and |ED detection to the US, providing the
world’s largest defence market with new
capabilities which it did not have before.

OUR PEOPLE

From building relationships to understanding
customers’ complex needs, to developing
advanced technologies and delivering
solutions, our people are critical at every step.
We respact the extensive experience residing
in most of our businesses, whilst nurturing
innovation, creativity and talent to develop the
Group for the future.

Safety is lead by the Group Chief
Executive with Group resources and
an Operational Excellence work-
stream dedicated to it

Track record of investment in
remote operations — £26.9m
invested in capital equipment over
the last three years

£43.8m invested in R&D over the
last three years

179 patents in Countermeasures,
Sensors and Energetics

Only multi-national
countermeasures supplier in the
world

Strong engineering capability with
over 500 graduate engineers in the
Group
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Strategic report

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

Deliverirg performance and growth

HEALTH AND SAFETY

We continua ta strive to be the world's best with
regards to safety, and canstantly focus on enhancing
our operadons to remove hazards wherever
possible. Qur target is to ensure that every day on
every site every employee is operating in a safe
and healthy environment. As always, safety
remains the Group's first priority and the Group
conginues to drive improvement in this area,

Lost dime injury (“LTi") performance continues
to reflect world best practice, and although cur
lost ime injury rate of 0,55 was slightly above
2016 tevels, ail incidents were minor in nature,
none resulted from energetic incidents, and
none required hospitalisation. We cantinue
our four pronged approach to safety; process
improvement, capital investment, enhanced
leadership engagement and cultural improvement;
with the cultural aspects of safety now becoming
increasingly critical.

During the year the Group had only one energetic
incident of note, an intiation within our primary
explosives manufacturing facility in Scotfand,

This facility is a fully automated remote
operation, and subsequent to the initiation all
safety systems operated as designed and there
was na exposure of personnel to hazard. The
facility was quickly brought back into operation,
with no operational or financial impact.

STRATEGY

Over 2017 the Group has seen a slight
improvement across the bulk of its end markets,
with the US marker, in particular, emerging from
along period of dedline. Indications are that
global growth in our markets will be sustained at
around 3% per annum, afthough in certain niches
growth is likely ta be stranger, The exception to
this is the UK market, where exchange rate
pressures and major platform acquisitions are
constraining ather expenditure, however it
should be noted that the MOD represents less

08

In 2017 the Group continued to build on its |
improved performance of recent years, delivering

strong results that exceeded expectations from both

a financial and operational performance perspective.

Significant progress has been made on the

Operational Excellence Programme, with tangible

sustainable results aiready delivered and further .
improvement in the pipeline. |

Michael Flowers
Group Chie!f bxecutive

than 5% of Group revenues. The Middle Eastern
market remains strong, although low oil

prices have resulted in requirements for some
produets reducing and new programmes and
procurements being delayed.

in 2017 the Board has refined the Group's

capital allocation pelicy to better reflect our
fundamental strategic vequirements, Paramount
to capital decisions is the need to maintain a
strong and robust balance sheet with appropriate
tevels of debt. it is recognised that organic
investment, particularly on ¢apital projects,

has been constrained ovar recent years, and
investment in our manufacturing base is a priority
that will increase in importance in future years.
The Group continues to actively pursue
acquisition appertunities, with our priority being
towards acquisitions in the Sensors segment,
particularly where we need further development
of our technological and market reach.

The Countermeasures segment strategy
continues to be one of strengthening our
waorlg-leading position through continuously
improving our technaological and aperational base
whilst warking closely with our customers in the
development of new selutions to meet emerging
threats. We continue to develop aur position an
the F-35 Joint Strike Fighter {"F-35") program,
with orders and deliveries for F-35 operatianal,
specral material, and craining flares increasing.
Investment in the segment will principally be
directed towards enhancement of current
facilities and capabilivies, with a significant

capital programme to transform our Tennessee
facility. We also see great opportwunity through
partnering with our customer base on future
technologicat developments, with collaborative
agreements having been concluded with our LK
and Australian customers in 2017,

Within Sensors, the focus continues to be on
expansion of capability and product portfolio in

the major operating niches of tactical electronic
warfare ("EW™), counter-IED and explosives
detection, chemical warfare detection and
biological warfare detection. The Sensors
segment s the Group’s principal area for R&D
invesumient, given the growth opportunities,
particularly in US Programs of Record.

The US Programs of Record remain the Group's
area of greatest strategic focus, and investment
will continue aver the coming years as these
programs reach critical points. In the coming
year we expect contracting decisions on the
Engineering and Manufacturing Development
("EMD") phases of NGCD, Low and Full Rate
Producton decisions on |[BTDS, and contractng
for fleet refurbishment, expansion and
technological refresh of the HMDS program.
Success on key elements of the programs is
cricical. The Group will establish a new project
and contracting organisation to respond to
emergent US Departrent of Defense ("US
DoD") and related area requirements in
complementary technology areas to those

of gur major programs that are increasingly
being contracted for under Indefinite Delivery /
Indefinice Quantity (“IDIQ") ur Other
Transaction Authority (“OTA") framework
contracts. From the technologies developed
through these programs, the Group intends to
broaden its product base and market reach,
seeking greater opportunities in adjacent markets
such as the Department of Homeland Security.

The Group will, over the next 24 manths,
develop our Next Generation Electronic
Woarfare System to replace the current Resolve
system which has been in global service for

the pass six years. This new capabiity is being
developed in concert with emerging customer
needs, partcularly related to the convergence
of requirements from the traditional electranic
warfare and cyber threat areas. Capability

will also be broadened by partnering with



complementary companies 1o further grow this
very successful business area.

Roke’s histerical end markets were subdued in
2017 due 1o continued budgetary pressure fram
its largest government customer, yet despite this
the improving performance trend from 2016
continued. Investment at Roke shak continue to
focus an its people, to ensure their training and
development matches emergent market needs,
and organisational development to ensure we
can recruic and retain the right mix of staff in a
resource constrained market. Having
consolidated our positian in traditional markets,
we shall now laok to expand our offerings,
particularly in the cyber-security market, to
internangnal and commerdal customers.

The Energetics businesses continue to be
maraged in order to maximise market position
in their operating niches, maintain product
qualification, and ensure safe and effective
operations, The Group is consciously moving
away fram seeking 1o compete with low cost
competitars in commadity markets, focusing on
higher margin niches where there are significant
barriers to entry. These areas indude our UK
and US devices businesses, our high quality
energetic materiafs supply from Norway, and
more specialised ammunition and componentry
from our Florida facility. investment fucus will be
on maintaining organic capabilicy to ensure we
remain safe, our products remain current, and
our operations run as afficiently as possible.

OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

2017 was a maore balanced year, and although the
Group's earnings were stll significanty second
half weighted, the bafance improved from that
of prior years. This has enabfed more effective
production planning which is starting to defiver
more efficcent manufacturing operations.

Improvemaent in operational performance
continues to be driven by improvements in
consistency of production and improved
manufacturing yields across all sites.

This has been particularly evident at our US
countermeasures businesses, with signs that
improved delivery performance s leading to
increased market share starting to emerge.

From a more cansistent and appropriately scaled
manufacturing aperation, the Group's focus
becormes the driving out of cost and waste across
afl lines, delivering improved gross and operating
margins. Qur Operaticnal Excellence Programme
will drive this improvement.

Business restructuring and site consolidation has
been a key alement of the Group's focus aver
recent years, as we have sought to integrace
earfier acquisitions and more effectively align our
capacity and capabilives to market demand.
During 2017 we concluded the closure of our
second countermeasures manufacturing plant in
Philadelphia, with the closure of our California

facikty progressing 1o schedule, At year end only
a small number of activa contracts remain opan
ax California, with all likely to complete by mid
catendar year 2018. Quaiification of critical
products at Chicago has been successfully
completed; the new precision machining centre
is at initiai operating capability; and in 2018 we
shall conclude the commissioning of the Chicago
primary explosive handling capabilicy. This will
effectively conclude this consalidation effort,

These site consolidations resulted in a non-
underlying cost of £14.3m, the berefit of which
will be delivered in future years. A detailed
impairiment review of the Group's businesses has
also been completed, and, based upon current
conditions in the military and law enforcement
pyrotechnics market, an impairment charge

af £10.6m has been recognised against the
Chemring Defence UK business unit. Further
details of these and other non-underlying items
are in note 3 of the financial statements.

OPERATIONAL

EXCELLENCE PROGRAMME
Throughout the year the Operational Excellence
Programme has been the priority business
activity, aimed at enhancing, over a five year
programme, all aspects of the Group's
operations, Key aims of the programme are 1o
embed a high safety performance level and
culture, improve operating margins and reduce
working capital,

Work effort is concentrated in eight Group wide
excellence teams covering:

+ Safety performance

+ Manufacturing operations

+  Supply chain management

« Sales and marketing

- MNew product development

«  Business processes and systems

+ Production planning systems

» Commercial and contracting practice

Although much of the effortin 2017 has been
foundauonal, a number of tangible benefits have
already resulted. These include: margin
improvements being achieved in all segments
and across multiple lines and a Group operating
margin 0.6% above initial expectations; Lean
assessment toels developed and assessments
completed; safety maturity assessment tool
developed and assessments ongoing: and a
Greup-wide CRM system rolled out.

The total programme cost in 2017 was £2m
{underlying), with 2 Group wide net benefit of
approximately £3m and a gross benefit of £5m.
In future years the programme is expected

to cost approximately £2m per annum plus
additienal capital costs as identfied. All day-to-day
programme costs will continue to be classified
as underlying,

Specific work plans and objectives 1o be
actioned and dalivered ir 2018 have baen
developed for the Group, for each segment and
business unit, and sign:ficant production lines.
Key amongst these include:

+  Ongoing Lean implementation

» ERP enhancement znd integration with CRM

- Kilgore transformation programre

*  Norway systems development and capacity
enhancement

»  Development and roli out of consistent
production planning pracess across
manufacturing sites

As 2 Group our 2018 and longer-term
objectives for the Operational Excellence
Programme are threefold:

« Safety. In 2018 we aim to have no injuries
from energetic incidents and no life altering
injuries. By 2022, we aim to have removed
all operators from potential iethal exposura,
or reduced this exposure to As Low As
Reasonably Practicable (ALARP), delivered
an LTl rate sustained at below 0.5, nave no
injuries from energeric incidents, and have
no life altering injuries,

« Operating margin. Group margin to
Increase on a like for like basis, by 7Sbps in
2018 and by 300bps in 2022.

+ Working capital. In 2018 we lock 1o
reduce working capital by £{0m. By 2022
we will seek to reduce rotal working capital
from 74% to below 19% of revenue.

CONCLUSION
in 2017 the Group has performed strongly and
delivered a solid set of results.

Progression on US Pragrams of Record and the
critical F-35 countermeasures program has been
very positive, and we look forward to these
programs being strong contributors in future
years. The foundations of the Operational
Excelfence Programme have been laid with
initial tangible outcomes achieved. The Group
locks to this programme, our progression on
the LS Programs of Record, and a steadily
strengthening global market o deliver enhanced
oppartunities and returns in future years.

Michael Flowers
Group Chief Executive
18 january 2018

LIGL S NNUODY CNY [HGedd IVIINNY 2Td dNOYUD 9MINKWIHD



LI0L S-NMOD ONY _HOd3H TVNNKY 37 JNONSD SNINKIHD

Strategic report

OUR STRATEGY

OUR MARKETS

MARKET DRIVERS
Global defence spenrd is slowly recovering in
our markets.

This recovery 1s led by the US, which plans

0 increase its base budget spend by over

5% from 2017 1o 2018 and the Senate unusually
recommended a $26 billion increase 1o 2018's
original Presidential Budget Request, with
additional funding to several major programmes,
including an additional twenty F-35 aircraft.

In Europe, defence spending remains subdued
but stable. Only six countries (US, UK, Greece,
Estonia, Poland and Romania) meet their NATO
commitments to spend 2% of GOP on defence,
and the US rhetoric cantinues to drive members
1o rmeet this threshold. However the UK MQOD
Is struggling with major budget shortfalls, and we
have seen delays in order placement, although

it should be noted that the MOD represents

less than 5% of Group revenues. Spending on
cyber-security by our UK intelligence agency
customers is strong and demand for our services
is growing.

Australia, one of Chemring's other home
markers, expects to increase spending by about
6% in real terms over 20(7-2018. [t has declared a
ten-year plan to grow defence spending by over
B0% 1o maintain an approprizte response to
China’s increasingly capable forces in the region.

The Middle East defence market remains volatile
and unpredictable, with regional tensions running
high, but ol revenues still suppressed by refatively
low prices. Customers are continuing to fund
defence, but we are seeing delays in order
placement and payments as priorities are
continually shuffled.

P our sTRATEGY
|

KEY PRIORITIES

Qur strategy reflects the
current dynamics of cur
defence and security markets

SEGMENTS

!

RISKS

HOLM THE GROUND ALRFAOY WON

Qur short-term priority has been 10
deliver profft and cash, witha
particular forus on meeting planned
repayments of our private placement
laart nates from existing tank facilites
and cash resources. We have
delivered thig, with the first
repayment of £5lm in November
2017 {post year-end) and final
repayment of £63m planned in
Movember 2019.

This has been achievec by scaling the
businesses to match the current
demand and drving regular and
consistent defivery; our
Countermeasures and Energetics sites
end 1o be large, with significant fixed
cost, and our Sensors businesses
require a critical mass of engineering
resource to remam compettive.

rofl kil -1 ok ot

Against this backdrop. mainaining
aperational throughput by eliminating
dedays and non-conformance has been
a major effort, whether itis mixing
processes in Courttermeases,
compenent tolerancing in Energetes
or minimising un-bilable timem cur
contract engineering business.

This has been an earfy priority

far aur Group-wide Cperational
Excellence Programme, under

the “Manufacturing Operations”
workstream, and every business has
identified flagship improvement
grojects to deliver measured gains in
the next financial year.

sec pages 11 to 15

see pages 18 to 13




TRANSFORM QUR CAPABILITIES

Cur Operational Excellence Programme
(“GEP™) will systemacically upgrade

all our capabilities across the Group
through collaboration, sharing best
practice and, where appropriate,
bringing in specific expertse. [n addition
o our “Manufactring Operations”
workstream, we are covering:

= Safetry performance

*  Supply ehain management

= Sales and marketing

« New product development

« Business processes and systems

= Praducton planning systems

* Commercial and contracting
practice

All workstreams caver all businesses, but
certain segrnents wili focus more on
particular themes, outlined below,

Where we have identified systemic
weaknesses or pinch-points, we have
addressed these directly at a Group level.
For example, historic payment practices
have hampered our abikty to manage cur
supply chain strategfcally, so we have
deliberately invested in working capital 1o
improve this. In addition, we have
strengthened our commercial resources
and conducted Group-wide training to
reduce owr contractual risk exposure.

Finally, we are exploring how best ta
structure the Group to maximise
synergies within segrments whilst
eliminating irreievant activity berween
segments. Thus is at an early stage,
requinng sensitive engagement with
internal and external stakeholders, but it
15 2 kay imbative which we have resourced
centrally to pursue.

INVEST FOR GROWTH

We will invest in equipment,, faciibes and
product devalopment to deliver growth.
As 3 resudt of our position in the US
countermeasures rmarket, and strategic
rvestrments in sensors technology, we
are well placed on several major
pragrammes, mainly in the US,

These multi-year, mulsi-milon dollar
“Growth Programmes” underpin the
growth of the Group to the rmd-2020s,

and include:

+ F-35 countermeasures

. {8TDS
- NGCD
. HMDS

In: addition to these spexific US Programs
of Record, our UK Sensors businesses
face exciting oppartunities in
next-generaton electronic warfare,
cybet dectro-magnetic activity and
consulting and R&D for LIK agencies.

These programmes are the main
priorities for investment to ensure that
Chemning securas and maintains ts
position as sole source supplier of these
key rilicary capabilities. The portfolio,
particularly the Energetics segment, will
deliver cash to fund this growth.

tr et I
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FOCUS ON

COUNTERMEASURES

Revenue
£134.8m
- 3%)

Operating profit

£16./m

(+ 30%)

Ovrder book
(2006 £177.0m:

Operatng margin’

12.4%

(2016: 9.3%)]
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Chermring is well-established as the world leader

in the design, development and manufacture

of advanced expendable countermeasures and
countermeasure suites for protecting air, sea and
land platforms against the growing threat of guided
missiles. The Group has a broad product range
including conventional flares, advanced flares, special
material decoys, chaff and naval countermeasures.

STRATEGY

Chemring maintains its leading position in the market for conventional and
advanced countermeasures through continuous operational improvement
and targeted investment in technology.

New auromared manufacturing facilicles in the UK and Australia are
operational and Chemring has a strong focus on improving the operational
performance of all facilities. The Group also intends to maintain its
technological lead in air countermeasures through targeted R&D
investment to meet evalving needs and to sustain its sole source positions
on the key US and NATO next-generation platforms — F-22, F-35 and
Typhoon,

The Group’s Operational Excellence Programme will focus on improving
the managernent of safety, producticn efficiencies, waste reduction and
more efficient warking capital management. The results of these
programmes are expected to be realised over the next three years.

MARKETS

The countermeasures market is shawing further signs of recovery, with a
notable increase in solicitation, bid actvity and orders, particularly in the
US. The broader global countermeasures market remains robust, with
improving levels of activity in the UK and Australia, supplemented by
export order opportunities.

PERFORMANCE

Countermeasures revenue decreased by 3% to £134.8m (2016: £13B.3m)
and the segment reported an underlying operating profit of £16.7m (2016:
£12.8m), up 30%. Revenues were down slightly as the Philadelphia plant
was closed for modernisation during the first half. Improved consistency in
production and a more appropriate cost base in the second half of the
year in Philadelphia resutted in year on year operating margins improving
from 9.3% to 12.4%. Order intake was £144 4m, a 51% increase on the
prior year.

2017 has seen significant development of the F-35 program, with
production commencing on both Low Rate Inital Production ("LRIP™) 6 of
the F-35 operational flares and the initial contract for F-35 training flares.
The contract award for LRIP 7 was received late in the year, and the
customer is finalising the Special Material Decoy (“SMD") requirements
for the F-35. The programme to qualify Chemring Australia as a second
source supplier of F-35 flares was successfully completed in the year and
commercial negotiations to supply F-35 flares from Australia are ongoing.

The facility consolidation at Philadelphia from two sites to one, originally
plarned for the second quarter of 2017, was delayed due to urgent
requiremtents from our US customer. This adversely impacted margins in
the first half as we continued 1o run a sub-optimal cost base. Shortly after
the half year the second site was closed and the consolidation and
modernisation of the remaining site was completed in the second half. The
restructuring cost in 2017 was £1.6m, of which £1.1m was a cash cost. and
it has delivered £1.3m of annualised savings from the begnning of the
second half of 2017

OPPORTUNITIES AND OUTLOOK

After years of declining markets, the outlook, particularly for the critical US
market, 1s looking much stronger in both the convendonal and SMD flare
variants. The focus within Countermeasures continues to be on
strengthening our market beading position, in particular on the key F-35 and
Typhoon platforms, and maintaining a dominant position in the crucial SMD
market.

A new SMD was launched to the market earty in 2017, with initial orders
received shortly after its introduction, and ongoing orders anticipated.
Additionally, with the US forces installing BOL countermeasure dispensers
on selected platforms, the Group's position on BOL infra-red and chaff
countermeasures ‘eads us to expect significant opportunities in this product
range in future years.

Improved coltaboration and a more co-ordinated approach to both product
development and customer needs is expected to result in improved order
intake and customer service across the segment.

There is also a considerable opportunity through partnering with aur
customer base on future technological developments, with collaberative
agreements having been concluded with our UK and Australian customers
in 2017. These are expected to deliver considerzble benefits in 2018 and

beyond.

The closing order book far Countermeasures increased by 1% to £178.6m
(2C16: £177.0m). This increase primarity reflects the receipt of a number of
significant orders from the US and UK customer, totaling £83m, that were
received in the second half of the year, offset slightly by reductionsin the long
term framework contract value with the Australian Do, as Australian
requirements transition from F-18 o F-35 countermeasures.

With a solid order book in place, 2018 wrading performance for
Countermeasures is expectad to be positive, albeit with a significant bias
towards the second half.

WHERE WE OPERATE

Chemring Countermeasures USA

Consists of Alloy Surfaces, based in Philadelphia, and Kilgore Flares, based
in Tennessee. Alloy Surfaces is a leading developer of special material
decoys for the US Navy, Marine Corps, Army and Air Force, with

exports to the UK and Australia. Kilgore Flares operates a high volume
manufacturing facilicy making conventional and advanced flares, mcluding
flares for the F-22 and F-35.

Chemring Countermeasures UK

Manufactures advanced expendabie countermeasures for air and sea
platforms. its aircraft products include conventional and advanced flares
and chaff. its naval products include infra-red and radio frequency decoys
and the CENTURION trainable naval decoy jauncher.

Chemring Australia
Develops and manufactures airoraft countermeasures, pyrotechnics,
and counter-lED and electronic warfare solurions.
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FOCUS ON

SENSORS

Revenue
£94.5m
2%

Opcratmg proﬁ[

£14.3m

(+ 25%)

Orderbool
£35.4m

{2016 £49 3imj

' N N O VAT Operfmng margin®
15.1%

2516, 11 B%)

NEXT GENERATION

OPPORTUNITIES:
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Chemring’s Sensors products include wortd-leading
systems for detecting improvised explosive devices
("IEDs"™), chernical and biclogical agents, and core
technologies for detecting, intercepting and jamming
electronic communications. The Group is also a leading
contract research and development supplier; trusted by
government and industrial partners worldwide to solve
the most technically challenging security critical issues,
with a focus in the cyber-security field.

STRATEGY

The Group has invested to grow its Sensors business by developing and
exploiting technologies for its niche markets in [ED defear, chernical and
biological threat detection, and land-based etectronic warfare. To do so,
the Group aims to exploit its international footprint 1o continue to
develop advanced technologies and win key, identified Pragrams of
Record including the Husky Mounted Detection System {*HMDS™), the
MNext Generation Chemical Detector (*“NGCD™), the joint Biological
Tacucal Detection System (“{BTDS") and several next-generation EW
programmes.

The Group's specialist contract research and development business operates
in the growing cyber-security market, and investing in recruiting, developing
and retaining our people, together with expanding our geographical and
customer coverage, is key to profitable growth in this area.

MARKETS

The sensors market remains our principal long-term growth area, with
demand for Roke's security related consultancy services increasing and
development efforts in suppart of US Programs of Record in the
counter-1ED, chemical and biclogical detection markets progressing.
Production awards for sensors products continue 1o be subject to ongoing
research and development programmaes and protracted customer
decision-making processes.

PERFORMANCE

Sensers revenue decreased by 2% to £94.5m (2016: £96.9m) reflecting
the continued focus of the US business on the research and development
phases of the counter-lED}, chemical 2nd biological detection Programs of
Record. Tha segment reported an undertying operating profit of £14.3m
(2016: £11.4m), up 25%. Operating margins increased from 11.8% to
15.1%. Order intake was £99.7m, an 80% increase on the prior year.

In 2017, the US DoD’s approach to counter-IED through the HMDS
program changed to one of spiral development, with concurrent
development. trialting, and manufacturing being undertaken. During the
year orders were received for separate capability requirements, induding
incorporation and trialting of wire detection, development of advanced
radar, and manufacturability studies. Subsequent to this, a restructured
Capability and Requirement Program plan was agreed by the US Army
and authorisation was granted to produce and field a fleet of 369 HMDS
between now and mid-2021, The new fleet will be comprised of both
refurbished and new HMDS and this activity will run alongside technology
upgrade programs, Final budget and schedule details are unknown at

this point.

Sales of RESOLVE electronic warfare systems continue to be strong, now
exceeding £50m since its launch, with orders received from four new
custormers and six repeat customers, RESOLVE is now used in 12 nations
globally. Following on from an initial order from the US, a further
requirement has recently been solicited from this strategically important
market. A significant RESOLVE development programme has commenced
aimed at ensuring RESOLVE maintzins its position as the world’s leading
tactical electronic warfare system.

Roke’s performance was impacted as budgetary pressures from its largest
government customers continued, Despite this the business continued its
impraved performance trend.

The facility consolidation of Charlottesville into Chariotte 2nd Dulles was
completed early in the year. The restructuring costs in 2017 were £5.4m, of
which £0.3m was a cash cost. The annualised saving of £0.2m has been
realised in 2017.

OPPORTUNITIES AND OUTLOOK

The focus for Sensors continues to be on expanding the Group's product,
service and capability offerings in the areas of tactical electronic warfare
and cyber-security, and securing positions on the U5 DoD Programs of
Record. in September 2017 a Request for Proposal ("RFP”) was received
for the EMD and production phase for the first of the three NGCD
varants. Government decision is expected n mid-2018. The RFP was in
line with the Group's expectations and the overall size of the program is
significant. Tenders for other phases of NGCD are expected in 2018,
Funded devefopmens of Chemring's sole source position on the |BTDS
program is continuing with government testing of product ongoing.
Critical Design Review, led by the Joint Program Executive Office for
Chemical and Biclogical Defense, occurred in November 2017, The review
zoncluded that the program was sufficdently advanced o progress to

the next stage of customer testing, which would occur during 2018,

le additian a furcher $5m of funding was provided o cover ongoing
development activity.

Contracting activity on the HMDS program is expeacted to be significantin
2018, and shall cover existing fleet refurbishment, delivery of system
elernents to increase overall fleat size to the Army Acquisition Objective,
delivery of further Wire Detection systems and ongoing technological
developments. Following on from initial small Foreign Military Sales
(“FMS") orders received in 2017 for 3d-Radar based HMDS which were
delivered in the second half, further orders for these systems are
expected in 2018 and beyond.

Supportng the UK Government acress National Security and Defence,
znd non-governmental industries in high-value manufacturing and
infrastructure, Roke wili continue to focus on their customers’ missions:
to enable them to deliver competitive advantage, defend their people,
assets and secrets, and defeat their adversaries. With a focus on emerging
technologies in connectivity, cybrer, automaticn and data analyucs, Roke
will deliver its high quality peopie and capabilities via research. design,
engineering and advisory services. Concurrently, Roke is seeking to
expand its capabilities into commercial and international markets.

The order book for Sensors at 31 October 2017 was £55.4m
{2016 £49.3m).

2018 trading performance for Sensors is expected to show an
improvement on 2017, driven primarily by Roke and HMDS awards.

WHERE WE OPERATE

Chemring Sensors & Electronic Systems (“CSES™)
Based in Virginia and North Caralina, CSES develops and manufactures
ground penetrating radar, JED detection systems, and chemical and
biclogical threat detection systems.

Chemring Technology Solutions

The Group's centre of excellence in fand EW, 2nd alsc develops and
manufactures IED detection and neutraiisation systems, induding
vehicle-mounted and hand-held sensors, disruptors and initiatian systers.

Roke

A technology company that provides electronics research, development
and engineering servicas, and cyber-security solutions for UK
Government agencies and prime contractors.
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| FOCUS ON

ENERGETICS

Revenue

£318.2m

1+ 32%)

Operatng profit

£34.8m

+ 10%)

Crder book

£244.0m

12016 £3¢6 6

Cperating margin”

10.9%

(2516: 13.1%)

RELIABLE
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Chemring’s energetic sub-systerns are safety critical
components of missiles, aircraft and space launch
systerns. Operators and prime contractors depend
on Chemring’s very high reliability, single-use

devices to perform key functions, including satellite
deployment, aircrew egress and missile self-destruct.

Chernring manufactures a range of pyrotechnic
products which are used by military and security
forces around the world for screening, signalling
and illumination. In addition, the Group produces a
specialist range of high explosive products, including
minefield clearance systerns, demoiition stores and
40rmm ammunition.

STRATEGY

The Group will sacure the position of its energetic sub-systems
components on next-generation platforms for missile and space
pragrammes in the United States and Europe, through excellent delivery
performance oh current programmes and strong customer and parther
interaction,

In military pyrotechnics, the Group will upgrade key products to ensure
that it can offer the full range of rockers, smoke grenades and flares
required by its military and security customers. The Group has been
successful in entering new markets, particularly in the Middle East and
Asia Pacific, and further development of customer relationships is planned
ir these areas.

MARKETS

Within Energetics, we are seeing increased demand for our producks,
driven in part by increased {evel of operations in certain areas of the world
and in part by restocking of reduced inventory levels. The high
specification energetic devices businesses are also growing as our
customers recognise our niche technological capabilities in this area.

PERFORMANCE

Energetics revenue incraased by 32% o £318.2m (2016: £24] 9m) with
underlying operating profit increasing by 10% to £34.8m (2016: £31.7m).
Operating margins decreased from 13.1% to 10.9%. Order intake was
£205.8m, a 7% decrease on the prior year.

The major contributors to improved performance in the segment were
the large Middle Eastern 40mm ammunition contracts which contributed
revenue of £64.2m (2016: £44.5m). Having successfully delivered the
balance of the 40mm arder received in 2015, the Group received an
additional 40mm contract, valued at £23.0m, from g different customer,
the majority of which was defivered during the secand half of 2017.

Increazed sales of procured non-standard ammunition {"NSA") product
was another key driver of growth in this segment. Due to the externally
sourced nature of the products involved, margins on nan-standard
ammunition sales are typically lower than for manufactured product.
Supply of NSA products to the US Government contributed £97.6m
(2016: £62.2m) to revenue in the year.

Aside from these lzrge cortracts, segmental revenue grew by 16%
reflecting the valued niche technology and capability demonstrated in the
energetic devices field. At our devices and propellant facility in Scodand,
the award of three muiti-year contracts for supply of Metron actuaters
and propellant into the fire suppression, commercial aercspace and
marine safety markets, combined with our long-term supply agreements
with the UK MOD and Martin Baker will see annual revenues from
long-term contracts near £20m, or 60% of historical revenue levels.

Our high explosive manufacturing business n Norway has achieved
record order intake levels with significant investment being undertaken to
enhance capacity, which will continue in 2018,

OPPORTUNITIES AND OUTLOOK

The closure of the California facility in 2018 is progressing according to plan.
This project is anticipated to have a total cost of appraximately £6.4m by the
tme of completon, of which £4.2m is expected to be a cash cost. The site
rationalisation is expected to deliver approximately £4m in annual savings
from 2019.

Significant new opportunities are developing for our US ordnance
business. These include further sighificant export requirements for 40mm
ammunition, and domestic and international requirements for APOBS
minefield breaching systems. Development and qualification activity on
57mm naval ammunition continues. NSA requirements are expected to
remain high in 2018, although we expect this low margir business line to
reduce from 2019.

The significant growth in demand for product from our Norwegian high
explosives business is driving a programme to enhance averall capacity
through plant, process and systems upgrades. Itis expected thac total
plant throughput will double from historical {2016) levels by 2020.

The arder book for Energetics at 31 October 2017 was £244.0m
{2016: £366.6m), and included £11.2m in respect of 40mm ammunition
and £83.7m in respect of NSA.

2018 wading performance for Energatics is expected to show a reduction
on 2017, driven primarily by lower volumes of 40mm ammunition.

WHERE WE OPERATE

Chemring Energetic Devices

Aleading US supplier of pyrotechnic and electro-mechanicat systems for
missiles, space and safety applications. Products include sateliite and space
launch vehicle separation systems, initiators and low-shock satellite
separation systems, and a range of pyromechanisms for aircrew egress.
Chemring Energetic Devices also supplies sub-systems for missiles,

Chemring Energetics

Incerperating Chemring Energetics UK in Scotland and Chemring Nobel
in Norway. A {eading supplier of detonators, actuators, rocket motors,
high explosive charges, canopy cutting cords and pyromechanisms for
dircrew egress, and demolition stores. Itis also a leading supplier of high
explosive charges, high explosives and energetic binders to the defence,
security, oil and gas industries.

Chemring Defence UK
Designs, develops and produces smoke and illumination pyrotechnics and
payloads for military, OEM and security customers,

Chemring Ordnance

A leading US manufacturer of the Anti-Persohnel Gbstacle Breaching
System [“APOBS"), 40mm ammunition and military pyrotechnics, located
in Florida. It also operates a procurement service, supplying non-NATO
standard ammunition to the US Army and other customers.
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Strategic report

FINANCIAL REVIEW

In market conditions which continue to be
challenging, but which are showing signs of
medium-term improvement, Chemring’s focus
on completing recent restructuring, operational
improvement and cost control has delivered a
business with greater resilience to the defence
market cycles.

Andrew Lewis
Group Finance Director

Profit after tax* Increased revenue,improved
operational performance

£3 6 O m together with lower interest and
. tax contributed to a 34% increase

(2016: £26.9m) in profit after tax*,




The 2017 financia! results demonstrate a
second year of improved defivery, maintaining
the momentum of the second haif of 2016, This
current year delivery has been balanced with a
focus on improving operauocnal performance,
setting the foundations for further progress in
subsequent years.

GROUP RESULTS

The underlying operating profit of £55.4m
(2016: £4B.5m) resuited in an undertying
operating margin of 10.1% (2016: 10.2%). The
slightly lower margin primarily reflects a lower
margin sales mix, primarily as a result of
significantly higher non-standard ammunition
revenue in the Energetics segment.

Foreign exchange transiation has had an impact
on year-on-year comparison following the
significant devaluation of Sterling in june 2016.
On a constant currency basis, restating the
current period at the FY16 average exchange
rate, revenue would have been £528.0m and
underlying operating profit would have been
£55.0m.

After a het underlying finance expense of
£4.3:m (2016: £14.5m), there was an
underlying profit before tax of £44.Im

(2016: £34.0m). The effective tax rate on the
underlying profit before tax from contiruing
operations was |8.4% (2016: 20.9%). The
underlying earnings per share was 12 9p
(2016: £0.3p).

Statutory operating profit was £15.3m

(2016: £26.2m} and after statutory finance
expenses of £11.3m (2016: £18.2m), statutory
profit before tax was £4.0m {2016 £8.0m),
giving statutory EPS of LIp (2016: 2.5p}.

The Group has recognised an impairment loss
of £10.6m in respect of the Chernring Defence
UK business. This is based on the current
market conditiohs in the military and law
enforcement pyrotechnics market.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Group has adopted IFRS |5 forits 2017
financial year and the Board believes that this
represents a move to a more prudent basis
of revenue recognition. The majority of the
Group’s transactions are unaffected by IFRS 15,
hawever when IFRS 15 is applied to a small
number of customer contracts this leads to a
difference in the timing of recognising revenue.
As permitted by the standard, the Group has
adopted the modified transitional provisions
and as such the 2016 resuits remain as
previously reported. For further detalls see
note 33.

The net effect of the adoption of IFRS 15 on
the Group results for 2017 was broadly
neuiral. The impact of adoption in 2017 has
been to increase revenue by £16.3m and
increase underlying operating profit by £4.9m

arising from transactions recognised in prior
periads which would have subsequentdy been
recognised in the current pertod under IFRS 15,
Simitarly a number of transactions, with a
broadly equivalent operating profit impace,

will be recognised in 2018 that could have
previously been recognised in 20)7. This timing
difference is expected to recur at each
reporting period end, albeit at a different
quantum,

FINANCE EXPENSES

Net underlying interest costs were £8.5m
{2016: £10.9m), amortisation of debt fimarce
costs was £2.4m (2016 £2.8m) and other
non-cash finance expenses associated with the
defined benefit pension scheme were £0.4m
(2016: £0.8m).

TAX

The continuing underlying effective tax rate.
where the tax charge and the profit before
taxation are adjusted for non-underlying items
and the amortisation of acquired intangibles,

is 18.4% (2016: 20.9%).

The continuing statutory tax charge totalled
£0.9m (2016; £1.5m) on a continuing statutory
profit before tax of £4.0m (2016: £8.0m). The
continuing effective statutory tax rawe for the
period is a charge of 22.5% (2016: 18.8%). The
increase in the continuing effective rate of tax
on the results of the Group is primarily due to
the geographic mix of profits, changes to the
amounts of deferred tax assets considered
recoverable in respact of both tax losses and
US interest imitations, prior year adjustments
and the recent reduction in UK corporation
tax rates.

The US Tax Cuts and jobs Act ("TCJA") was
substantively enacted on 22 December 2017.
The TCJA provides for a reduction in the main
rate of federal corporate income tax from 35%
o 21% for accounting periods beginning on or
after | January 2018, As the legislation was not
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
its effect has not been included in these
financial statements. If the changes had been
taken into account in preparing the financial
statements the impact would have been to
reduce the value of the Deferred Tax Asser by
approximately £5m.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Underlying earnings per share were [2.9p
{20[6: 10.3p) ard diluted underlying earnings
per share were 12.6p (2016: 10.1p).

2017 Operating profit*
by segment

2016 Operating profit*
by segment

Earnings per share*

129p

(2016: 10.3p)

Dividend per share

3.0p

(2016: [.3p)

Net Debt/EBITDA*

099

(2016: 1 19x)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW continued

GROUP FINANCIAL POSITION

NET DEBT AND CASH FLOW

The Group’s net debs at 31 October 2017 was £80.0m (2016: £87.6m),
representing a net debt : EBITDA ratio of 0.99x {20t6: |.19x). The financial
condition of the Group has improved in a number of aspects during the
year. Debt repayments were made which reduces future interest costs,
working capital practices were improved, capitalised development costs
has reduced as amortisation now exceeds capitalisation and the [ASI9
pension deficit has significantly reduced to £0.6m (2016: £17.3m deficit).
The Group hopes to achieve further improvements over the medium term.

Underlying operating activities generated cash of £47.Im (2016: £81.4m),
reflecting the investment made in working capital associated with fulfilling
contracts in the Energetics segment. The increase in inventory reflected the
inventory on hand to fulfil the final deliveries assodated with the £23m
40mm contract in the Energatics segment. Trade receivables increased due
to a combination of the tming of deliveries to customers and increased
levels of business activity. This was parucularly apparent in the Energetics
segment where increased levels of 40mm and NSA deliveries occurred

in the fina) quarter. In addition, the Group has maintained the supplier
payment practices introduced at half year, returning them to normal
industry standards. This has resulted in a one off investment in working
capital in the year of £30m. Improved relationships with suppliers is
expected to assist the Group in Improving future operational performance.

On 2| November 2016, the Group repaid £29.0m of outstanding loan notes
and on 13 November 2047 a further £5].4m of loan notes were repaid.
Both payments were made out of existing cash resources and debs facilities.
The remaining loan notes of £62.9m are repayable in November 2619,

WORKING CAPITAL

‘Working capital was £131.5m (2014: £122.0m), an increase of £3.5m.
Working capital as a percentage of revenue has remained comparable ac 24%
(2016: 26%).

Inventory increased in Energetics o support contract deliveries but fell in
Sensors as efforts tc optimise inventory levels were successful.

Trade receivables increased by £9.3m and trzde payables decreased by
£15.8m as a result of the high levels of activity in the final quarter of the year
and the normalisation of supplier payment practices referred to above.

Within trade and other receivables, trade receivables increased which
reflected the timing of shipping fate in the year, and advance payments to
suppliers increased reflecting the higher volume of NSA business where
advance payments are required.

In trade and other payables the reduction in trade payables was offset by an
increase in advance receipts from customers, which was driven by the higher
level of NSA business and the advance receipt on the £23m 40mm contract.

DEBT FACILITIES

The Group's principal debt faciliies comprised £114.3m of private placement
loan nores, of which £51.4rm was repaid on 13 November 2047, and a £100.0m
revolving credit facility The revoling credic facility was established in July
2014, is with a syndicate of three banks and had a four-year initial term.

On 27 April 2017 this was extended by ane year to July 2019, The Group had
£106.0m (2016: £108.0m) of undrawn borrowing facilities at the year end.
The Group is subject to two key financial covenants, which are tested
quarterly. These covenants relate to the leverage ratio between

. underlying EBITDA and debt; and the interest cover ratic between

underlying EBITDA and finance costs. The calculation of these ratios
invalves the transtation of non-Sterling denominated debt using average,
rather than closing, rates of exchange. The revolving credit facility and the
loan notes have differing covenant compliance calculations. The Group
was in compliance with the covenants throughout the year.

20

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The deficit on the Group's defined benefit pension schemes was
£0.6m (2016 £17.3m}, measured in accordance with IAS |9 (Revised)
Employec Benefits.

The geficit refates to the Chemring Group Staff Pension Scheme {the
“scheme™), a UK defined benefit scherme whose assets are held in a separately
administered fund. The Scheme was closed to future accrual in April 2012,

A full actuarial valuation for the Scheme as at 6 April 2015 has been prepared
and updated to 3| Ocrober 2017, using the projected unit credit method. This
valuation showed a defidt of £0.6m (2016: £17.3m), The reduction reflects the
funding structure agreed with the trustees, under which contributions of £5.0m
were paid in 2017, together with the effect of changes in actuzrial assumptions.
The Group has given a bank guarantee and letters of credit totalling £7.2m
(2016: £8.5m) to the Scheme in respect of future contributions, which are
progressively reducing as contributions are paid under the agreed funding
structure.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Group continues to invest in the infrastructure of its facilities, with
particular focus on enhancing safety and enhancing operational performance.
In the year £12.4m was spent on property, plant and equipment.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

R&D expenditure was £52.4m (2016: £57.8m}). Continued invesument in R&D
is 8 key aspect of the Group's strategy, and levels of internafly-funded R&D are
expected o be maintained as investmentin product development continues,
partcularty within Sensors. An analysis of R&D expenditure is set out below:

w017 2018

im £m

Customer-funded R&D 41.1 414
Internally-funded R&D

— expensed to the income statement 7.4 77

~ capitalised 19 6.7

Total R&D expenditure 52.4 57.8

Amortsation of development and patent costs was £7.1m (2016: £6.9m),
with the increase reflecting a number of previously capitalised projects
coming on-stream. A further increase in amortisation of development and
patent costs is anticipated for 2018 as additional Sensors projects complete
their development phase.




ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

The strategic report includes both statutory measures and Alternative Performance Measures {“"APMs”), The principal APMs presented are the
underlying measures of earnings which exclude discontinued operations, exceptional items, gain or loss on the movement on the fair value of derivative
financial instruments, and the amartisation of acquired intangibles. The term underlying is not defined under IFRS and may not be comparable wath simiiarty
titled measures used by other companies.

The directors believe that these APMs improve the comparability of information between reporting periods. All profic and earnings per share figures in this
strategic report relate [0 underlying busness performance (as defined above} unless otherwise stated.

A reconciliation of underiying measures 1o statutory measures is provided below:

2017 2016

Underlying  Non-underlying Bearucory Undertying Non-undertying Statutory
Group: m im tm £m &m im
EBITDA 81.0 (34.1) 56.9 73.8 (7.5) 66.3
QOperating profit 55.4 {40.h) 5.3 48.5 {22.3) 262
Profit before taxation 44.1 (40.1) 4.0 340 (26.0) 8.0
Tax charge (8.1 7.1 (0.9) 7.0 5.6 (1.5)
Profit after tax 36.0 (32.9) kN 169 (20.4) 6.5
Basic earnings per share (pence) £2.9 (11.8) Lt 10.3 (7.8) 25
Diluted earnings per share {penrce) 12.6 {1.5) [ 10.1 (7.7 24
Segrnents:
Countermeasures EBIT DA 29.8 {2.8) 172 28.2 0.9} 243
Countermeasures operating profit 16.7 (4.0) 12.7 12.8 [{M))] 1.7
Sensors EBITDA 202 (5.4} 14.8 18.0 (0.8) 17.2
Sensars operating profit i4.3 (12.4) 19 1.4 (7.9) 35
Energetics ERITDA 412 (16.2) 25.0 378 (3.3 345
Energetics operating profit 34.8 (23.8) 1.0 3.7 (10.8) 209

Further details are provided in note 3.

The adjustments comprise:

+ amortisation of acquired intangibles of £15.0m (2016: £14.8m}

«  exceptional items of £2.3m (2016: £0.3m) relating to acquisition and disposal related costs

* exceptional items of £14.3m (2016: £5.4m) relating to business restructuring and incident ¢osts

= exceptional items of £0.4m (2016: £0.6m credit) refating to claitm related costs

« exceptional items of £10.6m (2016: £nil) relating to the impairmenc of a business, of which £0.8m relates to taxation and is included in the tax
credit of £7.2m below

+ gain on the movement in the fair value of derivative financial instruments of £F.7m (2016: £1.0m loss)

* tax credit on adjustments of £7.2m (2016: £5.6m)

» discontinued operations net credits of £3.5m (2016: £4.6m)

Andrew Lewis
Group Finance Director
18 January 2018
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Straregic report

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group's strategy is underpinned by focusing on a number of key
performance indicators (“KPIs™"). The KPis that the Board and senior
management utilise to assess Group performance are set out below.

These KPls enable progress to be monitored on the implementation of the
Group'’s strategy, levels of investment, aperational performance and business
development. They also give an early insight into how well the principal risks and
uncertainties are being managed. Similar indicators are used to review
performance by each of the Group's businesses, albeit that the exact nature of
these varies between business units to reflect the differing nature of their

Cperations.

QORDERS

The Group uses a number of KPls relating to
arders, These comprise order intake, order
book and the level of forecast revenue for the
current financial year covered by orders
on-hand.

The closing order book at 31 October 2017 of
£478.0m represents a decrease of 19% on the
prior year, principally reflecting the delivery of
sorne significant contracts in Energetics, offset
by stronger orders in Countermeasures. As at
31 Qcrober 2017, of the orders on hand of
£478.0m, £360.9m were expected to be
fulfiiled in the year ending 31 October 2018.

B tor more mformaton see puges (2to |7

REVENUE

Revenue provides a measure of business activity
and growth, enabling customer behaviour
trends to be idenufied and acted upon. In the
case of business units that have experienced
operational and production issues, revenue
levels indicate their ability ta deliver throughput
and fulfil customer orders.

22
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ORDER INTAKE

 ORDER BOOK

Group . Group
(2016: £371m) (2016: £593m)
Countermeasures Countermeasures

Sensors

Group

£54/m

(2016: £477my}

|7 3

L 9m

£177m

Countermeasures
I

1/ £318m




SEGMENTAL UNDERLYING OPERATING PROFIT

Segmental undertying operating profit is stated
before charges for unzllocated corporate costs
and non-underlying tems, as shown in note 2 of
the Group financial statements. Segrmental
underlying oper ating profit provides a consistent
year-on-year measure of the trading performance
of the Groun's operations. It does not include
significant non-recurring or exceptional costs that
would distort 2 comparative assessment, nor does
itinclude unallocated corporate costs associated
with operating a public company. The continuing
segmental underlying operating profit increased hy
18% during the year, reflecting the change in
revenue and the operating leverage effects
associated with the high fixed-cast nature of
certain of the Group's activities,

B or more information yee pages 12 to 17

Group

£65.8m

(2016: £55.9m)

UNDERLYING OPERATING MARGIN

Underlying operating margin is based on
underlying segmental operating profit and
provides an assessment of the profitability of
the business. A focus oh operating margin
allows the impact of changes in revenue and cost
base to be menitered, enabling comparisons to
be made of management performance and
trading effectiveness. The changes in margin of
each segment reflect the market conditions,
volume changes and performance improvement
actions, as set outin this strategic report. The
changes in margin also reflect the impact of
movements in revenue, offset by the benefit of
cost-5aving measures.

Grow
12.0%
(2016: 11.7%)

WORKING CAPITAL AND INVENTORY

Working capital is defined as inventories, trade
and other receivables, and trade and other
payables. The primary focus for improverment
within warking capital is inventory.

Optimum inventory levels drive both effective
staff utilisation and cost efficiency. Excess
inventory results in second order costs such as
increased storage and inventory management
costs, the write-off of ageing or obsoiete
inventory, and disposal costs, which can be
significant for energetic materials.

.fnr more Information see page 79

WORKING CAPITAL

Group

| Countermeasures

B e 7m
! 16 ol En:

} Sensars

| N Li4 3
i 16 £

f

Countermeasures

Sensors

oz

Energetics
17

INVENTORY

Group

£131.5m

(2016 £122.0m)

H
; Countermeasures

17 £40.4-
14 £35.7m

Energetics
17 £64 5
& LE2.6m

£97.6m

(2016: £104.8m)
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS continued

CONTINUING UNDERLYING EARNINGS PER SHARE

Underlying earnings per share is a key measure
for the Group, reflecting the combinad trading
performance together with the impact of its
funding structure and taxation. The increase in
the year reflects the Group’s improved trading
performance tagether with [ower interest and
tax cos1s.

Continuing underlying earnings
per share

Change from
previous year

12.9p

(2016: 10.3p)

OEBT TO UNDERLYING EBITDA

The ratio of underlying EBITDA to the Group's
debt levels is a dlear indicator of the leverage
barne by the Group. The ratio is a specified
financial covenant within the Group’s principal
debst finance facilities, comprising the revolving
credit facility and the Joan note agreemaents, and
the ratios under each of the measurement bases
required in these facilities form KPls for the
Group. The basis of calculation under the two
debt finance facilities differs in some ragards,
notably in the use of gross debt and adjusted debt
measures in the loan note agreements, compared
to net debt in the revolving credit faciliny. The
covenant definitions diffar from the definition used
1o calculate the 0.99x as described in the strategic
report due (o average, rather than year end,
foreign exchange rates are used to cafeulate debt.
The Group's 2im over the medium-term is to
maintain the rato of net debt to underlying
EBITDA to an average level of less than 1,50x,

INTEREST COVER

Interest cover provides a simple measure of the
ratio between underlying EBITDA and the
finance costs incurred in servicing the Group's
debt. It is an importantindicator for the Group,
and is a specified finandial covenant ynder the
revolving credit facility and loan note
agreements, As with the ratio of debt to
underlying EBMTDA, there are certain
differences in the bases of calculation of interest
cover under the two facilities.
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Revolving credit facility!

25%

{2016: 45%)

A
w

Loan note agreements’?

|.03x

(2016: 1.15%)

| Actual ratie of net debt 10 underbying EBITDA
(maximum allowed ratio of 3.00x}

Revolving credit facifity?

| 40x

(2016: 1.89%)

2 Actual ratic of total debt to underlying EBRITDA
{maximum allowed ratio of 3.00x)

Loan note agreements*

9.59x

(2016: 6.82x)

3 Actual ratio of underlying EBITDA o finance
costs (minimum allowed ratio of 4.00x)

6 8ix

943x

i (20§6: 6.54%)

4 Actual ratio of underlying EB{TDA to finance
costs (minimum alowed ratio of 3.50x)




UNDERLYING CONTINUING O

Operating cash flow provides a measure of the
cash generated by the Group's trading. It
represents the cash that is generated to fund
capital expenditure, iInterest payments, tax and
dividends. Given the Group's refatively
short-cycle manufacturing operations and with
working capital being improved through greater
efficiency. operating cash conversion closely
follows operating profit, although the Group
recognises that the timing of certain contracts
and subsequent payment can have a timing effect
fram period to period. The Group's underlying
continuing operating cash flow was £47.Im during
the year, reflecting the change in underlying
operating profit and increase in worlking capital
following the decision to normalise supplier
payment practices during the year. i

SAFETY

Many of Chemring's manufacturing activities
nvalve the use of hazardous subsrtances and
energetic materials, and safety metrics are 2
fundamental part of the key performance
indicators used to manage the business. All
intidents and near misses are reported and
investigated, in order to share findings and
corrective actions throughout the Group.
The Group's key lagging indicators are the
rumber of incidents that result in lost time,
and the number of energesic incidents that
cause injury. In addition, the Group has a

PERATING CASH FLOW

Undertying continuing operating
cash flow

47.lm

(2016: £81.4m)

Leading indicators®

2,264

(2016: 2,265)

5 Near misses reporied and actioned

Injuries from energetic incidents?

number of leading indicatars, principally the
levei of near misses_ The active raporting of
near misses by employees is encouraged in
order to highlight potential risk issues and
enable these to be considered and addressed
on z timely basis. Each of these is reviewed and
resolved, gradually reducing risk.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

0

(2016: 1)

6 Imjuries arising

Lost time incidents

Lost time incident rate

Ogperational performance is measured using a series of indicators that include efficiency, labour utilisation and customer order performance. These
performance indicators are considered at business unit level, as the varying nature of the Group's operations mean that it is not appropriate to
consolidate this data. Improving operational performance is key to securing strong customer relationships and maximising returns from production
activities. Closely monitored measures include gross margin percentages by business, on-time delivery of customer orders, overall manufacturing

utlisation and product development spend.
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HOW WE MANAGE RISK

RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION STRUCTURE

THE BOARD

Oveallr nsiliny for s ma,

COMMITTEE

s afinte -al ¢

AUDIT

o the { =y

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

M roa oo e e

NESS UNIT MANAGEMENT
boess

[y Coanpti

THE BOARD

The Board is responsibie for determining the nature and extent of risks it
is willing to accept in delivering the Group's strategy and running the
Group's aperations, and ensuring that risks are effectively managed across
the Group.

The Board reviews the Group risk register on a regular basis, and
considers whether the Risk Management Committee has appropriately
identified the principal risks to which the Group is exposed.

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing in detail the
effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal control, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and its risk management systems.

THE RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee reviews the business unit risk registers
on a regular basis. The Risk Management Committee is responsibie for
identifying the principal risks to which the Group is exposed, monitoring
key miugation plans, and maintaning the Group risk register. All members
of the Executive Committee are also members of the Risk Managemem
Commuttee.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Group's risk management framework draws fundamentally from the
“Three Lines of Defence Methodology”, with the “First Line” being
day-to-day management of risk and maintenance of effective control
procedures at individual business units. The "Second Line” comprises
various risk management and control functions established at the
corporate managernent level designed to enhance and manitor the First
Line. These functions include a Risk Management Committee, health,
safety and enviranmental management function, financial controls, and a
compliance function responsible for anti-corruptton and legal compliance.
The “Third Line” comprises the Group's internal audit funcron utilising
KPMG, who report directly to the Audit Committee.
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The manzgement of each of the business units is responsible for the
idenufication, management and reporting of local risks, in 2ccordance with
the Group’s risk management framework. The business units’
management are also responsible for the mainteénance of business unig risk
registers and the implemantation of ritigation plans.

Each business unit is reguired to maintain a risk register identfying the key
risks to achievement of their current year's budget and their five year plan,
and their most significant heaith and safety risks. The risk registers alse
include an analysis of the likelihood and impact of each risk - before and
after mitigation actions are taken to manage the risk, together with details
of the mitigation plans and progress against them. Each risk is

allocated an owner, who has responsibility for managing the risk.

The business unit risk registers are updated focally on a quarteriy basis,
and are reviewed in detail by the Group Chief Executive, the Group
Finance Director and other members of the Executive Committee at
quarterly review meetings with each of the businesses.

The Risk Management Committee also reviews the business unit risk
registers on a regular basis and, utifising the input from the businesses, the
Risk Management Committee identifies those principal risks which are
material to the Group s &2 whole. The Risk Management Committee also
considers corporate-leve] risks. These risks are collated an the Group risk
register, together with details of the applicable mitigation plans and risk
owners,

The current Group risk register comprises various risks including health,
safety and environmentat risks, market-related risks, political risks,
operational risks, legal and compliance risks, reputational risks and
financial risks. Details of the principal risks are set out on pages 28 to 33,

INTERNAL CONTROL AND

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

In addition to reviewing the Group risk register on a regular basis, the
Board is alsa required to carry out an annual review of the effectiveness of
the Group's systems of internal control and risk management systems in
compliance with provision C2.3 of the UK Corporate Governance Code
{the "Coda"). In the year under review, the Board considered the
follawing key features of the Group's risk management systems and
control pracedures which operated during the year:

= the Board assesses the key risks associated with achievement of the
Group's business objectives as part of the annual strategic planning
process and on a continuing basis thereafter;

= the performance of each business against budget and the prior year is
reviewed on a monthly basis at both the operational management level
and by the Board;

+ the Group Chief Execuuive, the Group Finance Director and other
members of the Executive Committee attend quarterly review
meetings with each of the businesses. In the case of the US businesses,
formal Board meetings are also held quarterly, and these are attended
by the Group Chief Executive, the Group Finance Director and
external independent non-executive directors appointed in the US,
The US non-executive directors are required to provide guidance and
monitor governance in the US businesses throughout the year. An
external independent non-executive director is also appointed to the
Board of the Group's Norwegian subsidiary;

* each business is required to comply with the Group's accounting policy
manual, which sets out formal procedures for incurring certain types
of expenditure and making contractual commitments. Compliance
with the accounting policy manual is audited by the internal auditors,
who report regularly to the Audit Cormmittee on their findings;




the Board retains primary responsibility for acquisitions angd disposals,
and financing arrangements for the Group. Treasury management, IT
strategy, insurance and significant legal matters are dealt with cenuraily
from the Group head office, and the Board receives regular reports on
each of these items. Reviews of the Group's pensions, insurance and
physical risk management arrangements are carried out by external
advisers on a periodic basis;

the Group Director of Safety, supported by business-specific health
and safety management committees, co-ordinates and controls the
actvities of each business in relation to health, safery and
environmental matters, which are a key focus for the Board in view of
the nature of the Group's operations. The Group Chief Execurtive is
the Board member nominated with specific responsibility for health
and safety;

the Group maintains a 8ribery Act compliance manual incorporating
its anti-corruption policies and procedures; and

the Board has established a broad internal audit function utilising the
services of KPMG. In addition to reviewing financial controls, the
interral auditors review a wide range of non-financial processes and
procedures, which provides additional assurance to the Board on the
adequacy of the Group's internal contrals. The internal auditors
report to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis, and progress on
identfied improvement actions is monitored and tracked,

The Board confirms that it has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's
systerns of internal control and risk management which were in place
during the financizl year ended 31 October 2017, and it confirms that:

there is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
principal risks faced by the Company and the Group;

systems of internal control and risk management compliant with the
Code and the Turnbull Guidance were in place throughout the year
and have remained in place up to the date of approval of these financial
statements; and

the Group’s internal control and risk management systems are
regularly reviewed by the Board, and broadly comply with the
Guidance on Risk Management, nternal Control and Related Financial
and Business Reporting published by the Financtal Reporting Council.

The Board acknowledges, however, that the intertial cantrol systems can
only provide reasonzble, not absolute, assurance against material
mismanagement or loss of the Group's assets. The Board will therefore
continue to take steps Lo embed internal control and risk management
further inta the operations of the Group, and to deal with any areas of
improvement which come 1o the attention of management and the Board.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

The principal risks and uncertainties which could have a material impact on the
Group's performance and could cause actual results to differ materially from
expected and historical results have not changed significantly from those set out
in the Group's 2016 annual report and accounts and the 2017 interim report.

The primapal rigks to which the Group is exposed are set out belowy, iogether with details of LENKS TO STRATEGY: TREND:;
their potential impact; the likelihood of occurrence (on a scale of 1 to 3, with | being the most Hold th d slread + 8
likely); an indication of whether the trend in the risk exposure is increasing, decreasing or old the ground aiready wan nerease
broadiy unchanged; and the mitigation actions taken 10 manage the risk. Transform aur capabilities = No change
Principal risks are identified by the Risk Management Committee based on the jikelibead of Invest far growth N Decrease
occurrence and the potential impact on the Group as a whole.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL RISKS

Health and safety

RISK LIKELIHOOD OF POTENTIAL MITIGATION

DESCRIPTION CCCURRENCE IMPACTS ACTIONS TREND

* Incidents may occur which
could result n harm to
emplayees, the temporary
shurdown of facdives or other

* The Group's operations which
utilise energetic ratenals are
subject ta mherent health and
safety risks.

» Weak culture and individual disruption to manufacruning
behaviours may lead to bypassing processes.
of rules and procedures, and + The Group may be exposed
unsafe acts mvolving energetic to financial loss. regulatory
operauons. action, and potental liabilties
+ Upset conditions can otaur for workplace injuries and
during manufacturing operations farulities.
which may expose employees
to increased quantities of
hazardous materials.
* The handling and disposal of
energetics waste can result in
unplanned igitions.

The Board balieves that responsibility for the delivery of
world-class safety standards 1s an integral part of
aperational management accountabllity. The Board is
eommitted to ensuring that the Group's leadership operates
with health and safety as the top pnority, and that the
strength of the Group's safety culture and the quality of its
protactive systerms deliver operations where all eplayees
and visitors feel and are absolutely safe.

Al businesses were subject to an audit of their compliance
against the Group Safety Policy Manual (the “GSPM")
during the year. The G5PM, which was introduced in 2016,
sets out the best practce standards expected of all the
Group's businesses. Each business was awarded an inival
“compliance score”, and spedific acuons were agreed to
drive dentified improvemerts in comphance. The scores
for each business wil be moritorad ¢n an ohgong basis. A
health and safety warkstream is inciuded in the Operational
Exceflence Programme, focusing on culture develapiment,
communicaton mechanisms, competence management and
wellbeing.

The Group's Safety Leadership Programme corttinues to be
rolled-out across the Group, belbing to impreve culture and
behaviours.

The Group continues to wwest m state-of-the-art process
safery systems and equipment. The Group's safety and loss
prevention programmes require detafled pre-construction
reviews of process changes and new operauons, and safery
audits of operations are undertaken on a regular basis.

All businesses are expectad to pro-actively manage their
own risks but, in addition, the most significant sits risks at
each business and their associated mitigation programmes
are reviewed by the Risk Management Committee.

Al employees are encouraged 10 report potential hazards,
and to raise any health and safety concerns through the
appropriate channels.

Health and safety s induded on the agenda at every Board
meeting, and is discussad at the monthly Group Bxeartve
Comimittee meating. Further details on the Group's
approach to health and safety are sex out in the corporate
responsibility review.
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HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL RISKS continued

Environmental laws and regulations

MITIGATION
ACTIONS

RISK LIKELIHOOD OF POTENTIAL

DESCRIPTION QCCURRENCE IMPACTS

« The Group's operadons and * The Group could incur
owhership or use of real property substartial costs, inchuding
are subject to a number of federal, remediation costs, resource
state and local environmental laws restorstion ¢osts, fines and
and regulations, induding thase penalties. or be exposed to
relating to discharge of hazardous third-party property damage

ar personal Inpry dams. as a
result of liabilities assocated
with past practices or
wolations of emvironmentat
laws or non-compliance with
environmental permits.

materiake, remeadiation of
contaminated sites, and restoration
of damage to the environment.

= Ag certain sites thac the Group
owns ar operates, or formerly
owned or aperated, there is
known or potential contamination
for which chere is, or may be.
a requirement 1o remediarte or
pravide resource restoration.

+ Al of the Group’s businasses are certified w the
environmental manzgermnert system 150 14001, which
requires the setting of environmental goals and objectrves
foaused on local aspects and impacts.

+ The Group has montonng programmes at certain sites,
for which appropriate financial provision has been made. In
certain drcumstances. the Group procures environmenial
liabiliy insurance, subject to applicable nsurance conditions.

MARKET RISKS

Possible defence budget cuts

RISK UKELIHOOD OF POTENTIAL MITIGATION

DESCRIPTION OCCURRENCE IMPACTS ACTIONS TREND |

= Defence spending depends
on a complex mix of political
considerations, budgetary
constraints and the requirements
of the armed forces o address

+ The Group's financial
performance may be
adversely smpacted by lower
defence spending by its major
customners, either generally

specific threats and perform or in refation to certain

certain missions, Defence programmes.

spending may therefore be subject + Shortterm wrading and cash

to significart fluctuations from CONSLrRINTS may Impact cn

year ta year. the Group's ability to invest in
= ‘Whilst we anticipate that overall longer-term technologies and

deferce budgets in many of cur capabilites.

key rmarkets will remain subdued

but stable in the short to medium
term, there may be downward
pressure on defence budgets in
certain key prograrmime areas.

* In recognivon of the issues which have affected the
Group's tradiuonal NATO markets in recent years, business
development activities have been focused more an non-
MNATO tnarkats, particularty in the Middle East. The Group
continues ta leverage the benefies of its kocal presence in
the UAE.

* The Group continually assesses whether its planned organic
grawth strategies and product developments align with
government priorities for future funding. Efforts are being
focused, in particular, on the US Programs of Recerd, and
in the UK security market and Australia, where signficant
growth 1s anticipated over the next ten years.

+ Actions continue to be taken £o restructure and “right-
size” the businesses, and reduce overheads, 1o ensure the
businesses are sustainable and profitable, even in difficult
market conditions,
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Strategic report

PRINCIPAL RISKS continued

MARKET RISKS continued

Timing and value of orders

RISK LKELIHOOD OF POTENTIAL MITIGATION
DESCRIFTION OCCURRENCE IMPACTS ACTIONS TREND
- The Group's profits and cash flows = Anunmutigated delay in + Maxirising order intake remains a key objecuve for

the receipt of orders or
canceflation of existing
contracts could afect

the Group's earnings and
achievement of its budget n
any given financial year

are dependent. to a significant
extent, an the vrming of award
of defence contracts, In general,
the majority of the Group's
comtracts are of a relatively short
duration and, with the exception

of framework contracts with key = If the Group's businesses are
customers, 4o NGt Cover mukti- unable to continue trading
year requirements. profitably during pericds of

.

lawer arder intake, financial
performance will detenorate
and assets may be impaired.

Delays in the placement of orders
by certain NATO customers, as
a result of budgetary constraints,
may continue in the short o
medium term,

~ Whilst the Middle East has
become an important market for
the Group, it has become more
volatile as a result of increased
hostifities in the region and the
collapse in oil prices in recent
years.

the businesses. & Group-wide customer relatcnship
management system has been established and implemented
more fully over the last year, as one of the key projects
established under the sales and marketing workstream of
the Gperavonal Excellence Programme.

» The businesses continue to pursue long-term, multi-year

contracts with their major customers wherever possible.

The Group has uhdertaken several restructuring projects

n regent years, aimed at restoring the proficability of those

Croup businesses which have suffered most from order

defays.

« Sie opumisation plans continue to be refined to ensure that
the Group utilises its manufacturing facilities as efficiently as
possible, within the constraints mposed by export control
legislation and customer requirements.

Contract-relaced risks

RISK LIKELIHCOD OF POTENTIAL MITIGATION
DESCRIPTION OCCURRENCE IMPACTS ACTIGNS TREND
* The Group's govermment * The Group may suffer + The Group negotates with Customers to ensune the most =

financial loss if its contracts
are terminated by customers,
or a termngtion arising out of

contracts may be terminated at
any time and may contain other

unfavourable prowisions.

+ The Group miay need to the Group’s default may have
commit resources in advance of an adverse effect on its ability
contracts becomning fully-effective, 10 re-compete for future
to ensure prompt fulfilment of contracts and arders.
arders or (o ensble conditions * Unfavourable commerciat
precedent to be met contract termns may adversely

impact the Group’s working
capital posmon, particularly if
the receipt of payments by the
Group is delayed.

favourable contracual terms are agreed. Areas of sgrificant
judgment or enhanced risk require the review and approval
of the executive directors.

The Group has insbgated a commercial and contract risk
management training programme during the year, with a
view to improving firture contracting practices.

The Group endeavours to negotiate stage payments with

its customers wherever possible, in arder to minimise
exposure to significant cash oudlows on comracts which
may be terrninated at short notice.

Political risks

LIKEUMOOD OF POTENTIAL
QCCURRENCE  IMPACTS

RISK
DESCRIPTION

MITIGATION
ACTIONS

TREND

The Group is active in several
countries that are suffering from
polivcal, socal and economic

+ The Group's business in
certain countries may be
adversely affected n a way

that is material to the Group's
financial positon and the
results of its operations.

Pokitical dhanges could impact

instability.

In addition, there is a significant
risk of political unrest and changes
in the political stucture in ceriain

non-NATO coumries to which future defence expenditure
the Group currendy sells. strategy and the Group's
ability 10 export products to

certain countries.

» Dunng periods of urwest, delays
In obtaining esport beences ¢an
result in defzyed revenues.

* The Group's businesses strive: to maintain relationships at all
levels within the political structure of certain key countnies,
in order 1 ensure that they are aware of and ca2n react (o
proposed changes, if and when they otour

* VWherever possible, the businesses implement finanang
arrangements, such as letters of credit and advance
payments, for comracts with high-risk customers, which are
intended to mitigate the impact of a deterioration in the
custemer's financial positon and in certain arcumstances,
they may also procure polivcal risks insurance.

OPERATICMNAL RISKS

Management resource

LIKELIHOOD OF POTENTIAL
OCCURREMNCE  IMPACTS

RISK
DESCRIPTION

MITIGATION
ACTIONS

TREND




* The Group requires compatent
rmanagement 1o lead n dhrough
the next stage of its devefopment.
In challenging markets, there is an
increased risk of loss of key personnel.

= Asthe shape of the Group's business
also changes, with an increased
focus in high-technology areas such
as cyber-secunty, there is 2 need o
ensure that the businessas buitd and
retain an appropnate skifl Dase ©
enable them to tompete successfully
in new markets and product areas.

If key personnel are not
incentivised appropriately to
remain within the Group, its
operations may suffer from
loss of management expertise
and knowledge.

Faiture to recruit sufficient
suitably-qualified personnel

in keey areas of the business
may result in the Group failing
1o achieve its future growth
aspragons.

= The Group has appointed an Organisational Development
Director to facus on aulture change as part of the
Operational Excalience Programme, employee engagement
and the developrment of the Group's personnel.

¢ Incentivisation arrangements have been streamlined and
improved in certain areas of the business, to ensure that
employees are suitably incentrased to deliver key strategic

+ Succession plans are being developed further throughout
the business,

Manufacturing risks

RISK LIEUHOOD OF POTENTIAL MITIGATION
DESCRIPTION OCCURRENCE  IMPACTS ACTIONS TREND
= The Group’s manufacturing activities * Intervuptions to producionand  + Cne of the key objectives of the Operational Excellence <
may be expased to business P sales could resul in finandai Pragramme is o improve the Group’s "right-first-time”™ ang
continuity nsks, arisng from plam loss, reputavonal damage and on-time defivery performance.
f:.ilures.- supplier interruptions or loss of future business. + The Group continues to refine its requirements for
quality issises. * Failure to complete planned reparting of key performance indicators, in order to
» Sne conschdation pkins may not be site consolidation activines provide bester visibslity on operauonal performance, and
effectively implemented. ray resultin long-tarm to faclicate the identfication of potential production and
+ Planned new faclity developments m.efﬁf:ienda. and lncn-jasir\g quality wsues at an early stage
may be delayed as a result of ml_sisgnmemof organisational . aj) of the Group's businesses are required to prepare
operational issues. skills and market business continuity plans.
requirements. . . . .
. ! = The Greup insures certain business interrupuon risks
« A delay in completng new where appropmate.
manufacuring fadiities, such as . 3
those planned in Norway and  * Detailed plans are developed for all rescructuring and
i Tennesses, could constrain consolidation projects. Additionﬂ dedicated resource is
capactty and kmrt future being employed to oversee key invesument projects, and
business growth. progress will be dosely monitored by the Group Executive
Committee,
Technology risks
RISK LIKELIHGOD OF POTENTIAL MITIGATION
DESCRIPTION QCCURRENCE IMPACTS ACTIONS TREND

= The Group may fail to maintain its
position on key future programmes
due to issues with capability
development, technology transfer or
cost-effective manufacture.

The Group needs to continually

add new products ta its current
range, through mnovatian and
continuing emphasis on research
and development. New product
developmernt may be subject 1o
delays, or may fail ta achieve the
requigice standards to satisfy volume
manufacturing requirements and the
production of products zgainst high
reliability and safety criteria to meet
customer specifications.

- The Group also heeds to ensure that
it continues to upgrade its edsting
product range to compete with
emerging echrologies

.

Failure to abtain production
CONUrACTS On major
development programmes,
partcularly the US Programs
of Record, may significantly
impact the fuure performance
and value of individual
businesses.

Failure 1o complete planned
product developrment and
upgrades successfully may
have financial and reputational
impacts, and may nesult in
obsclescence orless of future
business.

= Close refationships are mantained wich custamers on alf
key future programmes, to ensure product and capability
development aligns with customer requirements.

+ The Operational Exceltence Prograrmme incudes a
workstraam on new product developenent, which wilk
shape the Group's future technalogy irvestment approach,
i order to ensure that resources are appliad appropnately
aaross the Group in support of the five year plan.

* Working groups have been established to drive and
co-grdinate the Group's wechnology grawth in cartain
key areas, such as courtermeasures, detection and cyber
security.
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Strategic report

PRINCIPAL RISKS continued

LEGAL AND COMPLIANCE RISKS

Product liability and other customer claims

RISK
DESCRIPTION

LIKELIHOOD OF POTENTIAL
OCCURRENCE IMPACTS

MITIGATION
ACTIONS

TREND

+ The Graup may be subject to

product liability and other dasms
from customers or third parties,
in connecuon with (i) the non-
compliance of products or services
with the customer's recuirernents,
due te faults in design or
productior (ii) the delay or failed
supply of the products or the
services mdicated in the contract,
or (i possible malfunction ar
misyse of produds.

As many of the Group's products
are single use devices, it 1s often
impaossible to conduct funchional

+ Substanual dums could harm
the Group's business and its
financal position.

In addidon, any acgident,
product failure, incident or
liabitity. even if fully insured,
could negatively affect the
Group's reputation among
customers and the public,
thereby making it more
difficult for the Group to
compete effectivety.
Material breaches in the
performance of contractual
obhgations may also lead (o

.

The businesses mantan ngarous control of ther production
procasses, moritoring cntical parameters on z batch or unit
basis, State-of-the-art techiques, inckiding statistical process
cantrol or Six Sigma, are applied and, where appropriate,
processes are attomated 1o reduce the scope for human
error. Detailed assessments of incoming companents

and materials are conducted to ensure compliance with
specifications,

Product liability claims from third partias for damage to
property or persons are generally coverad by the Group's
nsurance polices, subject to applicable insurance corditions,

testing without destroying the contract termmation and the
product, and this increases the risk calling of performance bands
of possible product fallure, either
in use or dunng customers’ own
sampla-based funcuonal tests,
Cor ,_" e and corr p risks
RISK LIKEUHOGD OF POTENTIAL MITIGATION
DESCRIPTION QCCURRENCE  IMPACTS ACTIONS TREND

The Group operates in over

fifty countnes worldwide, in a
highty-regulated environment, ant
is subject ta the applicable laws
and regulations of each of these
Jurisdictions. The Group must
ensure that all of its businesses,
its employees and third parties
providing services on its behalf
comply with all relevant legal
abligatons.

The nature of the Group's
operations could also expose it o
government mvestigations relating
T IMpOrt-export controls, money-
laundering, false accountng, and
corription or bribery.

The Group requires a significant
rumber of permits, licences and
approvals to operate its business,
which may be subject to non-
renewal or revocatian.

damage.

= lLoss of key operating permits
and approvals could resultin
tempaorary or permanent site
dosures, and loss of business.

* Non-compliance coukd result
n admiriscrative, civil or
nminal liabilities, and could
expose the Group to fines,
penalties, suspension or
debartnent, and reputational

The Group has a central legal and compliance function
which assists and monitors all Group businesses, supported
by dedicated internal legal resource in the US,

The Group operates under a Giobal Code of Business
Principles, which stipulates the standard of acceptable
business conduct required from alt employees and third
parties acting or the Group's behalf. The Group has also
adopted a Bnbery Act Campliance Manual, incorporating 2R
of its anti-bribery policies and procedures.

A significant proportion of the Group's mahagement
continue to receive training tn relation to ethics and anti-
cormuption on a regular basis.

The Group is currently co-aperating with the Serious
Fraud Office in relation to a seif-repart rmade by Chemnng
Technology Solutions Limited. as referred to in note 36 of
the Group financial statements.
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REPUTATIONAL RISKS

Cyberrelated risis

RISK LIKEHOOD OF POTENTIAL MITIGATION
DESCRIFTION OCCURRENCE MPACTS ACTICNS TREND
* Cyber-secuestty and related nsks The Group may suffer from  » A threac assessment has been compieted. and an acoon plan

are key emergent areas of cntical
impartance for al busnesses,
parucularly for those nvolved in
the defence and security sector.
Threats can emanare from a
wide variety of sources and
could target vanous systems fora
wide range of purposes, making
response particularty difficult
The dara and systerns which
need to be protected include
custormer-classified or sensitive
information, commercially-
sensitive information, employee-
related data and safety-cricicat
manufacturing systems.

critical systems fadures, or ts
intellectual property, or that

of ns custorners, may falinto
the hands of third parties.

In addition 1o business
merruption and financial

loss, the Group may suffer
reputanonat damage, and s
business of providing cyber-
security services (o Qustoiners
may be irreparably damaged.

to counter the Group's identified major threats has been
implermerted.

The Group adopts a number of cyber-security defence
measures, ENCOMPAssiNg, as appropraate to the nature of
the threaz and sensitivity of data or systems being protected,
hardware, software, system, process or people-based
solutions. YWhere approprate, governiment or caimmergial
accreditation of networks and systems is obtained in
support of the overall cyber-security programme,

All of the Group's UK businesses have achieved the “Cyber
Essentials™ accreditabon as a minimum standard, and the 1JS
businessas have either achieved, or are working towards,
compliance wich the LS DFARS standard.

A review of the Group's IT and security systems is included
within the internal audit programme.

FINANCIAL RISKS

- Details of the financial risks to which the Group 15 potertialy exposed and detals of mitigating factors are sat out in the financial review and note 20 of the Group financial

staterments,
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Strategic report

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY REVIEW

The Group acknowledges its obligation to ensure the responsible operation of its business
t all times, and is fully committed to sound and ethical business conduct in its interaction

with key stakeholders (shareholders, employees, customers, business partners and

suppliers), governments and regulators, communities and society, and the environment.

THE GROUP’S APPROACH

The Board has overall responsibitity for establishing and maintaining the
Group's policies in this area, and the Group Chief Executive is accountabie o
the Board for ensuring that the Group's businesses adhere to these policies.

The Board recognises that the long-tertm suecess of the Group will be
enhanced by a positive interaction with all of its stakeholders, and has
determined that the Group's corporate responsibility initiatives should be
focused on the following key areas:

* health and safety;

= employee supportand development:
+ environmental protection; and

» ethical business conduct.

The Board intends that the Group’s corporate responsibility approach will
be fully embedded within its busingss unhits, and the senior management
bonus plan incorporates specific objectives in the abave areas.

Further details of the Group's approach are set out below.

IN THE WORKPLACE

Health and safety

Policy and practices

The Board recognises that the highest levels of safety are required in
arder to protect empioyees, product users and the general public. The
Board believes that all incidents and injuries are preventable, and that all
employees have the right to expect 1o return home safely at the end of
every working day.

The Group Chief Executive has overalt responsibility for health, safety and
environmental matters across the Group. The Group Director of Safety
reparts directly to the Group Chief Executive, and is responsible for the
effective edministratioh and implementation of the Group’s health, safety
and environment strategy, The Group Director of Safety is a member of
the Group Executive Committee and reports on the performance of all
businesses against agread targets and objectives. The Group Chief
Executive reports monthly to the Board on all key health and safety ssues.

The Board requires that alf businesses systematically manage their health
and safety hazards, set objectives, and monitor progress by regular
measurement, audit and review. Each managing director is respensible for
the managernent of health and safety within their business, and for
providing adequate resqurces to satisfy the Board's requirements. All
managing directors have health and safety related objectives incorporated
within their anrual bonus plan,

Managers and supervisors in the Group's businesses are required to
enforce procedures, and to provide leadership and commitment to
promote and embrace 3 positive health and safety culture. The Board
emphasises the importance of individual responsibility for health and
safety at all levels of the organisation, and expects employees to report
porential hazards, to be involved in implementing solutions, and to adhere
to rules and procedures.

A key element in the continual improvement of health and safety
management is sharing best practice and lessons learntfrom incidents
across the Group's businesses and the wider industry. Accidents,
incidents and near misses are invesrigated, with actions generated to
prevent recurrence.

Within the Group's Operational Excellence Programme activities have
been identified that spacifically relate to health and safety, including
further work on culture development, communication mechanisms,
competence management and wellbeing.

34

Energetic events

There was one energetic incident of note during the year: an ignition within
our primary explosives manufacuring facility in Scodand. This is a remote
process, no one was hurt and all safety systems worked as designed.

Strategy
The Group’s safety improvement programmes fit intc three strategic areas:

Physical

The Group continues te invest in engineering solutions to remove people
from hazards. This intludes the automation of operations, increasing the
number of processes that are conducted remotely and further developing
protection systems. All business activities that expose employees to 2 high
level of hazard have been identified and improvement plans developed to
eliminate or reduce the exposure.

Systems

Al of the Group's businesses are certified to the international health and
safety management system OHSAS 18001, The businesses receive regular
internal, customer and regulator audits.

Additionally, all businesses were audited in the year for compliance with
the Group Safety Policy Manual and improvement plans established.
The Group Safety Policy Manual specifies industry-leading performance
practices and arrangements.

People

The Group continues to focus on leadership, culture and behaviours
thraugh the Safety Leadership Programme, which is delivered at all levels
across the Group.

Lost time incidents

The number of lost time incidents is one of the key performance
indicators monitored by the Group. The Group collects and reports lost
time incident rates using the US Occupational Safety and Health
Administration rules.

In 2017 the lost time incident rate deteriorated stightly but stlll compares
well 10 our peers and the wider industry. None of the lost time incidents
during the year were associated with our energetic materials or processes.

The Group's historical lost time incident rate {number of lost time
incidents per 100 employees per year) is as follows:

017 08 2015 cl4 1013
0.5% 0.35 0.57 043 083
Employees

The Board recognises the valuable cantribution that the Group's
employees continue to make to its success, and aims to provide a working
environment that refiects and rewards this,

At 3] October 2817 the Group had 2,651 (2016: 2,577} employees based
in four countries.

Employment practices

The Group's policy is to provide equal opportunities for alt employees,
irrespective of race, nationality, gender, sexual orientation, marital status,
religion or political belief, disability or age. The Group is committed to
meeting, at a minimum, the labour rights and legislaton requirements in
each country in which it operates and, in practice, often exceeds these.
The Group's employment practices policies are introduced at newly-
acquired busihesses at the earfiest opporwunity after they join the Group.




Human rights

The Group does not have a stand-alone human rights palicy but s
practices and policies adhere to internationally-recognised human
rights principles.

A statement on the Group's compliance with the Modern Slavery Act
2015 can be found on the Group's wehsite at www.chemring.co.uk.

Gender diversity
A breakdown by gender of the number of persons who are directors of
the Company, senior managers and other employees is set out below.

The Board currently has ane female member, and remains committed to 3
minimum of at least 25% female representation on the Board. The Board
recognises the importance of promating diversicy across the Group.

Serior managers are generally directors and functional heads within head
office and subsidiary companies.

Directors

Senior Managers

All Employees

=]
BN
fyes

Ethnic Divers

ity

Non-whice B Yhice il Female @ Male B

Development and training

The Group continues to address training and development requirements for
employees at allievels within the organisation. All businesses consider training
needs for their employees at a local level, in arder to ensure that they have
the right skill base to deliver their five year plan. The Board also reviews
future management requirements and succession plans on ar ongoing basis.

In the UK, Roke operates successful undergraduate placements,
internships and graduate development programmes, which have recgived
external recognition,

The Group has appointed an Organisational Development Director 1o
oversee emplayee development programmaes across the businesses, drive
Iimprovement in operationa) effectiveness and promote culture change.

Benefits

The Group aims to provide all employees with an attractive and
competitive benefits package. US employees receive health care and
selected other benefits.

The Board is keen to encourage empleyees to join share schermes in
order that they can share in the future success of the Group, and savings-
related share plans are therefore offered to employees where appropriate.

Communications

The Group pursues a policy of employee communication through
meetings (induding team briefings and works councils) and in-house
magazines by which emplayees are made aware of the progress of the
Group and the businesses ir which they work, The businesses also engage
with their employees through representative bodies and trade unions.

A Group magazine, "Chemring-i®, is published on a bi-annual basis and 1s
distributed to all employees.

IN THE ENVIRONMENT

Policy and practices

All of the Group’s businesses are certified to the environmental
management system SO 14001, which requires the setting of
environmental goals and objectives focused on local aspects and impacts.
In addition, expectations are sec for energy usage, waste generation and
water ytilisation, and performance is monitored across the Group.

Land quality

The Chemring Energetic Devices facility in Chicago, USA, is located on 3
site which has "superfund” status under the US contaminated land regime.
The business continues to work with consultants and the regulatory
authorities to ensure that its legal obligations in relation to this matter are
fully savisfied.

The Group carries a £3.1m {2016: £4.1m) provision in raspect of
environmental liabilities, which the Board considers to be adequate (see
note 21 of the Group financial statements),

Incidents
There were no significant environmental incidents in the year.

Performance

Greenhouse gas emissions

The Group is required to report on all of the emission sources of entities that
fall within its consalidated financial statements, as specified under the
Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Diirectors’ Report) Regulations
2013, The Group does not have responsibilizy for any emission sources of
entities which are not included in its consolidated financial statements.

Absolute values have been converted to carbon dioxide equivalents using
the UK Government Conversion Factors for Company Reporting 2G17.
The reporting period covered aligns with the Group's financlal year
ended 31 October 2017. The Group is not required to report onits
Scope 3 emissions.
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY REVIEW continued

Scope | emissions

Quanury Conversion COe

Combustian of fuel n any premises, machinery or equigment operated, owned or contralled by che Group {Mwh) factor (tannes)
Gas 31.357 0.184 5770
Heating oil 7109 0.268 1.905
Liquid perroleum gas 1,980 0.215 426

Ruantey Canversian COe

Fuels consumed by company-owned and (kased vehicles, excluding business iravel and empioyee commuting ftannes) factor (ronnes)
Diesel 108 3.099 335
Liquid petroleumn gas 86 2.94¢ 253
Petroleum 84 2.998 252

<O

The operation or control of any manufacturing process by the Group (tonnes)
On-site waste incineration 1.699
Total Scope | emissions 10,640

With reference to the six Kyoto substances, the Group does nat emit hydroflusrocarbons, perflusrocarbons or suiphur hexaffusride. Vailues for carbon
dioxide, methane and nitrgus oxides are included in the abgwe figures.

Scope 2 emissions

Quanuty Conversion CCe
Electricity: {Muwh) factor {tonnes)
Australia 1,218 0.81360 991
Naorway 41,684 0.01372 572
UK 16,272 0.35156 ST
USA 29,328 0.49845 14,619
Total Scope 2 emissions 21,903
The Group uses revenue for intensity measurement, which it considers ta be the most reliable comparator.
FUTH %16
Total emissions {tonnes CO,) 37,543 37,640
Group revenue {£m) 547 477
Total GO, per £m of revenue 59 79

The UK businesses participate in the CRC Energy Efficiency Scheme, with the exception of Chemring Energetics UK, which operates under a Climate
Change Agreement.

Yvaste
The waste total has increased due to tne inclusion of previously unreported waste streams.
2017 Wis 2018 014 2013
_Toanes Tonnes Tornes Tonnes Tonnes
Recycled, non-hazardous 945 956 968 731 2,240
Recycled, hazardous 652 64 287 262 226
Not recycled, non-hazardous 1,343 781 748 659 1,080
Not recycled, hazardous 7 32! 941 696 401 430
Total 3,261 2,744 2,699 2,053 4,036
Water 2017 014 2005 2014 2003
m m* m* mb w
Total water consumption 663,917 692,185 721,401 924,889 1,606,541
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IN THE COMMUNITY

Helping others

The Board recogn:ses that each of the Group's businesses has an important
role to play in its ocal community.

The Board operares a charitable policy, which confirms its commitment 1o
support selected charitable causes with a focus on the military and armed
services, and those linked to the local communities in which the Group's
businesses operate. Each business has its own localty-held charity budget,
and at a Group fevel, charitable donations are considered on a monthly
basis by the Executive Committee. The Group continues to sponsor the
British Army’s Parachute Regiment display team, the Red Devils.

In addition to making cash donations, the Group also encourages and
supports employees who undertake voluntary work in the local
commurity, where appropriate. During the year, employees donated their
time and services on a wide range of projects, several of which had an
educational bias.

The Group is involved with a number of educational initatives and has
refationships with several universities, whereby funding is provided for
students’ research activities.

Local impact

‘With regards to the impact of the Group's manufacturing activities on the
lecal community, at lacations where operations may inconvenience
neighbours through product proofing, the businesses liaise with focal
residents to minimise any impact. The Group is also cognisant of the
potential impact of its operations on the local environment, and is
addressing this through its environmental strategy.

IN THE MARKETPLACE

Palicy on the Sale of Goods and Services

The Beard has adopted a Policy on the Sale of Goods and Services, which
provides guidance to all stakeholders on the products and services that
the Graup will supply, to which customers and tc which countries, and
sats out a clear definition of what the businesses will not supply. All Group
businesses are raquired to comply with this policy, which addresses both
legal and reputational cansiderations with regards to certain products.
The policy is reviewed and updated on a regular basis.

Ethics and business conduct

The Group has adopted a Global Code of Business Principles, which
requires its amployees, its businesses and all third parties who act on the
Group's behalf to comply with the Group’s standards of acceptable
business conduct and appticable laws and regulations in alf of the countries
in which the Group operates.

Anti-bribery and corruption
The Group's Bribery Act Compliance Manual incorporates all of its
anti-corruption policies and procedures, including the following:

« requirements for bribery risk assessments to be carried out as part of
normal operating procedures;

+  Group-wide policies and pracedures an the appaintment of all sales
partners and other third party advisers, supulating due diligence
and contraciuzl requirements, approval levels, and monitering and
review processes;

+ palicies and procedures relating to third party service providers
and suppliers;

* regular training for management and employees working within
commercial, sales and marketing, finance and human resource
futrctions; and

+ policies and procedures on the giving and receiving of gifts and
hospitality.

The Group's US businesses have an ethical compliance programme to
satisfy US Government requirements for ethical training for employees,
compliance audits, a confidential reporting line for employees, and related
investigation procedures.

The Group has a whistleblowing policy and procedures in place which
enable all employees to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible
improprieties.

These arrangements reflect the requirements of the WK Bribery Act 2010,

STRATEGIC REFORT

Cautionary statement

This report contains forward-looking statements that are based on current
expectations or beliefs, a5 well as assumptions about future events. These
forward-looking statements can be identified by the fact that they do not
relate only to historical er current facts. Forward-looking statements often
use words such as anticipate, target, expect, estimate, intend, plan, goal,
believe, will, may, should, wouid, could, is confident, or other words of
similar meaning. Undue reliance should not be placed on any such
statements because they speak only s at the date of this document and,

by their very nature, they are subject to known and unknown risks and
uncertainties and can be affected by other factors that could cause actuat
resuits, and Chemring's plans and objectives, to differ materially from those
expressed or implied in the forward-locking statements.

There are a numhber of factors which could cause actual results to differ
materially from those expressed or implied in forward-looking
statements. Among the factors that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those described in the forward-looking statements are;
increased competition, the loss of or damage to one or more key
customer relationships, changes to customer ordering pacterns, delays in
obtaining customer approvals for engineering or price level changes, the
failure of one or more key suppliers, the outcome of business or industry
restructuring, the outcome of any litigation, changes in economic
conditions, currency fluctuations, changes in interest and tax rates,
changes in raw material or energy market prices, changes in laws,
regulations or regulatory policies, developments in tegal or public policy
doctrines, technotogical developments, the failure to retain key
management, or the key timing and success of future acquisition
opportunities or major investment projects.

Chemring is under no obligation to revise or update any forward-looking
statement contained within these financial statements, regardless of
whether those statements are affected as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise, save as required by law and regulations.

The strategic report on pages 4 to 37 has been approved by the Board of
directors and signed on its behalf by:

Michael Flowers
Group Chief Executive
18 January 2018
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CARL-PETER FORSTER
Non-Executive Charrman

Board length of service
(as at [8 Jan 18):
1 year, 8 months

MICHAEL FLOWERS
Group Chief Executive

- ANDREW LEWIS

Group Finance Director

SARAH ELLARD
Group Legal Director
& Company Secretary

Board length of service
(as at 18 Jan 18):
3 years, 7 months

Board lengch of service
{as at 18 Jan 18):
| year

Board {ength of service
{as at {8 jan 18):
6 years, 4 months

Length of service with the
Group (as ac 18 Jan 18):

Length of service with the
Group {as at 18 jan 18):

Length of service with the
Group (as at 18 jan E8):

Length of service with the
Group (as at 18 Jan 1B):

| year, 8 months I 1 years, || months | year 13 years, |1 months

Experience: Experience: Experience: Experience:

« Board experience at Chairman * Extensive senior management « Baensive nternational experience | + Legal, compliance and
and Chief Executive level experience in the defence sector in the defence sector governance expertise

Extensive international experience
within the industrial goods and
engineering sectors

> Expertise in operational excellence
and lean manufacturing

= Internauonal experience in
both service and manufacturing
industres

« Board experience at Finance
Director level
» Chartered Accountant

+ Chartered Secretary

Carl-Peter Forster joined the Group
as ain independent non-executive
director and Chairman-designate
on | May 2016, and was appointed
Chairman of the Board an

b july 2016,

Cart-Peter formerly held senior
leadership positions in some of

the world’s larpest automative
manufacturers, induding BMW,
General Motors and Tata Motors
(including Jaguar Land Rover).
Carl-Peter is currendy the Senior
independent Director at Ml pic and a
non-executive director of Cosworth
Ltd, and was previously a non-
executive director of Rexam PLC and
Rolls-Royce plc. He is also Chairman
of the London Taxd Company, a
member of the Board of Volvo Cars
Corporation, a member of the Board
of Geely Auromobile Holdings, and

a member of the Advisory Board of
Rock Tech Lithium, Inc.
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Michael Flawers was appointed

to the Board as Group Chief
Executive on 24 June 201 4, having
previously been Group Director -
Munitions, with responsibility for
running and subsequendy disposing
of the Group’s Eurcpean munitions
businesses.

Michael joined Chemring in 2006,
and ran the Group’s Australian
operations for seven years, Prior to
joining Chemring, Michael worked
for BAE Systems in prograrmme
managemnern roles, principally In the
weapons systems and electronic
warfare domains. Prior to his time
with BAE Systems, Michaal served
as zn officer in the Australian Army
far 22 years, and was a graduate

aof the Australian Command and
Staff College and the British Royal
Military Coliege of Science.

Andrew Lewis joined the Group on
2 January 2017 and was appoirted
to the Board as Group Finance
Director an |9 January 2017.

Andrew spent eight years as Group
Finance Oirector of Avon Rubber
plec., where he also performed

the Interim CEQ role during 2015,
following the retirement of the
previous CEQ,

Prior to joining Avon, Andrew

was Group Financial Controller

of Rotork pic and before

that he was a Director at
PricewaterhouseCoopers in Bristol
and New Zealand.

Sarzh Ellard was appointed as
Group Legal Director on 7 October
2011, having been Group Company
Secretary since 1998,

Prior to joining the Group, Sarah
trained and worked at Ernst &
Young LLP. She is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators.



ANDREW DAVIES
Non-Execunve Director

DANIEL DAYAN
Nor-Executive Director

HEF

NIGEL YOUNG
Senigor independent
Non-Executive Director

o |

Board length of service Board length of service Board length of service
{asat i8 Jan 18): (as at 18 Jan 18): (as at 18 Jan 18):

| year, B months | year, 10 months 4 years, 9 months

Length of service with the Length of service with the Length of service with the

Group (as at |8 Jan 18):
| year, 8 months

Group (as at 18 Jan 18):
| year, |0 months

Group (as at |18 jan 18):
5 year, 5 months

Experience:

+ Board experience at Chigf
Executive level

* Extensive knowledge of the
internatioral defence industy

Experience:

* Board experience at Chief
Becutive level and as a non-
executive director

« Experience in manufacturing and
engineerning sectors

Experience:
* Previously Interim Chief Financial

Officer of the Group from August
2012 to January 2043

» Finance experience from previous
CFO positions

+ Chartered Accountant

Andrew Davies was appointed
as an independent non-executive
director on |7 May 2016.

Andrew has a wealth of relevant
sector experience, having served
in senior operational and strategic
roles at executive committee
level at BAE Systems plc for more
than fourteen years. He was
formerly Chief Executive of
Wates Group Ltd.

Daniel Dayan was appointed as an
independent non-executive director
and Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee on 7 March 201 6.

Daniel is alse currendy Group CEQ
of the Kléckner Pentaplast Group,

Daniel has held 2 number of senior
level executive and non-executive
roles wathin the engineering and
manufacturing sector, including an
eight-year appointment as Chief
Executive of Fiberweb plc and

two years as Chairrman and CEO
of LINPAC before its acquisition
by Kléckner Pentaplast. He also
previously served as a non-executive
director of Stobart ple and as 2
trustee in the charity sector.

Nigel Young became an
Independent non-executive
director and Chairman of the
Audit Committee on | May 2013,
following his appointment as
Interim Chief Financial Officer in
August 2017, He was appainted
as Senior Independent Director in
March 2016.

Migel’s previous appointments
include Finance Director of

ALVIS PLC, First Technology PLC,
Babcock International Group PLC
and Morgan Advanced Materials
Pic. Nigel has also undertaken a
number of interim finance roles,
including one at McBride Flc. He is
currently a non-executive director
and Chairman of P2i Limited,

a pravider of liquid repellent
nanotechnology, and is a trustee
and Board member of Orbis UK,
a leading global eye charity.

COMMITTEE
MEMBERSHIP

- Audit Committee

. Nominaton Committes
. Retruneration Committee

. None
D Denote Chairman
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The direciers present their annual report, together with the audited
financial statements of the Group and the Campany, for the year ended
31 October 2017,

The following sections of the annual report are incorporated into the
directors’ report by refarence:

+ strategic report on pages 4 to 37

*  COrporate governance repaort on pages 44 to Sh;

*  Audit Committee report on pages 52 to 55;

= directors’ remuneration report on pages 56 to 74;

» directors’ responsibilities statement on page 43: and

* notes to the Group financial statements as detailed in this section.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The strategic report on pages 4 1o 37 provides a review of the Group’s
business development, performance and position during and at the end of
the financial year, its strategy and likely future development, key
performance indicators, and a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the business. Further information regarding financial
risk management policies and finangial instruments is given in note 20 1o
the Group financial statements.

There have been na significant events since the balance sheet date, other
than is referred to in note 36 to the Group financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit attributable to the Group's shareholders for the year was
£6.6m (2016: £11.1m).

The directors are recommending the payment of a final dividend of
2.0p per ordinary share which, together with the interim dividend of
i.Op per share paid in September 2017, gives z total for the year of 3.0p
(2016: 1.3p). The final dividend is subject to approval by sharehoiders at
the Annual General Meeting on Z0 March 2018 and has not therefore
been included as a liabilicy in these financial statements,

IMRECTORS AND THEIR INTERESTS

The directors are shown on pages 38 and 39,

Andrew Lewis was appointed as Group Finance Director on
19 January 2017.

In accordance with the Company’s Artcles of Association, all directors
are required to submit themselves for re-election ar every Annual
General Meeung. All directors will therefore be seeking re-election at the
Annual General Meeting on 20 March 2018.

Detalls of the service contracts entered inta between the Company and
the executive directors are set out in the directors’ remuneration report
on page 62. The non-executive dirgctors do not have service contracts
with the Company.

The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the
benefit of its directors, which were in effect throughoyt the year and
remain in force at the date of this report. The directors have the benefit
of a directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy.

Other than in relation 1o their seryice contracts, none of the directors is
or was beneficially interested in any significant contract o which the
Group was a party during the year ended 31 October 2017,

information required in relation w directors’ shareholdings is set out in
the directors’ remuneration report on page 70.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

At 7 january 2018, the following substantial hoidings 1 the ordinary share
capital of the Company had been notified to the Company in accardance
with Chapter § of the Disclasure and Transparency Rules of the Financial
Conduct Authority. It should be noted that these holdings may have
changed since the Company was rotified; however, natification of any
change is not required until the next notifiable threshold is crossed.

Name % Interesc

Schroders Plc 1.1
[nvesco Limited 8.1
Sterling Strategic Value Fund 5.A_, Sicav-Raif 6.4
Neptune Investment Management Limited 59
UBS Global Asset Management 55
Old Mutual Asser Managers 5.1
1 O Hambro Capital Management Limited 5
Prudential Pic 5.0
Majedie Asset Management Limited 5.0
Thameside MBC re Greater Manchester Pension Fund 5.0
Jupiter Asser Management Limited Below 5.0
FIL Limited Below 5.0
] P Morgan Chase & Co 49
Investec Asset Manzgement Limited 4.8
Ameriprise Financial, Inc, 48
AXA S A and its group of companies 4.4
Standard Life Investments Limited 4.4
8T Pension Scheme Trustees Limited as Trustee of

the BT Pension Scheme 38

EMPLOYEES AND EMPLOYEE CONSULTATION

Details of the Group’s employment policies and employee consultation
practices are set out in the corporate responsibility review on pages 34
and 35.

POLITICAL DONATIONS

No political donations were made during the year (2016: £nif).

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

The Group cantracts with a wide range of customers, comprising
goverhments, armed forces, prime contractors and OEMs across the
globe, The US Department of Defense is the largest single customer. and
procures the Group's products under a significant number of separate
contraces placed with individual Group businesses.

The Group's businesses utilise many suppliers across the world, and
arrangements are in place to ensure that businesses are not torally retiant
on single suppliers for key raw materials or componants,

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group's research and development expenditure for the year is
detailed in the financial review on page 20.



CHANGE OF CONTROL

Individual Group businesses have contractual arrangements with third
partias, entered into in the normal course of business, which may be
amended or may terminate on a change of controt of the relevant
business, ar in certain circumstances, following a takeover of the Group.

The most significant agreements entered in to by the Group which contain
provisions granting the counterparties certain rights in the event of a change
of control of the Company are the revolving credit facility agreements
entered into with the Group's banks, and the loan note agreements, pursuant
to which the Company issued notes under a series of private placements.
These agreements provide that, in the event of a change of a cantral, the
Compary must repay all outstanding borrowings, together with accrued
interest and other sums owing under each agreement.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHAREHOL DER RIGHTS
General

The Company’s share capital consists of ordinary shares of Ip each and
preference shares of £] aach, which are fully paid-up and quoted on the
main market of the Landon Stock Exchange. Full details of the movements
in the issued share capital of the Company during the financial year are
provided in note 23 to the Group financial statements.

Dertails of the rights attaching to shares are set out in the Articles of
Association (the "Artidles”). All holders of ordinary shares are entted o
attend, speak and vote at any general meeting of the Company, and 1o
appoint a proxy or proxies to exercise these rights. At a general meeting,
every shareholder present in person, by proxy or {in the case of a
corporate member) by corporate representative has one vote on a show
of hands, and on & poil has one vote for every share held, The Notice of
Annual General Meeting specifies deadlines for exercising voting rights
and appointing a proxy or proxies to vote in respect of the resolutions to
be passed at the Annual General Meeting.

There are no restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares in the capital
of the Company, other than certain restrictions which may from 1ime 1o
time be imposed by law. ln accordance with the Market Abuse Regulation,
certain employees are required to seek the approval of the Company to
deal in its shares.

The cumularive preference shares carry an antitlement to a dividend at
the rate of 7p per share per annum, payable in equal instalments on

30 April and 31 October each year. Holders of the preference shares have
the right on a winding-up to receive, in priority to any other classes of
shares, the sum of £| per share together with any arrears of dividends.

The Company is not aware of any agreements between shareholders that
may resultin restrictions on the wransfer of securities and/or voting rights.

The Company’s Articles may only be amended by special resolution ata
general meeting of sharehclders.

Issue of shares

Under the provisions of section 551 of the Companies Act 2006

(the "Act”), the Board is prevented from exercising its powers under
the Artides to allot shares without an authority contained either in the
Articles or in a resolution of the shareholders passed in general meeting,
The authority, when given, can last for a maximum period of five years,
but the Board proposes that renewal should be sought at each Annual
General Meeting. An ordinary resolution, seeking such authority, will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Section 56| of the Act requires that an allotment of shares for cash may
not be made unless the shares are first offered to existing shareholders on
a pre-emptive basis in accordance with the terms of the Act. in
accordance with general practice, to ensure that small issues of shares can
be made without the necessity of convening a general meeting, the Board
proposes that advantage be taken of the provisions of section 571 of the
Act not to apply the Act's pre-emptive requirements, Accordingly, a
special resolution will be proposed art the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting which, if passed, will have the effect of granting the directors the
power to allot not more than 5% of the issued ordinary share capital ac
the date of the Annual General Meeting free of the requirements of
section 564 of the Act. No issue of these shares will be made which would
effectively alter the control of the Company without the prior approval of
the shareholders in general meeting.

Purchase of own shares

The Company did not purchase any of its ordinary shares (2016: nil)
during the year. At 3| October 2017, the Company held a total of
2.198.,814 Ip ordinary shares in treasury (representing 0.8% of the
ordinary shares in issue on 31 October 2017},

A special resclution will be proposed art the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting to renew the Company's authority to purchase its own shares in
the market up to a limit of 10% of its ‘ssued ordinary share capital. The
maximum and minimurs prices will be stated in the resolution at the date
of the Annual Ganeral Meating. The directors believe tharitis
adventageous for the Company to have this flexibility to make market
purchases of its own shares, The directars of the Company may consider
holding repurchased sharas pursuant to the authority conferred by this
resalution as treasury shares. This will give the Company the ability to
reissue treasury shares quickly and cost effectively, and will provide the
Company with additional flexibility in the management of its capital base.
Any issues of treasury shares for the purposes of the Company’s employee
share schemes will be made within the 10% anti-dilution limit set by The
investment Assaciation. The directors wil only exercise this authority if
they are satisfied that a purchase would resultin an increase in expected
earnings per share and would be in the interests of shareholders generaily.

EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEMES AND PLANS

Approach to share ownership

The Group actively encourages its employees to share in che future
success of the Group, and therefore operates share-based arrangements
to provide incentives and rewards to employees.

The Group operated four share-based incentive plans during the year, as
set out below. Further decails of awards and vesting are provided ir note
27 to the Grougp firancial statements.

The Chermnring Group 1008 UK Sharesave Plan
(the “UK Sharesave Plan™}

The UK Sharesave Plan is open to all eligibie UK empioyees. Emplayees
may choose between three and five year savings periods, at the end of
which the emplayee can choose to exercise the option or seek the return
of their savings. A grant of opoons was made on 27 july 2017,

The Chemring Group Performance Share Plan
(the “PSP™)

The PSP expired on 21 March 2016 but was previously the primary
long-term incentive plan for executive directors and senior employees.
Discretionary awards were granted under the PSP over a fixed number of
shares by reference to salary, with awards ordinarily vesting, subject to
meeting performance criteria, on the third anniversary of the grant date.
Awards remain outstanding under the PSP but no further awards can be
made under the plan.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

The Chemring Group Performance Share Plan 2016
(the “2016 PSP")

The 2016 PSP is now the primary long-term incentive plan for executive
directors and senfor employees. Discretionary awards are granted under
the PSP gver a fixed number of shares by reference to salary. with awards
ordingrily vesting, subject to meeting performance criteria, on the third
anniversary of the grant date. Awards were granted under the plan on

24 March 2017,

The Chemring Group Restricted Share Plan (the “RSP")

The RSP provides for the discretionary grant of deferred share awards to
selected key employees. Executive directors are not eligible to participate.
Awards typically vest on the second or third anniversary of the grant date,
subject to meeting cantinuous service criteria. Awards under the RSP may
only be satisfied with market-purchased shares.

GOING CONCERN

Derails of the conclusions arrived at by the directors in preparing the
financial statements on a going concern basis are set aut in the corporate
governance report on pages 50 and 51

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION, AS REQUIRED BY LISTING
RULES REQUIREMENT 2.8.4

The annual report is required to contain certain information under Listing
Rules Requirement 9.8.4. Where this informartion has not been cross-
referenced within the Group financial statements, it can be found in the
following sections:

* capitalised interest (see note {2);

* long-term incentive schemes (see directors’ remuneration report);

+ allocation of equity securities for cash (see note 23);

* contracts of significance (see note 14);

« election of independent directars {see carporate governance report);

« contracwsal arrangements (see directors' report);

* details of independent directors (see corporate gavernance report);
and

= subistantial shareholders {see directors’ report),

No profit forecasts are issued by the Group and no directors have waived
any current or future emoluments. Other than in relation to ordinary
shares held in treasury, no shareholders have waived or agreed to waive
dividends,

Nane of the shareholders is considered to be a Controlling Shareholder
{as defined in Listing Rules 6.1.2.A) and the Group complies with the
independence provisions of the Listing Rules.

PROVISION OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR

Fach director at the date of this report confirms that, so far as they are
each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s
auditar is unaware, and each director has taken all the steps that he or she
aught to have taken as a director to make himself or herself aware of any
relevant audit infarmation and to establish that the Company's auditar is
aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with
the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006,
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AUDITOR

As outhned in the Audit Committee report, the Group s undertaking

a tender process for the selection and appointment of 2 new external
ayditor to replace Deloitte, who have orovided external audit services to
the Group for more than fifteen years. Pending conclusion of this process
and the appointment of a new auditor, resolutions will be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting to reappoint Delaitte and to
authorise the directors to determine the external auditor's remuneration,

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting o be held
on 20 March 2048, together with explanatory notes, appear in the
separate Notice of Annual General Mesting sent to all sharehoiders.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The directars are responsible for preparing the annyal report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financiai statements for
each financial year. Under that law, the directors are required to prepare
the Group financial statements in accardance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as adopted by the European Union ("EU™)
and Articie 4 of the IAS Regulation, and they have also chosen to prepare
the parent company financial statements under IFRS as adopted by the
EU. Under company law the directors must not approve the accounts
unless they are sausfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that
period. In preparing these financial statements, 1AS 1 Presentetion of
Financial Statements requires that directors:

» properly select and apply accounting policies;

» present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that
provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information:

+ provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements of IFRS is insufficient to enable users to understand
the impact of particular transactions, other &vants and conditions
on the entity’s finandial position and financial performance; and

« make an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a
going cancern.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions,
disclose with reasonable zccuracy at any time the financial position of the
Group and the Company, and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006, They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company, and hence for
raking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
ather irregularives.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance znd integrity of the
corporate and financial information included on the Company’s website,

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ fraem legislation in ather
jurisdictions.



DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Each of the directars, whose nares and functions are listed on pages 38
and 39, confirms that 1o the best of their knowledge:

« the financial statements, prepared in accordance with [FRS as adopted
by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assers, liabilities, financial
position and profic or loss of the Company and the undertakings
in¢luded in the consolidation taken as a whole;

+ the strategic report includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the pasition of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together
with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they
face; and

= the annual report and accounss, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced
and understandable, and provide the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company’s performance, business model
and strategy.

The directors’ report and responsibility statement was approved by the
Board of directors on 18 January 2018 and is signed on its behalf by:

N WY 0 & P

Michael Flowers
Group Chief Executive

Gr&up Legal Director
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board 1s carmmitted to upholding high standards of corporate
governance, protecting and growang shareholder value, and engaging
in a fair and transparem manner with all of the Group's stakeholders.
The Board takes responsibilty for approving the Group's long-term
goals and strateges, and provides overal financial and organisaticrial
contrel. The Board also ensures that the Group's businesses have
approprate ang effectve internal control and risk management
systems,

2017 was the first full financial year for the new Board members
appointed during 7016, It was a year for developing a deeper
understanding of the Group's businesses, its systems and processes,
and the fonger-term strategic direction of the Group.

The Board travelled to the US in July to meet with the members of the
Graup's US Board. Given the narure of our business interests in the
US$, most of the Group's US businesses are subject to the
reguirements of a Special Security Agreement with the US
Government, which imposes certain restrictions on the control and
influence we can exert over these businesses. This arrangement has
the potential to introduce additional chalienges from a governance
perspective, abd it is vital that the main Board maintains 2 strong
relationship with the US Board in order to ensure that all of our
respective stakeholders’ objectives are being addressed. The US
Board was strengthened during the year with the appeintment of a
new outside director with considerable US defence industry
experience, and we are already seeing the benefits of his contribution.

With regards tc broader stakeholder engagement, | met with a
number of our larger, institutional shareholders aver the course of the
year in order to elicit their views of the Group and their aspirations for
our future development. Daniel Dayan, the Chairman of our
Remuneration Committee, also spent a considerable amount of time
engaging with sharehclders on a new directors' remunetation polity,
and whilst a decision was taken not to proceed with seeking approval
for the new policy at the 2017 Annual General Meeting, the feedback
that was received will be very valuable in framing the updated policy
that will require shareholder approval at the 2019 Annual General
Meeting.

The Board is aware of the consultation being undertaken by the
Financial Reporting Council on the proposed new UK Corporate
Governance Code, and in particular, the proposed recommendations
that the Board should consider input from the workforce as part of its
normal operation in future. Michael Flowers, the Group Chief
Exacutive, has already started to engage with small groups of
employees during his visits to our sites, and we will consider how we
can build upon this over the course of the next year,

During the latter part of 2017, the Board undertook an externalty-
facilitated review of its performance using our retained advisors,
Lintstock Limited. This highlighted several areas in which we can seek
to improve our effectiveness going forward, and these are now being
addressed.
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Compliance statement

in the year under review. the Company was required to apply the main
ard supporting principles of good governance set out in the LUK
Corporate Governance Code issued in April 2016 by the Financial
Reporting Councll {the “Code™). The detailed report below sets out
haw the Comparny applied these principles in practice.

The Campany was in compliahce with the provisions of the Code
throughout the year ended 31 Qctober 2017, with the exception thata
formal performance evaluation of the Board was not completed during
the year. As referred to above, the evaluarion was complered after the
year end.

Carl-Peter Forster
Chairman



THE BOARD

Composition of the Board and independence

The Board currently comprises three executive directors and four
non-executive directors (including the Chairman). The biographical derails
of individual directors, including details of their other business
commitments, are set aut on pages 38 and 39,

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive are separate and clearly
deflned, in accordance with the requirements of the Code, with the
division of responsibilities set out in writing and agreed oy the Board.

The Board considers all of the current non-executive directors to be
independent in judgement and character, and considered Carl-Peter
Forster to be independent on his appointment as Chairman. Nigel Young
was emplayed as the Group's Interim Chief Financial Officer for a period
of six months from August 2012, prior to his appointment as a
non-executive director, but the Board does not consider that this shoro
period of employment impacted his independence, and his contribution 1o
the Board continyes to be impartial and abjective. Mr Young was
appeinted as Senior Independent Director in March 2016.

The Board considers that the current balznce of executive and
non-executve influence on the Board is zppropriate for the Company,
taking into account its size and status.

Matters reserved for approval of the Board

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved to it for consideration and approval, including:

Strategy and management Approval of the Group's five year plan and annual budget

Approval of acguisitions, disposals and major capital expendire

Approval of changes to the Group’s capital structure

Financial matters and internal controls « Owersight of the Group’s systems of financial controf and risk management
+ Approval of financial statements and results announcements

* Recommendation and declarzuon of dvidends

Corparate governance + Undertakirg performance reviews of the Board and its commitiees.
- Approval of pdlicies on financing and weasury, ethical matcers, and health and safery
+ Receiving reports on the views of shareholders
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Governance

- CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT continued

Board responsibilities

T e key responsibilities of the Board members are as follows:

Chairman Respansible far the leadership and governance of the Board as 2 whole

Ensures that the Board 1s kept properly infarmed and is consulted on ail decisions
reserved (@ it

+ Promotes construcuve —elauons between the executive and non-executive directors
» Ensures that the training and development needs of directors are dentified
*+ Ensures that the performance of the Board 1s evaluated on a regular basis

» Ensures that communication with shareholders is effective. and acts as a condurt to
ensure that the views of shareholders are communicated to the Board

Group Chief Executive ~ Responsible for the leadership and day-to-day management of the business

* Develops strategy for Board approval and ensures that the agreed suategy is
implernented successfully

Presents the annual budget and five year plan to the Board for approval and delivers
agreed objecoves

Idertifies mew business opportunites, and potential acquisivons and disposals

» Manages the Group's risk profite, incuding the management of health and safety
Ensures that the Board 1s fully informed of alt key maters

Non-executive directors + Participate in the development of strategic objectives and manitor the performance of
executive management sn achieving the agreed objecoves

Monitor the Group's financial performance

Consider the integrity of the Group’s financial informaticn, and whether the financial
comrals and risk management systems are robust and defensible

Meert periodically with the Group's senior management and wisit operations

Meet regularly without the executive directors being present

{ + Determine the appropnate remuneraton policy for the executive directors

Senior Independent Director « Provides support to the Chairman and acts as a trusted sounding board
Reviews the Chairman's performance with the other non-executive directors

Awailabie vo meet shareholders if they have concerns which canhot be resolved through
the normal channels

Company Secretary Secretary to the Board and its committees

Under the direction of the Charman, responsible for maintaining good informadien
flows within the Board and its committees

Develops Board and committee agendas. and collates and distributes papers

Assists with the induction of new directors

Keeps directors informed about changes to their duties and responsibifities

Provides advice on legal, regulatory and corporate governance matters

Available 1o all directors
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OPERATION OF THE BOARD

Bouard meetings and attendance

The Board meets at least eight times a year. The Board receives reports from the Group Chief Executive, the Group Finance Director, the Group Legal
Director and the Graup Director of Safety as standing agenda items at every scheduled Board meeting. Members of the senior leadership team and
external advisers atiend Board meetings by invitation, as appropriate.

The following table shows the attendance of directors, who served during the year, at meetings of the Board, the Audit Cammittee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee:

Auait Nomnation  Remuneration
Baard Carnurittes Commutter Comnitiee
{8 scheduled 4 scheduled (2 scheduled (3 scheduled
Meetmgs and  Meetmgs and  meetingsand  meetingsand
€ ad hoo I ad hoc I ad hot Jad hoc
Board member maetings) meeung} meeung) meeungs)
Cari-Peter Forster 14(14) - 3(3) 6(6)
Andrew Davies 14(14} 5(5) 3(3) &{6)
Daniel Dayan 13¢14) 5(5) Ele)] 6(6}
Sarah Etlard 13¢14) - - -
Michael Flowers 14{14) - — -
Andrew Lewis 8(9) - - -
Nigel Young 14(14) 5(5) 3(3) 6(6)

The maximurmn number of meetings which each director could have attended is shown in brackets.

In addiuon to the scheduled meetings, six ad hoc Board meetings, one ad hoc Audit Committee meeting, one ad hoc Normination Committee meeting
and three ad noc Remuneration Committee meetings were convened to deal with matters arising between scheduled meetings. All absences of
direcrors were assaciated with unscheduled, ad hoc meetings.

During the year, the Chairman met regutarly with the non-executive directors without the executives being present,

Board activity throughout the year

In addition to its routine scheduled business, the Board also undercock the following activities during the year:

November 2016

December 2016

January 2017

March 2017

* Review of updates 1o the Group strategy
= Approval of future finanaing stracegy
= Consideravon of the Group's health and

= Appointment of Andrew Lewns as
the new Group Finance Director

= Review of US Programs of Record

* Report from the Audit Committee

~ Approval of preliminary
announcement and annual resuks

» Consideration of acquisition
strategy and potential targets

= Review of updated tax

safety plan * Raview of the Operational * Truwning on the Groub's Bribery strategy
» Approval of additional US bank faaiices Bxceflence Programme Act Compliance Manual
April 2017 June 2017 July 2017 September 2017

.

Board visit to Norway and presentations
from the management of Chemring Nobel

+

Aeview of the US energetics market

Consideration of potental acquisition
opportunity

* Appraval of interim results

+ Consideravon and approval of the
Group T strategy

= Review of the Group's senior
leadership team

* Board visit to Alloy Surfaces

* Review of fulsre capital
expenditure plans for Kilgore

» Consideranon of updated Group
strategy

= Approval of 2018 budget
* Review of updated financmg

strategy
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Governance

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT continued

BOARD EFFECTIVENESS
Appointments to the Board

External search consultancies are generally appointed to assist with the
recruitment of new directors.

Drax Executive were appointed in july 2016 to undertake the recruitment of a
new Group Finance Director. The search process was led by Michael Flowers,
with support fram the Chairman and Nigel Young, Andrew Lewis was
identfied as the preferred candidate and was invited to meer all members of
the Board prior to approval of his appointment in December 2016

Dirax Executive were also engaged by the Group to provide consultancy
services on arganisational development during the year.

Diversity

The Board supports the principles set outin Lord Davies' Review into
Women on Boards published in February 2611, and the Board also
recognises the importance of promaoting diversity across the Group. The
Board currently includes ane female member, and remains committed to
aminimum target of at least 25% female representation on the Board,
amongst senior management and across the Group in general,

Re-election of directors

In accordance with the Company’s Artides of Association, all directors are
required Lo submit themnselves for re-election at each Annual General Meeting.

The papers accompanying the MNotice of Annual General Meeting include a
statement fram the Chairman confirming that the performance of sach
non-executive director seeking re-election at the meeting continues to be
effective and that each director cortitues to demanstrate commitment to
their role.

Induction

An internal induction programme on the Group's operations, and its
strategic and business plans, is provided for newly-appointed directors.,
Directars are invited 1o meet key members of the sanior management
team at the earliest opportunity, and site visits are arranged to facilitate
their understanding of the Group’s operations.

The Company Secretary also provides detailed information on the
eperation of the Board and its committees, directors’ legal duties, and
respansibilities on appaintment.

Training and development

The Company meets the cost of appropriate external traning for directors,
the requirement for which is kept under review by the Chairman.

Directors are continually updated on the Group’s businesses and the
maztters affecting the markets in which they operate. The Company
Secretary updates the Board on a regular basis with regards to regulatory
changes affecting the directors and the Group's operations generally, and
briefings are provided by the Group’s advisers on key developmentsin
areas such as financial reporting and executive remuneration practice.
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Independent advice

All directors are entitied to take independent professional advice in
furtherance of their duties at the Company's expense, should the need
arise. Mo director had reasan to seek such advice during the year.

Cenflicts of intereast

All directors have a dury under the Companies Act 2006 (the “2006 Act™)
to avoid & situation in which he or she has or can have a direct or indirect
interest that conflicts or may possibly conflict with the interests of the
Company. The Company’s Articles of Association include provisions for
dealing with directors’ conflicts of interest in accordance with the 2006
Act. The Company has procedures in pface to deal with situations where
directors may have any such conflicts, which require the Board to:

» cansider each conflict situation separately on its particular facts;

« consider the conflict situation in conjunction with the rest of their
duties under the 2006 Acy;

* keep records and Board minutes as to authorisations granted by
directors and the scope of any approvals given; and

+ regularly review conflict authorisation.

Performance evaluation

The Board engaged in an externally-facilitated review of its performance
in lace 2017, utilising the services of Lintstock Limited. The evaluation
considered tapics under the following headings:

- Board composition and expertise;

+ Board dynamics;

+  management and focus of meetings;

+ Board support;

* strategic and operational oversight;

« risk management and internal control;

+  succession planning and people management; and
« priorities for change.

The evaluation generated a number of recommendations, which will be
addressed over the forthcoming year.

The Chalrtrtan and non-executive directors alsc reviewed the individual
performance of the executive directors as part of the annual
remuneration review.



BOARD COMMITTEES

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Momination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee are published on the Company's website
{www.chemrring.co.uk/investors/corporate-governance) and copies are
available on request from the Company Secretary.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent ran-executive
directors. At the date of this repert, the Audit Committee members were
Nigel Young {(Chairman), Andrew Davies and Daniel Dayan.

Nigel Young acted as Interim Chéef Financizl Officer for the Group
between August 2012 and January 2013, and was formerly the finance
director of several public companies. The remaining members of the
Committes are sarving executive directors of substantial companies, and
have extensive business and financial management experience. The Board
therefore considers that each member of the Audit Committee has the
requisite recent and relevant financial experience to satisfy the
requirements of the Code.

The Audit Committes convened for four scheduied meetings and one
ad hoc meeting during the year.

The Audit Cammittee Feport is set out on pages 52 10 55.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises four independent
non-executive directors. At the date of this report, the Remuneration
Commitcee members were Danlel Dayan (Chairman), Andrew Davies,
Carl-Peter Forster and Nigel Young,

Three scheduled Remunaration Committee meetings were he!d during
the year, together with three ad hoc meetings. Further details on the
Remuneration Committee and its activities, and the Company's policies
on directors’ remuneration are set outin the directors’ remuneration
reporton pages 56 to 74,

Nomination Committee

The Mormination Committee comprises four independent non-executive
directors. At the date of this report, the Nomination Commirtee members
were Carl-Pecer Forster (Chairman), Andrew Davies, Daniel Oayan and
Miged Young, Mr Forster is Chairman of the Nomination Committee but, in
accardance with the Committee’s terms of reference, is not permitted to
chair meetings when the Committee is dealing with the appointment of his
successor.

The Nomination Committee held two scheduled meetings during the year
and one ad hoc meeting.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is responsible for the executive day-to-day
running of the Group, submission ta the Board of strategic plans and
budgets for the Group'’s aperations, and monitoring the trading
performance of the Group as a whole.

The current members of the Executive Committee are:

*  Michael Flowers {Group Chief Executive)

* Rik Armitage (Group Director - Strategy & Technology)

* Terry Bridgewater (Group Director of Safety)

*  Stuart Cameron (Managing Director - Chemring Energetics)

» David Cole (Managing Director - Roke)

+  Simon Darling (Managing Director - Chemring Countermeasures UK)
+ Sarah Ellard {Group Legal Director & Company Secretary)

+ Andrew Lewis {Group Finance Director)

«  Clancy Murphy (Organisational Development Director)

» RupertFittman {Group Director of Corporate Affairs)

Michaal Flowers chairs the Executive Committee, which meets monthly,

Key responsibilities delegated to the Executive
Committee by the Board

* Implementation of the Group's strategies and policies as
determined by the Board

» Monitoring of operational and financial results against budget

= Allocation of resources across the Group within the overall plan
approved by the Board

~  Approval of R&D and capital expenditure within limits imposed
by the Board

= Developing and implementing risk management systems
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Governance

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT continued

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PROVIDERS OF CAPITAL

Shareholder engagement

The Company maintams an active dialogue with institutional shareholders
through regular briefing meetings and formal presentations following the
release of interim and annual results. Meetings are usually attended by the
Group Chief Executive and the Group Finance Director, although the
Chairman and the Senior Independent Director also meet with
sharehalders to discuss specific matters. The other non-executive
directors are also offered the opportunity to meeq with major
shareholders and attend meetings if so requested by sharebolders.

Communicatien with private investors is achieved largely through the
medium of the interim results statement and the annual repore,

The Company's website {www.chemring.co.uk) provides finandal,
business and governance information on the Group.

The directors are provided with reports and other writien briefings from
the Company's brokers, and are regularly informed by the Company
Secretary about changes to significant shareholdings.

It is the Company’s policy that all directors should atrend and make
themselves available to take questions from shareholders or address any
concerns at the Annual General Meeting. At ather times of the year, the
directors can be tontacted via the Company’s head office.

Annua! General Meeting

All substantial issues, including the adoption of the annual report and
financial statements, are proposed on separate resolutions at the Annual
General Meeting. In line with best practice guidelines, vating at the Annhual
General Meeting is conducted by way of a poll. This allows all votes to be
counted, not just those of sharehaolders whe atrend the meeting. Poll
results are published on the Company's website as soon as practicable
foliowing the conclusion of the meeting. The Notice of the Annuai
General Meeting is sent to shareholders at least twenty working days
before the meeting.

Engagement with other providers of capital

In additon to issuing shares, the Company 2lso firances its activities
through external bank loans and by the issue of loan notes. The Board
recognises the importance of maintaiing good refationships with the
providers of this capital, and the Group Chief Executive and the Group
Finance Director brief the hanks and note holders on a regular basis on
the Company and its performance. The Board receives regular reports on
any issues fmpacting these relationships.
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ACCOUNTABILITY

Financial and business reporting

The statement of directors' responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements and accounting records maintained by the Company is set out
on page 42.

Having taken all the matters considered by the Board and brought ta the
attention of the Board during the year into account, the Board is satisfied
that the annual report and aceounts for the year ended 3| October 2017,
taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable. Furthermore, the
Board believes that the disclosures set out on pages 4 to 37 pravide the
information necessary 10 assess the Company’s performance, business
model and strategy.

Risk management and internal control

The Board 1s responsible for determining the nature and extent of the
risks that it is willing 1o take to achieve its strategic objectives. The Board
is also responsible for ensuring that the Group's risk management and
internal cantrel systems are effective across the businesses.

The Board undertakes an annual review of the effectiveness of the
Graup's systems of internal control, including financial, operational and
compliance controls, and risk management systems. Further details of the
review undertaken during the flnancial year ended 31 October 2017 are
set out on pages 26 and 27.

Going concern

The Group's business activities, key performance indicators, and principal
risks and uncertainties are set out within the strategic report on pages 4
to 37. As part of a regular assessment of the Group’s working capital and
financing position, the directors havea prepared 3 detailad bottom-up two
year trading budget and cash flow forecast for the period through to
Octaber 2019, being at least twelve months after the date of approval of
the financial statements. This is in addition ta the Group's longer-term
strategic planning process. In assessing the forecast, the directors have
considered:

+ trading risks presented by economic conditions in the defence market,
particularly in relation to government budgets and spends;

« the tming of delivery of key cantracts;

+ the impact of macro-economic factors, particufarly interest rates and
foregn exchange rates;

« the status of the Group's existing financial arrangements and
associated covenant requirements; and

= the availability of mitigating actions should business activities fall
behind current expectations, including the deferral of discretionary
averheads and restricting cash flows.

Additional detailed sensitivity analysis has been performed on the
forecasts to consider the impact of severe, but plausible, reasonable
worse case scenarios on the covenant requirements. These scenarios,
which sensitised the forecasts for specific identified risks, modelled the
reduction in anticipated levels of underlying EBITDA and the associated
increase in net debt. These scenarios included significant delays to major
contracts and new product launches, and the temporary closure of a
major facility. These sensitised scenarios show headroom on all covenant
test dates for the foreseeable future.



The directors have acknowledged the latest guidance on going concern,
They have made appropriate enquiries and taker into aceaunt factors
which are detailed in the strategic report on pages 4 to 37. Asa
consequence, the diractors believe thar the Company is well placed to
manage its risks.

The directors, having considered the forecasts, the risks, and associated
mitigating actions, have a reasonable expectation that adequate financial
resources will continue to be available for the foreseeable future.

Thus, they continue to support the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

Long-term viability statement

The directors have assessad the Group's viability over a three-year period
to October 2020 based on the above assessment, combined with the
Group's strategic planning process, which gives greater certainty cver the
forecasting assumptions used. Based on this assessment, the directors
have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in
operation and meet all its lizbilities as they fall due up to October 2020,

In considering our viability statements we have considered the principal
risks and uncertainties discussed in the strategic report and assessed
the impact.

Sensitivity analyses were run to model the financial and operational
impact of plausible downside scenarios of these risk events occurring
individually or in combination. These included the impacts of a further
deteriaration in the macroeconomic anvironment, underperformance

in executing the Group's strategy, failure to derive targeted benefits

from the Group's Operational Excellence Programme, the impact of a
significant business interruption event, material movemnents in foraign
exchange rates and a change in regulations impacting the Group's internat
financing structure. Consideratian was also given to the plausibility of the
occurrence of other individual events that in their own right could have a
rmatenal impact on the Group's viability.

Based on the consolidated financial impact of the sensitivity anatyses and
associated mitigating internal controls and risk management actions that
are either now in place or could be implemented, the Board has been
able to conclude that the Group will be able to maintain sufficient bank
facilities to meet its funding needs over the three-year period.

INSURANCE

The Company maintains directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in
respect of legal action against its directors and officers.
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i Governance

. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Annual statement by the Chairrman of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee continues to play a very important role in the
governance of the Group's financial affairs, both through monitoning
the irtegrity of the Group's financal reporting and reviewing
rnateral financial reporting judgements.

In 2617 the Committee reviewed a number of key areas:

The Group's policy on capitalising development casts was reviewed |
and refined so certain criteria that a project must reach to be
considered capital in nzture were more dearly defined. As part ofits
review of the 2016 financial statements and the 2017 interim financial
statements, the Committee reviewed the carrying value of
previously capitalised projects and as part of this review considered
the independent reporting on this area from the Group's external
auditor. Based on its review the Committee concluded the carrying
value was appropriate.

The adoption of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers was 2
key project during the year. The Committee reviewed the iniual
impact study prepared by management and agreed the scoping of the
transition project. At the time of approving the interim financial
statements the Committee reviewed the final analysis of the impact
of adoption and approved the use of the modified transitional
provisions and the refated disclosures.

The Group’s US businesses sit within a Special Security Agreement,
which requires independent directors to be appointed to the US
halding company. During 2017 a US Audit Cammittee was
established, with terms of reference similar to the main Group Audit
Committee. It is intended that this Committee will be fuffy functional
in 2018.

Further details of the Committee’s activities during the year are set
out on the following pages.

Nigel Young
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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OPERATION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee monitors the intagrity of the Group's financial
statements and the effectiveness of the external audit process,

Key responsiblilities

* Making recornmendations on the appointment, reappointment
and remuneration of the external auditor

* Ensuring that an appropriate ralationship berween the Group
and the external auditor is maintamed, and overseeing the
provision of hen-audit services

*  Reviewing and monitoring the extermal auditor's independence
and objectivity

» Reviewing the effectiveness aof the Group’s internal controls and
risk management systems

* Considering the effectiveness of the Group's internal audit
function and manicoring internal audit activites

* Reviewing arrangements by which the Group's employees may
confidentially raise concerns about possible improprieties

+ Providing guidance to the Board in its consideration of whether
the annual report and accounts are fair, balanced and
understandable

The Committee is authorised to seek any information it requires from
any employee of the Group in order to perform its duties, and 1o
obrain any outside legal or ather professional advice it requires at the
Company's expense.

The Committee reviews its terms of reference and its effectiveness
annually, and recommends to the Board any changes required as the result
of the review.

Meetings

Meetings of the Committee are awended, at the invitation of the Chairman,
by the external auditor, the Chairman of the Board, the Group Chiefl
Executive, the Group Finance Director, the internal auditors and
representatives from the Group finance function. The Committee meets
with the external and internal auditors on a regular basis without the
executive directors beng present. The Compahy Secretary acts as
secretary to the Comrittee and minutes of meetings are crculated to

all Board members,

A verbal reporton key issues discussed by the Committee is provided to
the Board after every meeting.

The Committee plans to meet four times in the current financial year.
The Chairman of the Committee meets regutarly with the Group Finance

Director, the external audit lead partner and the internal audit lead
partner outside of scheduled meetings.

Principal activities of the Audit Committee during
the year

November 2016

= Approval of the extarnal auditor’s finalised year end audit plan
« Consideration of XPMG's interhal audit report
= Approval of the internal audit plan for 2017

January 2017

= Review of the status of the Group'’s significant research and development
projects, and associated capicalised development costs

« Review of the Group's preliminary announcement and annual resuhs for the
year ended 3! October 2016, including the Group's going concern status and
the viabikity statement

+ Consideration of the auditor's report on the results of the full year audit
+ Consideration of KPMG's internal audit report

Aprii 2017

+ Considerauon and approval of the early adoption of IFRS 15

» Conskleration of the auditor’s plan for the half year results review

+ Consideration of KPMG’s intemnal audit report

+ Annuat review of the Committee’s terms of reference

« Consideration of the Group Legal Director's ethics and compliance report

« Review of the Group's whisteblowing policy and procedures

June 2017

= Review of the Group's use of Alternatve Performance Measures

= Updated status review of the Group's significant research and development
projects, and assoclated capitalised developrment costs

Review of the Group's half year resuits, including the going concern staws

.

Consideranon of the auditor's report on the results of the interim review

Consderation of KPMG's internal audit report
* Review of the proposed establishment and remit of the US Audit Committee

September 2017

* Review of audit services for the year ended 31 October 2017
» Consideration of the auditor’s plan for the full year audit

= Annual review of policy on the provision of non-audic services by the
external auditor

Consideration of KFMG's internal audit report
Approval of the internal audit plan for 2018
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~AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT continued

SIGMIFICANT ISSUES CONSIDERED BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE DURING THE YEAR IN RELATION
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue

recognition
policies and
pracedures

The Committers reviews the Group's revenue recognition polioes and procedures on an ongoing basis, to ensure that they
remain appropriate and that the Group's sternal controls are operating effectively in this area. The Committes
considered the key assumptions underlying the accounting treatment of any materiat contract with a customer where
judgement on revenue recognition was required.

The Group's adopuch of IFRS 15 has led to a more prudent revenue recognition approach, with some revenue being
recognised later than it would have been under the previous standard.

Impairment of
goodwill and other
intangible assets

The Committee considered both the recognised impairment toss in respect of the Chemring Defence UK business ang
management's raview of the carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets held on the Group's balance sheet as at 3|
October 2016 and 30 April 2017, against the latest forecasts for each of the applicable businesses.

Capitalised
development costs

The Cammuttee continued to monitor the level of development costs capitalised during the year and the periods over
which such costs are to be amartised. Detailed reviews of the Group's ten most significant research and development
projects, and their associated capitabsed development casts, were undertaken by the Comrmuttee in January 207 and June
2007

Deferred tax
assets on tax
losses and US
interest
deductions

The Committee considered the management's review of the recoverability of US interest deductions and tax fosses
carried forward. A review of management's projections of future taxable profits that will be available to utlise tax losses
and interest carred forward. and the assumptions made, was undertaken by the Committee.

Going concern and
long-term viability

1 order 1o sausfy itself that the Group has sufficient financial resources to snable it to continue trading for the foresesable
future, the Commuttee regularly reviews the adequacy of the Group's financing facilities against future funding
requirements and working capital projections.

Based on its review of the Group's forecasts and discussions with the external auditor. the Committee recommended o
the Board the adoption of the going concern basis for the preparation of both the 2016 financial statements and the 2017
interim results.

The Group was aiso required to make a statement on its long-term viability in the 2016 financial staterments. The
Committee considered the period over which the Group's viability would be assessed and having concluded thac a
three-year period was appropriate, the Commitree undertook a review of the analysis and projections which supported
the viability assessment prior to submission to the Board

EXTERNAL AUDIT

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board or the appointment, reappointrent and removal of the Company's
external auditor. The Committes also undertakes an annual assessment of the auditor's independence and objectivity, taking into account relevant
professignal and regulatory requirements and the relationship with the zuditor as a whole, including the provision of any non-audit services.
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Audit effectiveness and tendering

The Committee keeps the assessment of the need to tender the audit mandate under continuing review. Deloitte LLP (“*Deloitte™) and its predecessor
firms have been auditor to the Group for over 15 years and during this time a tender has not been conducted.

2017 represents Anna Marks' fifth year as the lead audit partner, In view of this, the EU regulatory change which requires a change of auditor in 2020, and
the extensive period that Deloitte has been auditor, the Audit Committee concuded it was an appropriate time to offer the external audit work for tender.

The Audit Committee considered the timing and process of the tender against a background of substantial regulatory developments. It concluded that it
was in the best interests of the Group to commence the tender process following the publication of the 2017 results. Subject to the successful selection
and appointment of 2 new audit firm, the Board continues to recommend the reappomntment of Deloitte at the Annual General Meeting. The result of
the tender and appropriate transition arrangements wiil be advised in due course.

In assessing the effectivenass of the external auditor during the year, the Committee reviewed and considered:

+ the arrangements for ensuring the external auditar's Independence and objectivity;

+ the external auditor's fulfilment of the agreed audit pfan and any variations from the plan;

~ the robustness and perceptiveness of the auditor in their handling of the key accounting and audit judgments;
= the contenrt of the external auditor’s reports and internal control recommendations; and

» the feedback received on the canduct of the external audits from key people involved in the audit process.

There are no contractual or similar obligations to ~estrict the choice of external auditor,

Auditor independence

The Committee keeps under review the level of any non-audit services which are pravided by the external auditor, to ensure that this does not impair
their independence and objectivity,

The Committee has adopted a policy which states that the external auditor should not be appointed to provide any non-audit services to the Group,
unless the Committee agrees that their appointment would be in the best interests of the Company’s sharehalders in particular circumstances and
would not create any direct conflict with their role as exiernal auditor. In approving any such appointment, the Committee is also required to consider:
* whether the provision of the proposed services might compromise the auditor’s independence or objectivity;

« whether the non-audit services wilt have a direct or material effect on the Group’s audited financial staternents;

+  whether the skills and experience of the external auditor make it the most suitable supplier of the non-audit services; and

+ the level of fees proposed for the non-audit services relative to the audit fees.

The external auditor is required to provide the Committee with a written confirmation of independence for all duly-approved engagements for
non-audit services.

The policy adopted by the Committee expressly prohibits the provision of certain non-audit services by the external auditor, in line with regulatary
requirements and UK ethical guidance.

Deloitte did not provide any additional services to the Group during the year under review. With effect from | November 2016, Deloitte ceased to
pravide any tax-related services to the Group.

Details of the amounts paid to the external auditor during the year for audit are set out in note 4 to the Group financial statements.

The Committee, in conjunctien with the Group Fihance Director, ensures that the Group maintains relationships with a sufficient choice of
appropriately-qualified alternative audit firms for the provision of non-audit services,

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the work undertaken by the Group's internal auditors, assessing the adequacy of the internal audit
resource, and recommending changes for increasing the scope of the internal audie activities.

The Group’s internal audit programme incorporates an annual rolling review of all businesses, and focuses on both financial and non-financial contrals
and procedures. The Committee approves the annual internal audit pian and receives regular reports from the internal auditors,

KPMG LLP has been appointed by the Committee to pravide internal audit services for the Group. The KPMG internal audit programme covers
financial and commercial processes, governance issues, and key corporate risks. The internal audit plan for 2017 included specific focus on:

= 1T and cyber security risk management and controls:

» adherence to the Group's Bribery Act Compliance Manual; and

+ the key financtal and operating controls at each business.

KPMG presents its internal audit reports to the Committee on a quarterly basis. The management of each business is responsible for implementing the
recommendations made by the internal auditars, and the Committee reviews progress on a regular basfs.

Having undertaken a review of the effectiveness of KPMG in fulfilling the internal audit function, the Committee is sadsfied thar the quality, experience
and expertise of KPMG meets the Company's requirements, and KPMG has therefore been reappointed to provide internal audit services for the
Group in 201B. In 2018 the work programme for internal audit will move to a site rotation basis where every site will be covered on a two or three-year
rotational basis and KPMG will create bespoke risk-based testing plans for each site,
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Governance

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Annual statement by the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to present the directors’ remuneration report for the
year ended 31 October 2017,

As noted in last year's repeort the Remuneranon Committee
conducted a comprehensive review of the remuneration policy
during 2016 and as a result put forward a revised policy for
shareholder approval at the 2017 Annual General Meeting. When
developing this proposal, the Committee undertook extensive
consultation with major shareholders and shareholder
represeniative bodies and received generally positive feedback.
However, during the run up to the 2017 Annual General Meeting,
the Cormmittee noted that, while majority support would have been
received for the revised poficy, 2 number of sharehclders still had
reservations. The Board therefore decided not to proceed with the
proposed policy.

This means that, for the year under review. we continued with the
remunheration palicy which was approved at the 2016 Annual
Genreral Meeting. We remain of the view that updating the policy is
necessary to atwract 2nd retain the right calibre of talent and to align
with the evolving corporate strategy. However, we feel that it is
important to take time to re-engage with shareholders to reach a
greater consensus and that this will be best achieved by conducting a
further review in the run-up to the required palicy approval at the
2019 Antwal Gereral Meeting. As a result we will nat be making any
changes to the policy or its operation for the 2018 financial year, but
will spend significant ume during the coming year talking to major
shareholders about formulating an optimal remuneration policy.

Performance outcomes

In line with the remuneration policy approved n 2016, the
Committee operated an annuil bonus with share deferral as well a5
a longer-term performance share plan for the executive directors.

The annual bonus was based on two elements — 75% based on
financial targets (namely earnings per share {"EPS”) and operating
cash flow) and 25% based on persconat objectives. The Committee
has continued to set stretching targets which require superior
performance to achieve the maximum banus, As set out in the
strategic report, Chemring’s financial performance for the year
under review has baen positive, with underlying EPS having increased
by 25.2%. The aperating cash flow targets for the year were not met,
primarily as a result of the investment in working capital associated
with the fulfilment of profitable contracts in the Energetics segment.
In terms of persoral objectives, the chree executive directors achieved
between B2% and B8% of their personal objectives. This performance
resulted in annual bonuses being payable to each individual berween
58% and 60% of their individual maximum oppeortunity.

The long-term equity-based incentive performance shares granted v
January 2015 to the two executive directors employed by Chemring
at that time were subject to two performance measures. Half of the
awards were subject to an EPS growth measure aver the three years
that ended on 3| October 2017 and the remaining half were subject
to a relative total shareholder return measure. Compound EPS
growth over the three-year performance period was 8.01% p.a. and
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the Company’s TSR was below the median of the comparator group.
Based on this performance, 35 075% of these awards will vest on 26

January 2018, subject to continued employment and the rules of the

scheme.

The Committee is satisfied that the level of pay-out under the
incentive plans is representative of the Company's performance over
the respective one and three-year performance periods.

Other Committee activities during the year

I addition to the evaluation of the policy review, the Committee
undertook a number of other regular activities in connection with
remuneraticn during the year, details of which are set out on page
64, In addition, the Commirtes agreed the remuneration-refated
elements of the recruitment of Andrew Lewis as Group Finance
Director (further details of which are provided in the report).

The Committee also considers the overall environment with regard
to executive remuneration in the various jurisdictions relevant to
Chemring’s operations and, in particular, relevant issues such as the
recently-introduced gender pay data disclosure requirements and
the remuneration aspects of the UK Government's response to the
Green Paper on Corporate Gavernance Reform and the FRC's
review of the UK Corporate Governance Code,

Conclusion

| hape you will find this report helpful and informative, and look
forward to receiving your support for the advisory resclution for the
remuneration report 1o be tabled ax our forthcoming Annual
General Meecing. In the meantime, | wouid welcome any feedback or
comments you have on the report or the policy in general and any
comments you would like to feed into the remuneration policy
review process leading up to the 2019 Annual General Meeting.
Please do not hesitate 1o contact me in regard to remuneraton
matters via Sarah Elard, Group Legal Director & Company Secretary
at sarahe@chemring.co.uk.

Daniel Dayan
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee




PART A - REMUNERATION POLICY

This report sets out the information required by Part 4 of Schedule 8 to the Large and Medium-Sized Cermnpanies and Groups {Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 (as amended) (the "Regulations™}. The report also satisfies the refevant requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Conducrt
Authority, and describes how the Board has applied the principles and complied with the provisions refating to directors’ remuneration in the UK
Corporate Governance Code.

Part A of this report represents the directors' remuneration policy. Part B constitutes the implementation sections of the report {the "Annual Report
on Remuneration™}. The auditors have reported on certain sections of Part B and stated whether, in their opinion, those parts have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006. Those sections of Part B subject to audit are clearly indicated.

The Rernuneration Comraittee has been established by the Board and is ~esponsible for the remuneration of the executive directors and the Chairman.
The Comrmittee's terms of reference are available in full on the Company’s website or from the Company Secretary on request.

in determining remuneration for the exscutive directors, the Remuneration Committee seeks to maintain a competitive package of rewards required to
promote the long-term success of the Company, without (i} being excessive by reference to market rates across comparator companies and (ji) neither
encouraging nor rewarding inappropriate risk-taking. Parformance-related elements should be transparent, stretching and rigorously applied, form a
significant proportion of the total remuneration package of each executive director, and align the interests of executives with those of shareholders, by
ensuring thar a significant proportion of remuneration is performance-related and delivered in shares.

The table below summarises the Committee’s policy on the remuneration of executive directors, as approved by shareholders
at the 2016 Annual General Meeting and which can be found in the 2015 directors’ remuneration report
(http://www.chemring.co.uk /investors/reports-archive /201 5.2spx}). The policy remains valid until the 2019 Annual General Meeting.

Further details of the full policy are set out on pages 60 to 63.
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i Governance

' DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT continued

i

Purpose and link

Element to strategy Operation Maxirmum Performance assessment
; Salary « Reflecs the = Normally reviewed = Salary increases will + Nore, athough overall individual and company
i performance of annually with effect from normally be in line with performance is a factor considered when setting and
! the ingdiwdual, their ! january those received by the reviewing salaries
‘ :::“s :": ver « Benchmarked peniodically wider worklarce
“mp: ;dc;; b against companies with * Mare significant
. bilines of smifar characteristics and increases may be
zhc! S ro?: imes companias within the same awarded at the
sector discretion of the
* Provides an « Salaries czke account of Committee, for example
appropnate level complexaty of the role whare there 18 a change
of basic fixed Y . in responsibdices, to
N . market compentrveness, S
income, avaiding Group performance and reflect individual
excessive risk wp pe development and
- the increases awarded to )
arising from ) performance in the role
the wider workforce
aver-reliance on
variable income
Bonus + lncentivises anhual - Paid in cash, with up to + Group Chief Exacutive = Mix of Group financil objectves and personal
delivery of 40% deferred as a - 125% of salary objectives — financial objectives will decermine the
financial, strategic conditronal award of v Other executive majoriry of the award and will typically incude a
and personal goals deferred shares directors - 100% of measure of profitability and cash flow, athough the
+ Mautmum bonus + Vesting of deferred shares salary Commitree has discretion to select other metrics

only payable for is subtect to continued * Personal objectives wifl be measurable and linked to
achievmyg employment (save 1 "good goals that are consistent with the Group's longer-
demanding targets leaver” scenarics) at the tertn goals

. eng of three years from the _— .

» Deliveryof a rd of th + Payment of the persanal objectives element will be
proportion of award of the bonus subject vo ah underpin based on the Committee's
bonus in deferred + The payment of any earned assessment of underlying business performance,
shares plus the bonus remgins ultimately at inchuding inter alia levels of profitability and cash flow,
ability to receve the discretian of the as wek as healh and safety performance
d':?:ﬂ"d Commitcee + Performance below the threshold for each finandal
=q 4 em: + Non-pensonable target results in Zero payment in respect of that
provices akignment . ) element. Payment rises from 0% to 100% of the
with sharehiolders' = Executives are entitled to 3 levels of
i and receive, on vesting of rmaamum of ity for level perfo e
inerests - between thrashold and maximum with 50% of the
assists with deferred share awards, the Y

i L maximun normaly payable for on-target
retention value of dividend paymems erfarmance
that would otherwise have L
' been paid on the deferred + Includes a clawback mechanism in the event of
! shares during the deferral misconduct, arror in caloulation of performance, ora
period material misstatement of the Group's financial results
' Long-term » Incengivises * Annual granes of shares, = Normally 150% of base - Awards from 204 onwards are subject to targets
. incentive plan executives to which vest subject to the salary (afthough grants based on EPS growth and relative TSR measured
i (performance achieve targets Group's performance of up to 200% of base against a peer group of international defence sector I
: share plan aligned to the measured over at least salary may be made in companies. For awards granted in 2018, each
- “PSP") Group's main three years exceptional measure will determine the vesting of 50% of the
strategic ohjectives . - circumstances such as award; however, the Commitiee will have discretion
& = » Executives are emtided to y o )
aof delivering receive the value of on revrement) to set different weightings for awands in future years
sustainable growth < Targets for the EPS condition are set by the

and shareholder
returns

Delivery of
awards in shares
plus the abiiity ta
receive dividend
equivalents helps
akgn executives'
rewards with
shareholders’
interests.

dividend payments that
would otherwise have been
paid on vested awards

All awards are subject to
the discretions given to the
Committee in the plan
nies during the vesting
period

Remuneration Comrnittee prior to each grant.
Targets for the relative TSR condition are based on g
sliding scale. with median representing threshold
performance and upper guartile representing
maximum performance

For each measure, performance below threshoid
resuits i zero payment. Payment rises from 25% to
100% of the maximum opportunity for that measure
for levels of performance between threshold and
rmaximum

Includes a clawback mechanism in the event of
misconduct, error in calgulation of performance, or a
material misstazement of the Group's finandal results
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Purpose and link

Element to strategy Operation Maximum Perfarmance assessment
All-employee + All employees, = The UK Sharesave Plan * Participation limits are = N/A
share incuding and US Stock Purchase those set by the
schemes executive Plans have standard terms relevart tax authomies

directors, are from trme-to-time

encouraged 1o

acquire shares by

participating in the

Group's

all-employee

shara plans - the

UK Sharesave

Plan and the US

Stock Purchase

Plan

Pension - Provides « Ongoing pension provision  +  20% of base salary = N/A

retirement is in the form of a cash cash supplement

benefits that supplement, sublect to contribution paid in liev

reward sustained autc-enrolment in the of oreupational pension

contribution Group's stakeholder scheme membership
scheme . H v from

+ Longer-serving employees | Janwary 2014, all UK
have zcorued benefits employees, induding
under the Group’s defined the axecutive directars,
benefit scheme, which was were subject [
closed to future accrual for auta-enrolment into the
the executive directors on Group's defined
6 Aprit 2010 contribution
stakeholder scheme.
with an emplayer

coneribution of 4% of
base salary. If sxecutives
do not opt out of this
scheme, their cash

supplernent will be
reduced by 4%
Other * Provides a = Main benefits currently « Cash atlowance in lieu = N/A
benafits competitive provided to UK executives of company car of up
package of are a car allowance, ffe to £25,000 per annum
:::;f:‘:w‘:r‘ ::I‘th""::u‘:'“":"‘ + Other benefits will be in
i y -
recruitment and private medic:lei::unnce line with market. The
retention value of each benefic s
* Executve directors are based on the cost to
eligibie for other benefits the Company and is not
which may also be pre-determined
lﬂU:::‘.lCed forbthe :rldcr - Any reasonable
mia:’:::mo: roadly business-related .
expenses (induding tax
thereon) can be
reimbursed if
determined to be a
taxable benefic
Notes:
I, A description of how the Cormpany intends to implement the policy sat out in this table for the forthcoming year s set out in the annuzl report on remuneration on pages 64 1o 74,
2. The remuneration policy for the executive directors and other senior executives is designed with regard to the policy for emplayees across the Group as a whole. However, there
are some diffsrences in the structure of the remuneration policy for exacutive directors and other senior executives In genera), these differences arise from the development of
remuneration arrangements that are market-competitive for the various categories of individuals. They also reflect the fact that, in the case of the executive directors and other
senior executives, a greater amphasis tends to be placed on performance-related pay in the market.
3 Al-employse share plans do aot have performance conditions, UK-based executive directars are eligible to partiapate in the LK Sharesave Plan on the same terms as other employees.
4. As described on page 70, the Company operates shire ownership guidelines requiring executive diractors te acquire and hold a specified level of shareholding.
5. The Committee may make minor amendments to the policy set out abave for regulatory, exchange conorol. tax or administrative purposes or to take account of a change in
legislatron, without obtaining shareholder approval for that amendment.
6. The Regulations and related investor guidance encourages companies to disclose a cap within which each element of the directors’ remuneration palicy wilf operate. Where
maximum amounts for slements of remuneration have been set within the policy, these wilt operate simply as caps and are not tndicatve of any aspiration.
7. White the Committea does not consider it to form part of benefits 1n the normal usage of that term. 1t has been adwsed that corporate hospitality, whether paid for by the Company

or another, and busmess travel for directors and (n exceptional circumstances their families, may technically corme within the applicable rules, and so the Committes expressly
reserves the right for the Committee 1o authanse such acthaties within its agreed palfues {and to discharge any refated tax liability).
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Goverhahce

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Committee discretions

The Committee operates the Group's variable incentive plans according to their respective rules and in accordance with governing legislation and
HMRC rules where relevanc. To ensure the efficient administration of these plans, the Committee will apply certain operanonal discretions. These
include the following:

« selecting the participants in the plans on an annual basis;

*+ determining the timing of grants of awards and/or payment;

- determining the quantum of awards and/or payments (within the imits set out :n the policy table above);

= determining the extent of vesting based on the assessment of perfarmance;

* making the appropriate adjustments required in certain ¢ireumstances (e.g. change of control, rights issues, ¢erporate restructyring events and
special dividends):

- determining "good leaver” status for incentive plan purposes and applying the appropriate treatment; and

» undertaking the annual review of weighung of performance measures, and setting targets for the annual bonus plan and the PSP from year to year.

If an event accurs which results in the annual bonus plan or PSP performance conditions and/ar targets being deemed no longer appropriate by the
Committee (e.g. 2 material acquisition or divestment), the Cormmittee will have the ability to adjust appropriately the measures and/or targets and alter
weightings, provided that the revised conditions or targets are not materially less difficult 1o satisfy (taking account of the relevant circumstances).

Selection of performance metrics and targets

The performance-related elements of remuneration take into account the Group's risk policies and systemns, and are designed tc align the senior
executives' interests with those of shareholders. The Committee reviews the metrics used and targets set for all of the Group’s senior executives (not
just the executive directors) every year, in order to ensure that they are aligned with the Group's strategy and 1o ensure an appropriate level of
consistency of arrangements amongst the senjcr executive team. All financial targets will (where appropriate} be set on a sliding scate. Non-financial
targets are set based on individual and management team responsibilities.

The annual bonus plan perfarmance metrics include a mix of financial targets and personal objectives, reflecting the key annual priorities of the Group.
The financial metrics determine the majority of the bonus and normally include operating cash flow — a key measure of the Group's ability to invest i
the business, and a measure of profitability, which together reflect the Group's financial performance and are key measures for shareholders. For the
2018 financial year, the measure of profitability will be underlying earnings per share. The personal objectives agreed on an ahnual basis will be
measurable and based on individual performance, and will be consistent with the achlevement of the Group's langer-term goals.

The Committee has decided 1o apply total shareholder return (*TSR”) and earnings per share (“EPS”) performance conditions to awards made under
the PSP. EPS is 2 measure of the Group's overall financial success and TSR provides an external assessment of the Comparny's performance against a
peer group. TSR also aligns the rewards received by executives with the returns received by snareholders. Details of the EPS targets applied to 2017
awards and thase ta be made in 2018 are set out on pages 68 and 74, and further details on the TSR targets for 2017 and 2018 awards are also set out on
pages 69 and 74.

The Committee will review the choice and relative balance of performance measures and the appropriateness of performance targets prior to each
grant of awards under the PSP. The EPS targets are reset prior to each grant, following a review of internal and external expectations of future EPS
growth for the Group, and are based on growth in adjusted EPS. The TSR comparator group is reviewed prior to each grant to ensure it remains as
zppropriate as possible, recognising the small size of the UK-listed defence company sector and the individual characteristics of each company. The
Committee retains discretion to set different targets for future awards, providing that, in the opinion of the Committee, the new targets are no less
chailenging in light of the prevailing circumstances than those set previously. If substantially different targets to those used previously are proposed,
major sharenholders will be consulted.

How employees’ pay is taken into account

In addition to determining the remuneration arrangements for the executive directors, the Committee considers and approves the base salaries for
thirteen other senior exacutives, and reviews salaries for the next ner of management at each of the Group's businesses. The Committee also receives
information on general pay levels and policies across the Group. The Commitzee, therefore, has due regard to salary levels across the Group in applying
its remuneracion policy. However. reflecting standard industry practice, the Committee does not consult with employees in relation to the design and
operation of the executive remuneration policy, aithough the Committee will continue to manitor regulatory developments in this area.

How the executive directors’ remuneration policy relates to the wider Group

The remuneration policy described above provides an overview of the structure that operates for the most senior executives in the Group. Lower
aggregate incentive quanta are applied at below executive level, with levels driven by market comparatives and the impacz of the role.

Employees are provided with 2 compertitive package of benefits, which typically includes participatian in the Group's defined contribution pension
arrangements.

Long-term incentives are provided to the most senior executives and those identifiad as having the greatest potential to influence performance within
the Graup, However, in order to encourage wider employee share ownership, the Company also operates a Sharesave Plan in the UK, in which all UK
employees are eligible to participate on completion of s:x months’ service.
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How shareholders’ views are taken into account

The Remunerzuon Committee considers shareholder feedback received an the directors’ remuneration report each year and guidance from
shareholder representative bodies more generally. Sharehclders’ views are key inputs when shaping remuneration policy, with the Company's major
shareholders being consulted in advance in connection with proposed changes to policy. A substantial consultatior exercise is expected during 2018
Isading up to presentation of the remuneration policy resolution at the 2019 Annual General Meeting, and shareholders’ direct participation in this
consultation would be welcomed.

Legacy arrangements

For the avoidance of doubt, authority is given to the Company te honour any cammitments entered into with current or former directors (such as the
payment of a pension or the unwinding of legacy share schemes) permitted under the current policy or which have been disclosed to sharehalders in
previous directors’ remuneration reports. Details of any payments to former directors will be set cutin the annual report on remuneration as they arise.

External appointments

The Company's pohicy is to permit an executive director to serve as a non-executive director elsewhere when this does not conflict with the individual’s
duties to the Company, and where an executive director takes such a role they may be entitled to retain any fees which they earn from that appointment.

Potential remuneration scenarios for executive directors

The chart below details the hypethetical compasition of each executive director's remuneration package and how it could vary at different levels of
performance under the policy set out above,

Assumptions:

. Minimum = fixed pay only {2018 satary plus benefits plus pension cash supplement).
On target = fixed pay plus target annual bonus of 62.5% of salary for the Group Chief Executive and 50% for che other executive directars plus targer PSP awards of 37.5% of salary
for the Group Chief Executive and the other executive directors.
Maximuym = fixed pay plus maxmum annual bonus of | 25% of salary for the Group Chief Executive and 100% for the other executive directars plus maximum PSP awards of [50% of
salary for the Group Chief Executive and the ather executive directors.

2. Asrequired by the Regulations, no account is taken of the impact thar future share price growth might have on the value of rernuneration defivered in shares.

The PSP awards section of the bars is shaded, s these awards are subject to performance in luture years and cannat ordinarily vest until three years after grant.

4. Salary lavels {on which other elements of the packages are calculated) are based on thase applying from | January 2018. Note that Sarah Ellard’s remuneration reflects her current
cantractual office-based hours, and may be increased or decreased pro-rata should these change in future,

5. The value of taxable benefits Is based on an estimated cost of £22.500 for Michae! Flowers, £21,000 for Andrew Lewis and £20,500 for Sarah Ellard.

Pensian provision is 20% of salary for each director.

7. The executive directors may participate In all-employee share schemes on the same basis as other employees, The value that may be recetved under these schemes is subject to
tax-approved Hmits. For simplicity, the value that may be received from participating in these schemes has been excluded from the above chart.
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Governance

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Policy on payments for loss of office

All new executive directors appointed will have service contracts which are terminable on a maximum of twefve months’ notice. Provisions permiting
the Company to mike any terfmination payments by instalments, and requiring directors to mitigate their 1oss i such circumstances, will be inctuded in
each coneract. The Remuneration Committee will exercise discretion in determining whether termination payments should be paid by instalments,
raking account of the reason for the departure of the director and their prior performance. Other than b gross misconduct situations, the Cempany
would expect to honour the contractual entitlements of terminated directors.

Other than in certain “good leaver” circumstances {including, but notlimited to. redundancy, ill-hezalth or retirement). no bonus would be payable under
the arnual bonus plan unless the individual remains employed and is not under notice at the payment date. Any bonus paid to a “good leaver” would be
based on an assessment of their individual and the Company's performance over the period, and would normally be pro-rated for the proportion of the
year worked.

Deferred bonus share awards will also normally lapse on cessation of employment, unless the executve director is deemed 1o be a "good leaver” by the
Remuneration Committee, as referred to above, in which case they would vest in full,

With regards to long-term incentive awards, the PSP rules provide that other than in certain “good leaver™ circumstances, awards fapse on cessation of
employment, Where an individual is a "good leaver”, the Remuneration Committee’s policy for PSP awards made from 2014 onwards s normally to
permit awards to remain outstanding until the end of the original performance period, when a pro-rata reduction will be made to take account of the
proportion of the vesting period that lapsed prior to termination of employment, although the Committee has the discretion to partly or completely
disapply pro-rating in exceptional circumstances. The Committee has discretion te deem an individual to be a “good leaver”. In doing so, it will take
account of the reason for their departure and the performance of the individual.

The Committee will have authority to pay any statutory entitlements and settle claims against the Company (e g. for unfair dismissal, discrimination or

whistleblowing) that arise on termination. The Committee may also authorise the provision of outplacement services and sertle legal fees where
considered appropriate.

Executive directors’ service agreements and loss of office payments

The current executive directors have rolling service contracts, details of which are summarised in the table below:

Provision Detailed terms

Contract dates Michael Flowery - 23 June 2014 (effective 24 June 2014)
Andrew Lewis - 12 December 2016 (effective 9 january 2017)
Sarah Ellard - 2 November 2011 {effective 7 Ocrober 2611)

Notice period Twelve months from both the Company and from the executive
Termination Contracts may be terminated without notice by the payment of 3 sum equal to the sum of salary due for the unexpired notice
payments period plus the fair value of any contractual benefits (incfuding pension)

Payments may be made in instalments and in these circumstances there 15 1 requsirement 1o mitigate loss

The Company's policy on service agreements reflects the approach described above {e.g notice periods will normally be twelve months or fess).

The executve directors’ service contracts are available for inspection at the Caompany's registered affice.
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Recruitment of executive directors

Salaries for new hires (including internal promotions) will be set to reflect their skills and experience, the Company’s intended pay positioning, and the
market rate for the applicable role.

Where itis appropriate to offer a below-market salary initially, the Committee has the discretion to allow phased salary increases over a period of ime
for newly-appointed directors, even though this may involve increases in excess of the rate for the wider workforce and inflatign.

Benefits will be provided in line with thase offered to other executive directors, taking account of iocal market practice, with relocation expenses or
arrangements provided if necessary. Tax equalisation may alse be considered if an executive is adversely affected by taxatio due 1o their employment
with the Company. Legal fees and other casts incurred by the individual may also be paid by the Company.

The aggregate incentive opportunity offered to new recruits will normally be no higher than that offered under the existing incentive plans to the
incumbent executive directors. Different performance measures and targets may be set initiafly for the annual bonus plan, taking into account the
responsibilities of the individual and the point at the financial year at which they join. A performance share plan award may be granted shortly fallowing
appointment (agsuming the Company is not in a close period). Any incentive quantum offered above the limits set out in the existing incentive plans and
policy will (save as set out below) be contingent on the Company receiving shareholder approval for an amendment to its approved policy at its next
general meeting.

Current entitlements of 2 new joiner from their previous employer that are forfeited (e.g. benefits, bonus and share schemes) may be bought out an
terms that take due account of the mature of the entitlements in terms of (for example) Time horizon, fair value and performance conditions. The
Group's existing incentive arrangements will be used to the extent possible, although awards may also be granted outside of these arrangements if
necassary, and as permicted under the Listing Rules, reflecting the above paramecers. Such awards will not, in accordance with the Regulatians, be
subject to the limits of the remuneration policy for incentive pay.

In the case of an internal hire, any outstanding variable pay awarded in refation to the previous role will be allowed to pay out according ta its terms of
grant (adjusted as relevant to take into account the Board appointment).

Policy for non-executive directors

Purpose and link Performance
Element O strategy Operation Maximum  assessment
Non-executive Takes account of +  The Chairman is paid a single fee for all his responsibilities. The » N/A « N/A
directors’ and recognised practice non-executives are paid a basic fee. The Chairs of the
Chairman'y fees and setatalevel Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee each receive

that is sufficient to additional fees to reflect their extra responsibilities

attract and retain *  When reviewing fee levels, account is taken of market movements

high-calibre in non-executive director faes, Board committee responsibilities,

non-executives ongoing time commitrments, the general econamic environment and

the level of increases awarded to the wider workforce

+  Fee increases, if applicable, are normally effective from April of
each year

= Nan-executive directors do not participate in any pension, bonus
or share incentive plans

*  Non-executive directors may be compensated for travel,
accommodation or hospitality-related expenses in connection with
their roles and any tax thereon

*  In exceptional circumstances, additional fees may be paid where
there is a substantial increase in the time commitment required of
nan-executive directors

Chairman’s and non-executive directors’ letters of appointment

MNan-executive directors da not receive compensation for loss of office but are appointed for a fixed term of thiee years, renewable for further
three-year terms if both parties agree and subject to annual re-election by shareholders. The Chairman's appointment may be terminated on six
ronths’ notice by either party and the ather non-executive directors’ appointments may be terminated on three months' notice by either party. The
non-executive directars’ letters of appointment are available for inspection at the Company's registered office.

The following table provides further derails of the terms of appointment for the non-axecutive directors who served during the year:

Expacted

Dace orignal Dave current expiry date of

Narme term commenced  term commenced EUTENt term
Carl-Peter Forster t May 2016 | May 2016 30 April 2019
Andrew Davies 17 May 2006 F7 May 2016 16 May 2019
Daniel Dayan 7 March 2016 7 March 2016 & March 2019
Niged Young | May 2013 | May 2016 30 April 2019
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT continued

PART B ~ ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

This part of the report has been prepared in accardance with Part 3 of Schedule 8 to The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts
and Reports) Regutations 2008 (as amended), and 9.8.6R of the Listing Rules. The annual report on remuneration will be put to an advisory sharehalder
vote at the 2018 Annuzl General Meeting. The information on pages 64 to 74 has been audited.

THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND ITS ADVISERS

Members of the Remuneration Committee

The following individuals were members of the Remuneration Committee during the year:

Name From Te
Danfel Dayan (Chairman) 7 March 2016 Present
Carl-Peter Forster t May 2016 Present
Andrew Davies 17 May 2016 Present
Nigel Young | May 2013 Present

The Group Legal Director & Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Committee, and the Group Chief Executive and the Group Finance Director
attend meetings by invitation, but no executive director or other employee is present during discussions relating directly to their own remuneration.

Meetings
The Remuneratich Committee met for three scheduled meetings during the year. In additon, three additional ad hoc meeungs were canvened to deal

with matters arising between scheduled meetings. Details of the attendance of the Committee members at reetings are set out on page 47 of the
corporate governance repory,

Principal activities of the Remuneration Committee during the year

November 2016
= Review of mnitial feedback from shareholders en the proposed new incentrve plan

+ Consideration of porential financial targets for the proposed new incentive plan

» Consideration of salary levels for the executive directors and the senior management tearn

January 2007

+ Consideration of bonus outturn for the 201 6 finandal year
= Approval of the directors’ remuneration report for 2016
+ Approval of the proposed new remuneration policy for the executive directors and detailed terms of the proposed new incentive plan

March 2017

+ Review of further feedback from shareholders oh the propased new remuneration pokcy for the executive direczors and the proposed new incentive plan

= Approval of financial targets and personal objectives for the 2017 anmwal bonus plan
+ Grant of 2017 awards under the Perforrmance Share Plan

September 2017

= Consideration of treatment of “good leavers” under the Performance Share Pan

Advisers

During the year, FIT Remuneration Consuitants LLP (*FIT") were retained by the Commitree to advise on remuneration and mncentive plan related
martters. FiT is a signatory to the Remuneration Consuitants” Group Code of Conduct. The Committee has reviewed the nature of the services
provided by FIT and is satisfied that no conflict of interest exists in the provision of these services. The Company received no ather services from FIT
during the year. The total fees paid to FIT in respect of services to the Committee during the year were £45,562 (2016: £25,792 paid to FIT and £47,300
paid to the Commitiee’s former retained adviser, New Bridge Street). Fees were determined based on the scope and nature of the projects undertaken
for the Committee.

The Commitiee reviews the performance and independence of its advisers on an annual basis.

The Committee consults internally with the Group Chief Executive (Michael Flowers) and the Group _egal Director & Company Secretary (Sarab Ellard).



DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of all the directors who served during the year are shown below:

Berus (tash and

Salaries Taxable deferred Penyion
flees baneflest sharesy psp! benefics* Toxal
Year 000 000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Executives

Michael Flowers 2017 415 23 3o - 83 811
2016 406 21 347 - al B55
Andrew Lewis® 017 265 16 193 - 53 517
2016 - - - - - -
Sarah Ellard 2017 208 20 121 - L ¥ 391
2016 204 23 141 - 4| 409

Non-executives
Carl-Pater Forster® 2017 200 - - - - 1200
201e 100 - - - - 100
Andrew Davies’ 2017 58 - - - - 55
2018 25 - “ - - 25
Daniel Dayan® 2017 65 - - - - 65
016 43 - - - - 43
Nigel Young® 2017 66 - - - - 66
2016 63 - - - - 63
Total remuneration 2017 1,274 [1] 624 - 178 3,138
2016 941 44 488 - 121 1,495

Motes:

I. Comprises a fully-expensed company car for Sarah Ellard (annual lease cost £10,186) up to |9 August 2016 and cash allowance of £]9.350 per annum thereafter; car-related cash

allowance of £20,000 per annum up to 31 May 2006 and £11,500 per annum thersafter for Michae! Flowers; and car-related cash allowance of £19,350 per annum for Andrew Lewis;

plus private meadical insyrance for each of the executive directors.

40% of any borws is defivered as an award of deferred shares. Bonuses had accrued but had not yet been paid at the date of this report.

PSP awards that were due to vest during the year lapsed in full. PSP awards granted in January 20|5 are due to vest on 26 [anuary 20(8, as reported on page 68.

The executive directors receive a cash supplement of 20% of salary in lieu of occupational pension scheme membership.

Andrew Lewis |eined the Company on 9 January 2017 and was appointed to the Baard an 19 January 2017.

Cart-Peter Forster joined the Board on | May 2016

Andrew Davies joined the Bozrd on 17 May 2016

Daniel Dayan oined the Board en 7 March 2016, Danlel recaives an additional fes of £10,400 per annum, included In the above figures, in respect of his Chairmanship of the

Remuneration Committee

9. Nigel Young recewves an addinonal fee of £10,.000 per annum, included m the figures above, in respect of his Chairmanship of the Audit Committee. This fee was increased from
£8.000 to {10,000 per annurm with effect from 7 March 2016, However, the increased payment wat not processed untll January 2017 and the back-dated sum paid is therefore
induded in the 2017 figures.

BN AW

Amounts shown abaove in the salaries and fees column relate to base salary in the case of executive directors and fees in the case of non-execurive direczors.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT continued

BASE SALARY AND BENEFITS PAID DURING THE YEAR

Salaries for Michael Flowers and Sarah Ellard were reviawed in November 2016 and a 2.7% mcrease, with effect from | January 2017, was approved by
the Committee. The salaries of the executive directors during the year were therefore as follows:

Annutl salary frem  Anewal selary from

{ November 106 to | janyary 2017 te
Executive 3} December 2016 11 Qceober 2617
Michae! Flowers £406,000 £416.962
Andrew Lewis' - £325,000
Sarah Eltard 203,539 £209,035

Note:
|.  Andrew Lewis joined the Coampany on 9 January 2017 and was appointed to the Board on |9 [anuary 2017,

The Group Chief Executive receives a cash alfowance of £21,500 per annum in lieu of a company car and the other executive directors receive a cash
allowance of £19,350 per annum. The cash allowances are reviewed every three years and will next be reviewed in 2019.

DETAILS OF VARIABLE PAY OPPORTUNITY IN THE YEAR

Annual bonus

In accordance with previous practice, 75% of the annual bonus opporwinicy for 2017 was based on financal targets (namely earnings per share and
operating cash flow), with 25% based on personal objectives. ™No banus is payable in respect of the personal objectives unless the Commictee is satisfied
that this is justified by the Group's underlying performance, including inter ofio levets of profitability and cash flow, as well as health and safety performance.

The Committes has consistantiy set challenging targets for the achievement of maximum bonuses. The financial targets for the 2017 bonus plan,
compared with actual performance, were as follows:

Payguc
(a3 % of salary)
Weghting
(75% of overail Andrew Lewis
Mecric honut] Performanse Target Actual  Michael Fowars & Sarah €llard
Earnings per share 50% Threshold 10.9p 12.9p 46.875% 37.5%
Target 11.9p
Maximurm 12.9p
Operzting cash flow 50%  Threshold £60.0m £47.lm 0% 0%
Target £67.5m
Maximum £75.0m
The personal objectives setin respect of the 2017 bonus plan {25% of averall bonus) are set out below:
Payoys (as %
Executive Personal objectives Key aspects of performance against individual objectives of salary)
Michael « Health and safety performance  +  lmplemented plan for mitigation or elimination of Group-wide hazardous 7.3%
Flowers exposures
+  Achieved a lost time incident rate of less thar 0.66
* Operational performance = Implemented Operational Excellence Programme
improvement »  Developed new KPls and baseline metrics for measuring future operational

performance improvermnents
> |mplemented Group-wide customer relationship management system
» initiated development of a Group-wide operational framework

* Capability and infrastructure - Progressed closure of Torrance facility
developments + Closed Alloy Surfaces' second facility
* |mplemented plans for closure of various surplus facilities

+ Strategic development + Developed strategic options for non-organic growth
»  Secured initial US tactical electronic warfare grder
+  Achieved mitial technology upgrade order for the HMDS spiral development
programme
+  Refreshed strategy for the Energetics segment
+  Developed future financing strategy for the Group

+ Tennessee site transformation « Developed future capability and investment plan for Tennessee
+ Delivery of US growth « Progressed to key stages on Next Generation Chemical Detector and Joint
programmes Biological Tactical Detection System programmes
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Payout {as X

Executive Personal objectives Key aspects of performance against individual objectives of salary)
Andrew « Health and safety performance =  Implemented plan for mitigaton or elimination of Group-wide hazardous 22.0%
Lewis exposures
= Achieved a lost time incident rate of less than 0.65
+ Financial systems * Reissued Group Accounting Palicy Manual
*  Updared Group reporting processes and reduced reporting timeline
*  Implermented quarterly batance sheet reviews for each business
+  Operational performance +  Progressed financial aspects of the Operational Excellence Programme
impravement + Developed new KPs and baseline metrics for measuring improvements in
margins, overhead cost hase and working capital
= Initiated development of standardised business processes for inclusicnin a
Group-wide operational framework
« Strategic development - financial + Developed and implemented future financing strategy for the Group
« Achieved investment grade credit rating for the Group in order to reduce
coupon on the loan notes
+ 1T and cyber » Finalised new IT strategy for the Group
+  Developed Group cyber-security risk management plan
+  Tennessee site transformation +  Supported development of future capability and investment plan for Tennessee
Sarzh Ellard + Health and safety performance ¢+ implemented pian for mitigation or elirmination of Group-wide hazardous 20.5%
axpasures
*  Achieved a lost ime incident rate of less than 0.66
*  Operational performance = Progressed commercial and legal aspects of the Operational Excellence
improvement Programme
+ Developed new KPls and baseline metrits for measuring improvements across
key commercial and legal operational areas
= Initiated development of standardised commercial and legal procedures for
indlusion in a Group-wide operational framework
+  Implemented contractual risk management trzining
* Strategy development -peopie  * Supported development of new incentive arrangements
» linitiated development of standardised terms and conditions of employment
»  Governance and compliance +  Completed updated Group-wide anti-bribery compliance training
+ Inwoduced procedures for UK gender pay gap reporting
- Pensions + Developed and implemented initial de-risking strategy for the UK legacy
defined benefit pension scheme
* Tennessee site transformation * Supparted deveiopment of future capability and investment plan for Tennessee
Based on the above performance, bonuses are payable to the executive directors under the 2017 bonus plan as follows:
Boaus paid in
Bonus paid in respact of
Maximum respace of personal
Bonus  fimantiat targets objectives Tarcal bonus
Executive ¢% of salary) (% of salary) {% of salary) payment {f)!
Michael Flowess 125 46.875 27.5 310,115
Andrew Lewis 100 375 220 193,375
Sarah Ellard 100 375 20.5 121,240

Note:

I 40% of bonuses payable are satsfied by way of an award of deferred shares, vesting of which (s subject only to cantinued service.

The committee agreed to pay a full-year equivalent bonus to Andrew Lewis as part of his terms agreed on appointment.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Performance Share Plan
Vesting of 2015 PSP awards

The PSP awards granted on 26 January 2015 were made subject to the following performance conditons:

Measure Threshold vesting Full vesting

Total compaund earnings per share growth per annum gver 5% p.a. (25% vests) 10% p.a. {100% vests}

three financial years (50% of award)

Rank of the Company’s total shareholder return against the Median ranking {25% vests} Upper quartile ranking (100% vests)

total shareholder return of the members of the comparator
group (50% of award)

The Grotip’s campourid earnings per share growth aver the three financial years ended 31 Octaber 2017 was 8.01% p.a., and 70.15% of the part of the
awards subject to the earnings per share measure will therefore vest. The Company’s totat shareholder return over the performance period was below
the median ranking of the comparztor graup, and no part of this element of the award will vest. In total therefore, 35.075% of the awards granted on

26 January 2015 will vest on 26 January 2018,

Details of the awards granted to the executive directors on 26 January 2015 are provided belaw:

Rights lssue MNumber of Mumber of
Number of adjustment shares shares Value of
Executive Vesung date  shares atgramt during 2016 10 vest o lapre dividends
Michael Flowers 26 January 2018 16).935 37,096 104,885 194,146 £6,179
Sarah Ellard 26 |anuary 2018 143,867 20,374 57.607 106,634 £3,394

PSP awards granted in the year

The following conditional awards of shares were granted to the executive directors under the PSP during the year:

Clasing Nuraber of
shars price conditional % thac
Date Valug an date shares Face wests at Vesting
Executive aof grant of award of grant swarded value threshold decermined by
EPS growth (50%) and
B relative TSR performance
Michael Flowers 24 March 2007 150% of salary 195.75p 363,629 £711,804 5% (50%), as detailed below
Andrew Lewis 24 March 2017 150% of salary 195.75p 283,430 £554,814 25%
Sarah Ellard 24 March 2017 150% of salary 195.75p 182,297 £356,846 25%

Awards under the PSP are normally granted in |anuary of each year, fallowing the release of the results for the preceding financial year. and award levels
are calculated based on the closing share price on the trading day immediately preceding the date of grant. However, no awards were granted in January
2017, as it was intended that shareholder appraval would be sought for 4 new incentive plan ac the Annuat General Meeting in March 2017, as reported
on page 56. Following the Soard’s decision (o withdraw the resolution for approval of the new plan, the Committee agreed to revert to making awards
under the PSP on 24 March 2017, In order 1o ensure that the recipients of awards were not prejudiced by the delay in granting awards, the Committee
considered that it would be appropriate, on this occasion, to calculate the award levels based on the closing share price or 19 january 2017 i.e. the date
on which grants waould normally have been made.

The face value of each award shown above is based on the closing share price on the date of grant,

The performance conditions applying to the awards made in 2017 are based as to one half of each award on the Company's compaund EPS growth over
three financial years commencing | November 2016, and as to the ather haif of each award on the Company's TSR performance over the same
three-year performance period.

The EPS performance condition will be measured as follows:

Total compound earnings per share growth

over the three-year performance period % of earnings per share part that may vest
Less than 5% p.a. 0%

5% p.a. 25%

Berween 5% p.a. and 0% pa. On a straight-line basis between 25% and 100%

0% p.a. or more 100%
Mote:

1. Earnings per share is calculated on z fully-diluted and normaiised basis, 1s specified by the Committee priorta grant.
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The TSR perfarmance condition will be measured as follows:

Rank of the Company‘s total shareholder return against the total

shareholder return of the members of the comparacor group % of rotal shareholder return part that may vest
Below median 0%

Median 25%

Between median and upper quartile On a straight-line basis between 25% and 100%
Upper guarti'e or abgve 100%

The comparator group for the 2017 awards comprises BAE Systems, Cobham, Cohart, Esterline Technologies, FLIR Systems, L3 Communicaticns,
Leonardo Finmeccanica, Orbital ATK, QinetiQ Group, Raytheon, Rheinmerall, Rockwell Collins and Ultra Electronics.

Performance conditions for outstanding awards

Measure Diracror Awrards to exacutive directors Theeshold vescng Full vesoing
Awards made on  Total compound earnings per share  Michael Flowers 150% of salary 5% p.a. 10% p.a.
25 January 2016 growth per annum over four financial  Sarah Ellard {25% vests) (100% vests)
years commencing | November 2014
(50% of award)'!
Rank of the Company’s total Median ranking Upper quartile
shareholder return against the total (25% vests) ranking
shareholder return of the members (100% vests)

of the comparator group over three
financial years commencing
| November 2015 (50% of award)

Note:
I.  Earnings par share is calculated on a fully-diluted and normalised basis. as specified by the Committee priar to grant.

Summary of outytanding PSP awards

Number of shares under award

Closig
A Awarded Lapsed Vested AL share price an
1 Navember during during during 31 October date of
Executive 1016 the year the year the year o7 Diate of vesting gram (p)*
Michaei Flowers 108,256 - (108,256) - - - 2290
212,394 - (212,394) - - - [99.0
2990317 - - - 299,03t 26 January 2018 230.5
443,538 - - - 443,538 25 January 2019 138.4
- 363,629 - - 363,629 24 March 2020 195.7
1,063,219 363,529 (320,650) - Lie&198
Andrew Lewis - 283,430 - - 283,430 24 March 2020 195.7
- 283,430 - - 283,430
Sarah Ellard 159,802 - (159.802) - - - 2290
164,24(? - - - 164.24| 26 January 2018 230.5
222,358 - - - 222,358 25 January 2019 138.4
- 182,297 - - 182.297 24 March 2020 195.7
548,408 182,297 (159,802) - 568,896

MNotes:

1. Awards lapsed due to the performance conditons not being met.

2. Asexplained above, these awards will partially vest on 16 January 20i8.
3. Prenights issue grans share price, where appircable.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Sharesave awards
Summary of outstanding Sharesave awards

Numbaer of shares under award

At Awarded Lapsed Exercised Ac
§ November during during during 31 Octobar

Executive 2016 the pear the year the year 017 Exercisé price Exercise dace

| October 2019 -

Michael Flowers 17.142 - - - 17.142 105p 31 March 2020
§7,142 - - - I7,142

| October 2020 -

Andrew Lewis - 12,162 - - 12,162 148p 31 March 2021
- 12,182 - - 12,162

I October 2020 -

Sarah Effard - 7.297 - - 7.297 148p 31 March 2021
- 1,297 - - 7,297

Deferred share awards

Vesting of deferred share awards

The deferred award over 14,384 shares granted to Sarah Ellard in part satisfaction of her annual bonus for the year ended 31 October 2013 vested in full
on 23 January 2017, Mrs Ellard also received £1,297.80 in respect of the dividends paid on these shares during the deferral period.

Summary of outstanding deferred share awards

Number of shargs under award

At Awarded Lapsed Veszed Ar Cloging shtra
| November dunng during during 31 October price on dute of
Executive 2618 the year the year the year 017 Date of vesting grane (p)?
Michael Flowers 16,674 - - - 16,674 27 January 2018 2165
- B0,633 - - 80.633 19 January 2020 172.0

16,674 80,632 - - 97,307
Sarah Ellard 14,384 - - {14,384) - 23 January 2017 2290
21,660 - - - 21,660 27 january 2018 2265
-~ 32544 - - 32,944 19 january 2020 172.0

36,044 32,944 - (14,384) 54,604

Notes:

I Number of shares subject ta awards, after 2016 rights issue adjustment.

2. Pre rights issue grant share pree, where applicable.

3. Vesting of deferred bonus share awards is subject only wo continued service,

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS

Shareholding guidelines apply to executive directors and other participants in the PSP. Executive directors are expected to build-up and maintain a
shareholding in the Compahy eguivalent to one year's basic salary, by retaining at least 50% of the after-tax gain on vested PSP awards until such time as
the guidelines have been met. Other participants in the PSP are expected to retan a shareholding equivalent to 25% to 50% of their basi¢ salary.

The interests of the directors in the ordinary shares of the Company at 31 Ocrober 2017 are shown below. All are beneficial holdings.

Unwesced and subject 1o performance conditions undar the PSP

Legalty owned  Value of legaily Toral at Deferred

{Msnber  owred sharex Guideline 2015 2016 2007 3! Oceober bonus share Sharesave
Executive ofshares}  as % of salary met award award award 21007 awardy options
Michael Flowers 185,982 77% No 299,031 443,538 363,629 i,106,198 97,307 17142
Andrew Lewis 8,720 5% Na - - 283430 283,430 - 12,162
Sarah Eljard 43,977 36% Ne 164,24} 222,358 182,297 568,896 54,604 2287
Carl-Pater Farster 20,000 - — - - - - -~ -
Andrew Davies - - — - — - - - -
Daniel Dayan 60,500 - -~ - - - - . -
Nigel Young - - - - - - - -~ -

Naote:

1. Based on the numbar of shares legally owned, prevailing base salary and share grice of 172 5p, at 3} October 2017
The directors’ shars interests at 31 Qcetober 2017 include shares held by the directors' connected persans, if any, as required by the Regulations.

There have been nha changes to the directors’ interests in shares since 31 October 2017

70



PENSION

The following table sets out the pension benefits earned by the executive directors. Only Sarah Ellard previously accrued benefits during her former
membership of the Chemring Group Staff Pension Scheme.

Total benefit accrued at Total benefit accrued at
3! Qerober 2016 3! October 2017

Increase in

Transter valve Transfer vilue transfer value

Cach in lieu of of acervad of acerued during year
pension benefit at benefitat (less members’  Value of benefic
contributians Penswon Cash 3 Qer 2008 Pension Cash 31 Qe 2017 cantribunonsy  for singhe figure
Executive £'000 £000p.a 1900 £000 £'000pa {000 000 £000 £000
Michael Flowers 83 - - - - - - - B3
Andrew Lewis 53 - - - - - - - 53
Sarah Ellard 42 24 72 481 24 72 461 - 42

Notes:

The executive directors receive a 20% cash supplernent in lieu of pension.

Transfer values represent liabilites of the applicable scheme, and de not represent sums paid o individuals.

Transfer values have been calculated in accardance with the Occupational Pension Scheme (Transfer Value) Regulations 1996.

Sarah Eflard left pensionable servce on & April 2010 and therefore has not zccrued addinonal pension over the year. The accrued benefits shown are the benefits at the date of exit.
The scheme pravided pension at & rate of 1/80th of finai pensigrable salaty plus a cash {ump surn of 3/80ths for each year of membership. Final pensionable salary was capped ac the
HMRC notianal earnings cap, and the scheme assumed a normal retirernent age of 65, Early retirement is permissible from age 55 but accrued benefits are reduced accordingly using
the early retirement factors in force at the date of early retirement.

AW —

LOSS OF OFFICE PAYMENTS

The principles governing compensation for loss of office are set our on page 62.

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS

There were na payments made to past directors during the year.

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN PERFORMANCE GRAPH AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION TABLE

The following graph shows the Company’s cumulative total shareholder return over the last nine financial years relative o the FTSE 250 and FTSE Small
Cap Indexes. The FTSE Smail Cap has been selected by the Committee for this comparison because it provides the most appropriate measure of
performance of listed companies of a similar size to the Company. The FTSE 250 has been shown in previous years and has been incuded this year for
the purpose of continuity.

TSR graph

This graph shows the value, by 3| Octaber 2017, of £100 invested in Chemring Group PLC on 31 October 2008 compared with the vaiue of £100
invested in the FTSE 250 and FTSE SmallCap. The other points are the values at intervening financial year ends.
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Governance

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Chief Executive remuneration table
The totai remuneration figures for the Group Chief Executive during each of the fast nine financial years are shown in the table below. Mask Papworth
replaced David Price as Group Chief Executive on 5 November 2012, and Michael Flowers replaced Mark Papworth on 24 june 2014

The total remuneration figures for 2012 and 2014 include the payments for loss of office made to David Price and Mark Papworth respectively

The total remuneration figure for each year mcludes the annual bonus based on that year's performance and, where apphicable, vested PSP awards
based on the three-year performance period ending in the relevant year. The annual bonus payout and PSP award vesting level as a percentage of the
max#num opportubity aré also shawn for each of these years.

Mark Mark Papworth/!

David Price Papworth  Michael Flowers Michael Flowers
1009 2010 2011 2002 2013 2014 2015 2015 2017
Total remuneration (£000) 1,309 1,391 1,239 1,325 785 84| 507 855 831
Annual bonus (% of maximum) 94% 61% 0% 0% 40% 50% 0% 68 3% 59.5%
PSP awards vesting (% of maxirmum} 100% 100% 100%  54.375% % 0% 0% 0% 0%

PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN THE GROUFP CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

The tabie below shows the percentage change in the Group Chief Executive's totat remuneration (exciuding the value of any PSF awards and pension
benefits receivable in the year) between the 2016 and 2017 financial years, compared to that of the average for all eligible employees of the Group.

% Charge from 1016 to 1017

~ Salary Benatits Arnnual bonus
Group Chief Executive 27 48 (10.6)
2.0 59 36.6

Average of other empioyees

The Committee is cognisant of the proposed mntroduction of legislauon which will require comparies to pubkish ratios comparing Chief Executive to
employse pay. The Company has prepared this analysis internally, and it has been reviewed and considered by the Committee. The Cemmittee has not,
however, published this daxa in this report as it is concerned that the methodology for these companisons has not yet been formally announced. The
Committee will publish ratios showing comparisons in future years when UK regulations or guidance introduce a common or specified methodology.

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY

The following table shows the Company's actual spend on pay (for all employees} relative 1o dividends and retaimed profits:

1017 s

£m im % change

Staff costs 130.4 1394 (6.3)
Dividends 6.4 - N/A
1S 1218 {6.9)

Retained profits

The dividends figures relate to amounts payable in respect of the relevant finanoial year

SHAREHOLDER VOTING ON THE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

AT THE 2017 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Ar the Annual General Meeting held on 17 March 2017, the resolution relating to the directors’ remuneration report received the following votes
from shareholders:

Total number % of
of votes wotes cast

Directors' remuneration report
229703217 98.08%

For

Against 4,501,178 1.92%

Total votes cast (for and against excluding withheld votes) 234,204,395 100.0%

Votes withheid' 2,365,184 |.00%
236,569,581 100.0%

Total votes cast (including withheld votes)

Note:
|. A wvote withheld 15 not 3 vote in law and 15 not counted in the calculation of the proportien of votes cast “for" and "aganst” a resolution,
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SHAREHOLDER VOTING ON THE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY AT THE 1016
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

At the Annual General Meeting held on 21 March 2016, the resclution retating to the directors’ remuneration policy received the following votes
from shareholders:

Tatal number
of votes % aof vores cast

Directors’ remuneration policy

For 215,625426 91.12%

Against - 21,014,549 8.68%

Total votes cast (for and against excluding withheld votes) 136,639,975 100.0%

Votes withheld' ) 2,094,082 0.58%

Total votes cast (including withheld votes) 238,734,057 100.0%
Note:

1. Avore withheld is not a vote 1n law and 1s nar counted in the cafculation of the propartion of vores cast "for” and "against” 2 resoiution

APPLICATION OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY FOR 2018

Base salary

The executive directors' salaries were reviewed m November 2017. The salary increases, which took effect from | January 2018, are set out below, The
percentage increase applied to the executive directors’ safaries was in line with the average salary increase for UK employees.

Salary ax at Percentage
Executive | January 2018 increase
Michael Flowers £427.386 2.5%
Andrew Lewis £333,125 2.5%
Sarah Ellard £214,261 2.5%

Pension/benefits

No changes are proposed to the structure of pension and benefits provision for 2018.

Fees for the Chairman and non-executive directors

As detziled in the remuneration policy, the Company’s approach to setting the non-executive directors’ remuneration takes account of recognised practice,
and is set at a leve! that is sufficient to artract and rewin high-calibre non-executives. Detalls of the fees that will apply for 2018 are set out below.

Fea 2sat Percentage

§ jarusary 2018 increase

Chairman's fee £200,000 0%
Other non-executive directors’ base fee £55,000 0%
Audit Committee Chair fee ‘ £10,000 0%
Remuneration Committes Chalr fee £10,000 0%

Annual bonus plan

The annyal banus plan for 2018 will operate on a similar basis to 2017. The performance measures and weightings for the annual bonus plan will therefore
be as follows:

As 1 percantage of maximum

Measure bonus oppartunity
Earnings per share 37.5%
Operating cash flow 37.5%
Personal objectives 25.0%

Personal objectives have been set to reflect performance in the following key areas:

= Heaith and safety

*  Operational improvement

« Organisationaf performance

= Strategy and business development

* Financial and corporate management
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Governance

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT continued .

The Commirttee does not believe that it would be in sharenoiders’ interests to prospectively disclose the financial targets under the annual benus plan
due to issues of commerdial sensitivity, However, detailed retrospective disclosure of both the financial targets and the personal objectives, and
performance against them, will be included in next year's annual report on remuneration.

No bonus will be payable in respect of the personal objectives unless the Caommictee s satisfied chac chis is juscified by cthe Group’s underlying
performance, including inter alia levels of profitability and cash flow.

The 2018 bonus plan is consistent with the remuneration policy detailed on pages 58 to 63, in terms of maximum bonus opportunity, deferred share

arrangements and clawback.

Performance Share Plan

l215 intended that the performance condition for the annual awards granted to the executive directors under the PSP in 2048 will incorporate two
metrics, namely growth in adjusted EPS and relative TSR measured against an international peer group of defence sector companies, as listed below.
Fach metric will determine the vasting of 50% of the 20618 awards. 25% of each part of the award will vest for threshold or median performance, with fufl
vesting of each part of the award for stretch or upper quartile performance,

The EPS performance condition for the 2018 awards will be measured as follows:

Total compound earnings per share growth aver the three year

performance period % of earnings per share part that may vest
Less than 5% p.a. 0%

5% p.a. 25%

Between 5% p.a. and 10% p.a. On a straight-line basis between 25% and 100%
10% p.a. or more 100%

The TSR performance condstion for the 2018 awards will be measured as follows:

Rank of the Company's total shareholder return against the

toral shareholder return of the members of the comparator group % of total sharsholder return part that may vest
Below median 0%

Median 25%

Between median and upper quartie On a strafghc-fine basis between 25% and (00%
Upper quartile or above 100%

The defence sector peer group for the 2018 awards comprises: BAE Systems, Cobham, Cohort, Esterline Technologies, FLIR Systems, L3 Technologies,
Leonardo Finmeccanica, QinetiQ Group, Raytheon, Rheinmetall and Ultra Electronics.

APPROVAL OF THE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

The directors’ remuneration report was approved by the Board on |8 january 2018.

Signed on behalf of the Board

Daniel Dayan
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2017

a7 2018
Nan- Non-
Underlying undertying Underlyirg wrderbying
performance ems' Total perior mance items! Toral
Mote im im &m £m m &m
Continuing operations
Revenue 1,2 547.5 - 547.5 477.1 - 4771
Operating profit 2.4 §5.4 (40.1) 15.3 48.5 (22.3) 52
Finance expense [ (£1.3) - (11.3) (14.5) 3.7 (i8.2)
Profit before tax 44,1 (40.1) 4.0 34.0 {26.0) 40
Taxation 7 (8.4) .2 0.9 .1} 5.6 (1.5}
Profit after tax 34.0 (32.9) 3.1 26.9 (20.9) 6.5
Discontinued operations
Profit after tax from discontinued operations 28 - 3.5 15 - 46 4.6
Profit after tax 31s8.0 (29.4) 6.6 269 {15.8) 1t
2017 2016
Non- Non-
Underlying underlying Underbnng ungerlying
Earnings per ordinary share MNate performance items' Tortal performancs terms! Total
Continuing operations
Basic 9 12.9p (iL.8)p Ap 10.3p {7.8)p 2.5p
Diluted 9 I2.6p {(11.5)p p 10.Ip {7.Np 2.4p
Continuing and discontinued operations
Basic 9 12.9p (10.5)p 2.4p 10.3p {6.p 4.2p
Diluted 9 12.6p (10.3)p 2.3p 10.1p (5.9 4.2p

| Further informauon about non-underlying items is set outin nate 3.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTQOBER 2017

2017 2016
MNote m m
Profit after tax attributable to equity holders of the parent as reported 6.6 HIN]
Iterns that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Actuarial gains/{losses) on defined benefit pension schemes 9 .9 (38)
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension schemes 22 {2.0) ]
9.9 (3.0)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and foss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (1L.6) 33.0
Current tax an items Laken directly to equity (3.0 0.8
Deferred tax on exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 22 0.8 47
1.9 385
Total comprehensive income attributable to equity hoiders of the parent 2.6 46.6
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Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2017

Share Soecial
Share premum " capread Raval Fransl. Dwn
capital account reserve reserve reserve earnings shares Toual
tm m ém £m £m Em £m £fm
At | November 20156 2.8 305.1 2.9 1§ {207 1208 (9.6) 4134
Impact of adaption of IFRS 13 (hote 33) - - - - - (10.2) - (10.2)
Profit after tax - - - 6.6 - 65
Other comprehensive income - 4.1 44 - 0.3
Tax relating to components of
other comprehensive income - - - - - “.3) — 4.3
Total comprehensive income - — - - 4.0 6.7 - 26
Ordinary shares issued - 02 - - - - - 02
Share-based payments (net of settlerent) - - - - - i6 - 1.6
Dividends paid - - - - - {6.4) - (6.4)
At 31 October 2017 2.8 305.3 129 1! (24.8) H35 (9.6) 401.2
Share Special
Share premium capical Revaluation Transtanor Retained Own
capital account reserve resarve reserve earnings shares Total
m im im n &m im im £m
At | November 2015 20 230.7 12.9 1.2 (32.3) 85.7 (2.6} 290.6
Profit after tax - - - - — L1 - 1.1
Orther comprehensive income - - - - 1.6 17.6 - 29.2
Tax relating t¢ components of
ather comprehensive income - - - - - 6.3 - 6.3
Total comprehensive income - - - - L6 50 - 46.6
Ordinary shares issued 08 744 - - - - - 752
Share-based payments (het of settdement) - - - - - 1.0 - 1.0
Transfers berween reserves ~ - - .1 - 0. - -
At 31 October 2016 28 305.1 129 1.} (20.7) 121.8 (9.6) 4134
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2017

1017 2018
MNowe im m m im
Non-current assets
Goodwil 12 125.4 1329
Development costs 1 337 409
Other intangible assets 1 57.0 I
Property, plant and equipment 12 160.1 1799
Deferred tax 12 63.1 59.6
439.4 490.4
Current assets
Inventories |4 1.6 104.8
Trade and other receivables 15 131.0 1142
Cash znd cash equivalents 16,32 316 63.1
Derivative financial instruments 20 0.4 0.5
262.6 282.6
Total assets 702.0 773.0
Current liabilities
Borrowings 17.32 (51.8) {29.5)
Obligations under finance leases '7.18 - .n
Trade and other payables 19 (19 (107.3)
Prowisions 2 (6.5) (4.5)
Current tax (5.5) 3.1y
Cerivative financial instruments 29 (0.4) (2.5)
(175.9) (147.0)
Non-current liabitities
Borrowings 17,32 {61.9) {121.0)
Trade and cther payables 19 - (4.0}
Provisions 21 (8.8) (1.7y
Deferred tax 22 (53.5) {58.5}
Preference shares 17,23 o.n {0.1
Retirement benefit obligations 29 (0.6) {17.3)
(124.9) (212.6)
Total liabilities (300.8) (359.6)
Net assets 401.2 413.4
Equity
Share capital 23 2.8 28
Share premium account 305.3 305.1
Special capital reserve 12.9 129
Revaluation reserve 1.1 i1
Translation reserve (24.8) (20
Retained earnings s 121.8
410.8 423.0
Own shares 25 (9.6) (9.6)
Total equity 401.2 4(34

These financial statements of Chemring Group PLC (registered number B6662) were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

18 |anuary 2018.

Sigred on behalf of the Board

Michael Flowers Sarah Eflard
Director Direcror
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Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3t OCTORER 2017

017 016
Nots £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from underlying operavions 3Q 47.1 Bl4
Cash impact of non-underlying icems (6.3) 8.1
Cash flows from operating activities 40.8 73.3
Retirement benefit deficit recovery contribunons (5.0) (5.0
Tax paid (3.6) (3.1)
MNer cash inflow from operating activities 312 85.2
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of intangible assets (3.9) (6.7)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (12.6) {10.33
Acquisition of subsidiary undertaking, net of cash acqured - 2.5)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 0.
Net cash outflow from investing activities (16.5) (194}
Cash flows from financing activities
Net praceeds of share 1ssue - 754
Dividends paid g (5.4) -~
Finance expense paid (9.3) (1.9
Accelerated interest costs - {3.7)
Loan note repayment costs - (1.4
Capitalised facility fees paid (0.5) (0.5)
Repayments of borrowings (18.8) (48.8)
Repayments of obligations under finance leases (.1 0.3)
Met cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities (45.1) 8.8
(Decrease)iincrease in cash and cash equivalents {29.4) 34.6
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 63.1 7.6
Effect of fareign exchange rare changes (0.1) 09
16,32 33.8 63.1

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i. REVENUE

All of the Group's revenue is derived from the sale of goods and the provision of services. The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s

revenue by destination:

Countermeasures Sensors Energetics w17
tm Len im im
LK 17.8 43.5 4.0 B5.3
USA 43.3 29.8B 189.7 244.8
Eurcpe 15.9 7.1 19.1 42.1
Asia Pacific 45.8 5.4 0.9 52.1
Middle East 9.5 a.l 83.7 HO1.3
Rest of the world 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.9
[34.8 94.5 31a.2 5475
Countermeasures Sensors Energetics 015
£m im im im
UK .4 429 254 797
USA 57.8 5.7 135.6 230.1
Eurcpe 13.1 0.5 12.6 262
Asia Pacific 307 49 1.9 375
Middle East 24.6 17 65.3 101.6
Rest of the world 0.7 01 [ 2.0
138.3 96.9 2419 477

The directors consider that the only countries that are significant in accordance with IFRS 8 Operoting Segments are the LISA and the UK.

The following table disclases the split of the Group's revenue between goads and services:

Countermeasures Sengsars Energetics pLilks
&m £m £m n
Goods 130.3 303 3t4.8 475.4
Services 4.5 64.2 34 72.1
134.8 94.5 318.2 547.5
Courtermeasures Sensors Encrgencs 0ls
€m £m £m £m
Goods 136.4 40,2 2389 415.5
Services 1.9 56.7 30 él.6
138.3 96.9 i419 477.1

All revenues recognised arose from contracts with customers.

In 2017 £0.6m (2016: £0.2m) of revenue was recognised in respect of performance obligations satisfied in previous periods,

As ar 3| Ocrober 2017 £478.0m (2016: £592.9m) of revenue was outstanding in respect of obligations that were unfulfilfed or only partially fulfilied
2s at the year end. £360.9m (2016: £368.0m) of this revenue is expectad to be recognised in the next financial year and £117.1m (2016: £224.9m} in

future periods.
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

1. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

IFRS B Operonng Segments requires operating segments to be idenufied on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the Group Chief Executive and the Board to allocate resources to the segments and (o assess their performance. For
management purposes, the Group's operating and reporting structure clusters simitar businesses together within the following three operating
segments — Countermeasures, Sensors and Energetics. These segments are the basis on which the Group reports its segmental information. The
principal activities of each segment are as follows:

Countermeasures Development and manufacture of expendable countermeasuares for air, sea and kand platforms, and land—based
electronic warfare equipment,

Sensors Developrnent and manufacture of IED detection equipment, chemical and biclogical threat detection equipment,
|IED electronic countermeasures, network protection téchnologies and explosive ordnance disposal equipment.

Energetics Development, procurement and manufacture of signals and illumination devices and payloads, cartridge /
propellant actuated devices, pyrotechnic devices for satellite launch and deployment, missile and ammunition
companents, 40mim ammunition, propellants, warheads, fuses, separanon sub-systems, actuators and energetic
macerials.

A segmental analysis of revenue and operating profit is set out below:

< Senaor Energesics  Unallocated Total
Year ended 31 October 2017 [ twm £m im &m
Revenue 134.8 94.5 318.2 - 54718
(Segment result before depreciation, amertisation and non-underlying items 29.8 10.2 41.2 {10.2) 8t.0
Depreciation {10.8) (1.8) 5.9) 0.0 (18.5)
Amortisation (2.3} “.1) (0.5) (0.1) (7.n
Segmental undetlying aperating profit 18.7 4.3 34.8 (19.4) 55.4
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (0.4) (7.0) (7.6) - (15.9)
MNon-underlying items {note 3) (3.6) (5.4) {16.2) [N ] (25.1)
Segmental operating profit 1.7 1.¢ 1.0 (10.3) 15.3
Finance expense - - - {t.3) {1.})
Profit before 1ax 12.7 .9 1.0 (11.8) 4.0
Tax - - - (0.9) {0.9)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 12.7 (B4 1.0 {22.5) kA
Discontinued operations - - - 35 35
Profit for the year 12.7 1Ly 11.0 (19.0) 6.6
Other segment items
Property, plant and equipment - addiuons 4.1 I.o 7.2 0.1 1.4
Intangible assets - additions 0.4 33 0.3 - 4.0

82




2. BUSINESS SEGMENTS CONTINUJFD

Coumermeasures” Sensors Energencs Lnallocacea Toral
Year ended 3t Occober 2014 £m n tm im £m
Revenue 138.3 969 241 9 - 477.1
Segment result before depredation, amortisation and non-underlying items 25.2 18.0 378 (7.2) 738
Depreciation (10.6) (2.2) (5.5) Q.1) {18.4) |
Amortisation (1.8) 4.4) {0.6) @1 [(:%)]
Segmental underlying operating profic 12.8 1.4 317 74 48.5
Amartisation of acauired intangibles 0.2) 7.1 (7.5) - (14.8)
Non-underlying items (note 3) (0.9} (0.8) (3.3) (2.5) 7.5)
Segmental operating profit 1.7 35 209 9.9) 262
Finance expense - - - (18.2) {18.2)
Profit before tax 7 35 209 (28.1) 8.0
Tax - - - (1.5) (1.5)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 1.7 a5 209 {29.6) 65
Driscontinued operations - - - 4.6 4.6
Profitfor the year 17 35 209 (25.0) 1.1
Other segment items
Property, plant and aguipment — additions X 4 5.0 0.3 10.3
Intangible assets — additions 31 5.1 0.6 B.8

*  The year ended 3| October 2016 includes £2.8m of insurance procesds in refation to a business mterruption claim folowing an earlier energetic incident.

Assets and liabilities by segment are not reported to the Group Chief Executive on 2 monthly basis, therefore are not used as a key decision making tool

and are not disclosed here. A disclosure of non-current assets by location is shawn below:

2017 2018

Non-current assets by location m £m
UK 224.8 24%.|
LSA 186.9 20%.1
Norway 5.0 5.4
Australia 22.7 26.8
439.4 490.4

Information on major customers

Inchided in segmental revenues for continuing operations are revenues of £(97.8m (2016: £147.6m), which arcse from sales to the Group's largest
tustomer, The largest customer had sales reported in all of the Group’s businass sagments. This was the only individual customer where direct sales

accounted for more than 10% of Group revenue from continuing and discontinued operations for the year.
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

3. ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES
In 2ccardance with our accounting policy we have presented the following reconciliation of Alternative Performance Measures used throughout this
report to ther IFRS equivalent measures as foliows:

w017 016
Non-underlying items and non-underlying measures tm m
Acquisition and disposal related costs (2.3) 0.3)
Business restructuring and incident costs (14.3) (5.4)
Claim related (costs)/credits (0.4) 0.6
impairment of business (note 10) {v.8) -
Loan note repayment costs - (14)
Gain/(loss) on the movement in the fair value of derivative financal instruments {note 20} () (1.0}
Less non-underlying depreciation in business restructuring and incident costs 1.0 -
impact of nan-underlying items an EBITDA (24.1) {7.5)
Non-underfying depreciation in business restructuring and incident costs {1.0) -
Intangible amortisation arising from business combinations (note | 1) (15.0) (14.8)
impact of non-underlying items on operating profit (#0.1} (22.3)
Non-underlying accelerated interest costs - 3.7
Impact of non-undertying [tems on profit before tax (40.1) (26.0}
Tax impact of nan-underlying items 7.2 5.6
Impact of hon-underlying iterns on continuing profit after tax (32.9) (20.4)
Discontinued operations 35 4.7
Tax on discontinued operations - 0.1
Impact of non-underlying items on profit after tax (29.4) {15.8)

The impact of non-underlying items on statutory basic and diluted EPS. as well as a reconciliation to the IFRS equivalent, is presented in note 9. The
impact of non-underlying items on cash generated from operating activities, as well as a reconcibation to the IFRS equivalent, is presented i note 30.

Acquisition costs and disposal related credits

Acquisition and disposal related costs of £2.3m (2016: £0,3m) relate to transaction costs and an earnout payment on the acquisition of Wallop Defence
Systems’ assets for which no provision was made at the time of acquisition. The removal of these items from underlying measures is in line with our
aceounting pelicy and improves comparability of information between reporting periods.

Business restructuring and incident costs
In 2017, business restructuring and incident costs of £14.3m principally comprise of restructuring costs in relation to the site closures / consolidations at
facilitias in California, Philadelphia and Virginia.

In 2017, there was a £5.9m (2016: £2.6m) difference between the business restructuring and incident costs recoghised in the income statement and the
outflow appearing in the cash flow statement due to the timing of paymencts, asset write-cffs and other non-cash movements.

In 2016, business restructuring and incident costs of £5.4m principally comprised of restructuring costs in relation to Chemring Defence UK and across
the US businesses, partly offset by insurance proceeds in relation to a property damage claim following an earlier energetic incident.

The removal of these items from underlying measures is in line with our accounting policy and improves cormparability of information between reporting periods.

Claim related (costs)/credits
In 2017, claim related costs of £0.4m relate to the legal costs of a case relating ta an historic transaction, which remains ongoing, and the final settlement of
claims regarding the manufacture of certain components for the Next Generation Light Anti-Tank Weapon ("NLAW™} by Chemring Energetics UK,

In 2016, the claim related credit of £0.6m relates to the final sectlement of the claim brought by the US Department of Justice relating to historical
supplies of product by Kilgere. This claim is being settled in cash over a five-year pericd commencing 201 6.

The costs and credits incurred are a result of claims that have previously been presented as non -underlying. In order tc improve comparability these are
presented consistently with previous reporting periods, in non-underlying results.

Impairment of business
The Group has recognised a total impairment loss of £10.6m {2016: £nil), which includes £0.8m relating to taxation, in respect of the Chemring Defence

UK business. This is based on the current market conditions in the military and law enforcement pyrotechnics market.

Other
Unallocated items indude £nil (2016: £3.7m] of accelerated interest due on early repayment of loan notes, £nil (2018: £1.4m) of ican note repayment
casts and a £1.7m gain (2016: £1.0m loss) an the movement in fair value of derivative financial instruments. Alsc included is the amortisation charge

arising from business combinations of £15.0m (2016: £14,8m).

These items are all removed from underlying measures in line with our accounting palicy. The removal of these items allows for improved comparability
between reporting periods.
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3. ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES CONTINUED
Discontinued operations

Disposal related credits of £3.5m {201é: £4.7m) primarily reiate to the expiry of certain tax, environmental and property liabitities arising from the
disposal of several businesses in prior years. For further information on discontinued operations related credits see note 28.

Net debt
An analysis and reconciliation of net debt is presented in note 32,
EBITDA
In our financial review we present measures of EBITDA which is calculated as follows:

2017 016

£m £m

Operating profit 15.3 6.2
Amortisation arising from business combinations (note 4) 15.0 14.8
Amortisatian arising from development costs {note 4) 69 5.8
Amortisation arising from patents and licences (note 4) 8.2 0.l
Depreciation (note [2) 1a.5 8.4
Non-underlying depreciation in business restructuring and incident costs (note 12} 1.0 -
EBITDA 56.9 66.3
Non-underlying items 24.1 75
Underlying EBITDA 81.0 73.4

Constant currency revenue

I our financial review we present a measure of constant currency revenue. This is calculated by translating our results ‘or the year ended 31 October

2007 at the average exchange rates for the comparative year ended 31 Ociober 2016.

4. OPERATING PROFIT
Operating profitis stated after charging/{crediting):

007 2016
Lm Em
Research and development costs — customer-funded 4Lt 43.4
~ internally-funded 1.4 77
Amortisation — arising from business combinations 15.0 14.8
— development costs [ R 6.8
— patents and licences 3.2 i
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment - owned assets i8.4 18.3
—leased assets 0.1 0.1
Loss an disposal of non-current assets 3.4 0.2
Operating lease rentals — plant and machinery [.3 13
~ other 0.5 0.6
Government grants (0.1 {0.3)
Foreign exchange kasses 2.4 33
Suaff costs (note 5) 130.4 139.1
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 1709 2051
Acquisition and disposal related costs — contibuing operations (note 3) 2.3 a3
- discontinued operations (note 28) 3.5 “wn
Business restructuring and incident costs (note 3) 14.3 54
Claim related costs/(credits) {note 3) 0.4 (0.6)
Impairment of business {note [0) 9.8 -
(Gain)/loss on the movement in the fair value of derivative financial instruments (note 20) {(.n 1.0
Loan note repayment costs - 14
Auditor's remuneration 0.9 1.8
A detailed analysis of the auditars remuneration on a waorldwide basis is set out befow:
2017 wle
Auditor's remuneration fm fm
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for:
— the audit of the Company's annual accounts 0.3 04
- the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries, pursuant to legislation 0.5 05
0.8 0.9
Other services
Audit-related assurance services 0.1 0.l
Other assurance services - 035
Tax services — compliance - 013
0.1 0.9
0.9 1.8
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

4. OPERATING PROFIT CONTINUFD
Included in the fees for the audit of the Company's annual accounts is £0.Im (2016; £0.2m) in respect, of the parent company.

A description of the work of the Audit Committee is set out in the Audit Committee report on pages 52 to 55, and indludes an explanation of how
auditor objectivity and independence is safeguarded when non-audit services are provided by the auditor. No services were provided by the auditor

pursuant to contingent fee arrangements.

5. STAFF COSTS
The average monthly number of employees, including executive directors, was:

017 15

Number Number

Direct 1,464 1,620
Indirect 1,046 1,084
2,510 2,704

At the year end, the number of employees was 2,651 (2016. 2,57 7). The costs incurred in respect of employees. including share-based payments, were:

2017 2018

£m €m

Wages and salaries 110.4 118.2
Social security cosis 12.0 13.0
Other pension costs 6.1 6.2
Share-based payment charge 1.9 1.0
130.4 139.1

6. FINANCE EXPENSE 2617 2016
im £m
Bank overdraft and loan interest 1.1 1.2
Loan notes interest 7.4 9.6
Finance lease interest - Q.
Amortisation of debt finance costs 2.4 2.8
Interest cost of retirement benefit obligations {note 39} 4 0.8
Underlying finance expense 11.3 14.5

Non-underlying items include €nil (2016: £3.7m) of accelerated interest casts due on early repayment of loan notes. Ineluding this non-underlying item,

the total finance expense for continuing operations was £11.3m (2016: £18.2m).

7. TAX -

20te

{n im

Current tax (charge) /credit (10.7y 5.3
Deferred tax credit/{charge) (note 22) 9.8 (6.8}
Tax charge for continuing operations (0.9 {1.5)

Income tax in the UK is calculated at 19.4% (2016: 20.0%) of the taxable profit for the year. Tax for ather jurisdictions is caleulated at the rates prevaiting

in those jurisdictions.

The tax credit for continuing operations can be reconciled to the income statement as follows:

017 016

im &m

Profit before tax from continuing operations 4.0 8.0
Tax at the UK corporation 1ax rate of 19.4% (2016: 20.0%) {0.8) (1.6)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (6.3) -
Changes in tax rates (0.8) 0.2
Tax losses not recognised/carried forward (1.2) -
Prior pericd adjustments {6.3) 54
Adjustment to provision for interest restriction (hote 22} 4.1 (10.8)
Overseas profits taxed at rates different to the UK standard rate 4.1 5.5
Tax charge for continuing operations 09 (1.5)
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7. TAX CONTINUED
In addition to the tzx credit in the income statement, a tax charge of £4.3m (2016: £6.3m credit) has been recognised in equity in the year.

In 2016 the prior year adjustment arises primarily as a result of the recognition of additional losses in the UK and US groups.

The effective rate of tax on the profit before tax of the Group is 22.5% (2016: 18.9%), and the effective rate of rax on the underlying profit before tax of
the Group is 18.4% (2016: 20.9%). The decrease in the effective rate of tax on the results of the Group is primarily due to the geographic mix of profits,
changes ta the amounts of deferred tax assets considered receverable in respect of both tax losses and US interest limitations, prior year adjustments
and the recent changes in UK corporation tax rates.

Factors affecting the tax charge in future years

The Group's future tax charge and effective tax race could be affected by several factors including; tax reform in countries around the world, including
any arising from the implementation of the OECD's BEPS acrions and European Commission initiatives such as the proposed anti-tax avoidance
directive, tax and financial reporting directive or as a consequence of state aid investigations, future corporate acquisitions and disposzals and any
restructuring of our business,

See note 22 for detait on the impact of the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.

8. DIVIDENDS

007 086

_ m Lm
Dividends paid on ordinary shares of Ip each

Final dividend of i.3p per share for the year ended 31 October 2016 316 -

Interim dividend of ).0p per shars for the year ended 31 Ocraber 2017 2.8 -

Total dividends 6.4 -

The final dividend of 2.0p per ordinary share will be paid on 20 April 2018 10 all shareholders registered at the close of business on 6 April 2018,
The total dividend for the year will therefore be 3.0p (2016: 1.3p) per ordinary share. The final dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting and, accordingly, has not been included as a liability in the financial statements for the year ended 3t October 2017,

The cumulative preference shares carry an entitlement to a dividend at the rate of 7p per share per annum which was paid in equal instalments on
30 April 2017 and 3f October 20|7.

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

On 24 February 2016, 85,915,828 new ordinary shares were issued pursuant to the rights issug, with four new ordinary shares issued for every nine
existing ordinary shares held. As 3 result, the tortal share capital increased to 279,226,442 ordinary shares. For the calculation of earnings per share,
the weighted average number of shares in issue for periods prior to the rights issue has been increased by 14.2% to reflect the bonus element of the
rights issue.

Earnings per share are based on the average number of shares in issue, excluding own shares held, of 279.244.616 (20t6: 26),386,484).

Diluted earnings per share has been calculated using a diluted average number of shares in issue, excluding own shares held, of 285,023,906 (2016;
266,191,422).

The number of shares used in the calculations are as follows:

1017 014
Ordinary shares Crdinary shares
Number Number
milllons roilbons
Weighted average number of shares used to calculate basic earnings per share 279.2 261.4
Addtional shares issuable other than at fair value in respect of options outstanding 5.8 48
Weighted average number of shares used to calculate diluted earnings per share 850 266.2
The earnings used in the caleulations of the various measures of earnings per share are as follows:
2047 016
Basic EPS  Diluted EFS BasicBPS  Druted EPS
&m {pence) (pence) im {pence} {pence)
Underlying profit after tax 35.0 12.9 12.6 269 10.3 0.1
Non-underying items [note 3) 32.9) 1.8) (11.5) (20.4) (7.8) an
Profit from continuing aperaticns 3.1 14 1.1 6.5 2.5 24
Profit from discontinued operations 3.5 1.3 i1 44 1.7 1.8
Total profit after tax 6.6 1.4 2.3 1.4 42 4.2
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Financiai Starements

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

10. GOODWILL

m
Cost
Ar | November 2015 175.0
Foreign exchange adjustments 275
At 31 October 2016 206.5
Foreign exchange adjustments (10.4)
At 31 October 2017 196.1
Accumulated impairment losses
Ac | November 2015 (57.8)
Foreign exchange adjustments ({15.8)
At 31 Ocrober 2046 {73.6)
Impairment 3.0y
Fareign exchange adjustrments 59
Ag 31 October 2017 (70.7)
Carrying amounct
At 31 October 2017 125.4
Ac 3] October 2018 132.9

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated at acquisition to the cash-generating units (“CGLIs”) thar are expected 1o benefit from that
business combination, The carrying amount of the goadwill has been aliocated to the Group's principal CGUs.

The Group tests gopodwill at least annually for impairment. Tests are conducted more frequently i chere are indications that goodwill might be impaired.
The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value-in-use caleulations. The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations have been
individually estimated for each CGU and include the discount rates and expected changes to cash lows during the period for which management has
detailed plans, which are underpinned by the winning and execution of key contracts.

Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
each of the CGUs. Pre-tax discount rates, derived from the Group's post-tax weighted average cost of capital of 6.9% (2016: 8.1%) which have been
adjusted for a premium specific to each of the CGUs to account for differences in currency risk. country risk and ather factors affecting specific CGUs,
have been used to discount projected cash flows. These premiums range from 2% to 4% (2016: 2% to 4%).

Expected changes to cash flows during the period for which management has detailed plans refate o revenue forecasts, expected contract outcomes
and forecast operating margins in each of the operating companies. The relative value ascribed to each varies between CGLUs as the budgets are built up
from the underlying operating companies within each CGU, but the key assumption for each CGU s that demand from the U§ and UK governments and
customers in our other principal markets for the product offering in each company will recover from its current low base. In the case of Chemring
Sensors & Electronic Systems, inc, CGU, this will be to a jeve! seen historically and in the case of the Roke Manar Research Limited and Chemring
Energetic Devices, Inc. CGUs it wiil cantinue at a similar or slighdy enhanced level.

The calculations have used the Group’s forecast figures for the next five years. This is based on data derived from the five year plar that has been
approved by the Board. At the end of five years, the calculations assume the performance of the CGUs will grow at 2 nominal annual rate of 0.5% in
perpetuity. Growth rates are based on management s view of industry growth forecasts. Changes in seiling prices and direct costs are based on past
practices and expectations af future changes.

The pre-tax discount rates used for value-in-use calculations and the carrying value of goodwill by the principal CGUs are:

2017 ole wiT W&

% % im £m

Roke Manor Research Limited H.5 13.1 18.4 8.4
Chemring Energetics UK Limited 10.4 1.8 18.1 18.4
Chemring Sensors & Electronic Systems, Inc. 13.9 153 15.4 385
Chemring Defence UK Limited 1.7 4.4 - 3.0
Chemring Energetic Devices, Inc. 13.7 15.4 15.6 17.0
Other 1719 79
£15.4 132.9

The pre-tax discount rates used for other CGUs ranged from 11.7% to 19.3% (2016: 13.0% to 17.5%).
The Board has concluded that the goodwill relating to Chermring Defence UK Limited is impaired and a charge of £3.0m has been recorded in 2017. This

assessment is based on current market conditions in the military and law enforgement pyrotechnics market. The total impairment loss is £|0.6m and
also covers property, plant and equipment of £5.4m (see note 12) and other assets of £2,2m, which includes deferred tax of £0.6m.
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10. GOODWILL CONTINUED

The weighted average cost of capital is derived using beta values of a comparator group of defence companies adjusied for funding structures as
appropriate. The beta values of this group have reduced during the year leading to generally lower pre-tax discount rates being used compared to the
year ended 31 October 2016.

FoHowing a detailed review, no other impairment losses were recognised in the years ended 31 Ccrober 2017 and 31 Qctober 2016,

Stress testing was performed on the forecasts to consider the impact of severe but playsible reasonable worst case scenarios in the first two years,
including significant delays to major contracts and new product launches followed by a 10% fall in the forecast cash flows. Even under these
circumstances, no other CGUs would require an impairment against goodwill.

A 1% addition to the discount rate for each CGU was also separately modelled, and would not result in any CGUs requiring any impairment.

Setung long-term growth rates beyond the five year forecast period to zero would not result in impairment of 2ny CGUs requiring any impairment.

1. OTHER iINTANGIBLE ASSETS

Acguired
Development Acquired customer Patents and
costs technology  relationshins licences Tatal
£m im fm £m £m

Cost
At | November 2015 545 85.8 931 1.5 180.4
Additions 67 0.5 .6 - 2.
Disposals 4.0) @n (28.) 0.9 (33.7)
Foreign exchange adjustments 72 19.5 209 04 40.8
At 3| Ocrober 2016 644 0L B7.5 1.0 189.6
Additions 39 - - 0.1 0.1
Disposals (3.6} - (4.3 (0.5) {4.8)
Foreign exchange adjustments (3.0} (7.4) 5.9) .1 (3.4)
At 31 October 2017 14 937 773 0.5 171,53
Amaortisation
At | Novernber 2015 (8.4 (46.1) G20 (1.0) (106.2)
Charge (6.8) (8.6 (6.2) Q.0 (14.9)
Disposals 35 47 28.1 09 337
Foreign exchange adjustments (1.8 (10.8) (14.0) 0.3) (25.1)
At3l Octaber 2016 23.5) {60.8) 512 0.5) {12.5)
Charge (6.9) (8.6 {6.4) (0.2) (15.2)
Disposals 1.&6 - 4.3 05 48
Foreign exchange adjustments o8 47 36 0. 84
Az 3| October 2017 (28.0 (64.7} 49.7) (0.1) {114.5)
Carrying amount
At 31 October 2017 33.7 29.0 7.6 [ X ] 57.0
A1 31 October 2016 409 40.3 363 0.5 T

Acquired intangibles are recognised at fair value on acquisition and are amortsed over their estimated useful lives. Far values for acquired intangibles
are assessed by reference to future estimated cash flows, discounted at an appropriate rate to present value, or by reference to the amount that would
have been paid inan arm’s length transaction between two knowledgeable and willing parties. Other intangible assets are recognised ar costand are
amortised over their estimated useful econamic lives, which are set outin the accounting policies section.

Included within the development costs of £33.7m, individually material balances relate to CENTURION £2.9m (2016: £3.6m), electronic attack £3.0m
(2016 £3.7m), Perception £2.2m (2016: £2.9en}, joint Biological Tactical Detection System £8.1m (2016: £6.7m) and Next Generation Chemical
Detector £8.4m (2016: £8.2m}. Development casts are amortised over their useful economic lives, estimated to be between three and fifteen years,
with the remaining amortisation periods for these assets ranging up to twelve years.

Acquired technology of £29.0m includes individually material balances relating te Chemring Sensors & Electronic Systems £16.1m (2016: £2].8m),
Chemring Energetic Devices £8.7m (2016: £13.0m) and Roke £2.6m (2016: £2.1m). The remaining amortisatioh periods for these assets are six years,
ten years and five years respectively.

Acquired customer relationships of £27.6m indude individually material balances relating to Chemring Energetic Devices £11.6m (2016: £14.3m),

Chemring Ordrance £7.lm {2016: £10.4m), Chermring Sensors & Electronic Systems £4.0m (2016: £5.1m) and Roke £3.3m (2016: £4.4m). The remaining
amortisation periods for these assets are nine years, four years, six years and three years respectively.
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Land 3nd

Plant and
buldings equipment Total
im L £m

Cast or valuation
Ar 1 Navember 2015 105.0 105.9 2109
Additions 1.6 8.7 10.3
Disposals {0.2) {44) (4.6)
Foreign exchange adjustments 15.5 221 376
At 3| October 2016 121.9 132.3 254.2
Additions 1.5 10.9 12.4
Disposals (0.7) (6.0) (6.7
Foreign exchange adjustments 5.5 (8.3) (13.8)
At 31 October 2017 72 1289 2461
Depreciation
At | November 2015 9.0} (33.9) 42.9)
Charge (3.5) (14.9) (18.9)
Disposals 0.} 4.2 43
Transfer between categories 0.1 .n -
Foreign exchange adjustments (3.9) (13.4) (73
At 31 Ocrober 2016 {16.2) (59.1) {74.3)
Charge 3.9 {15.8) (19.5)
impairment {3.h {2.3) 54
Disposals 0.6 5.7 6.3
Fareign exchange adjustments 1.6 53 69
At 31 October 2017 (21.0} (65.0) (86.0}
Carrying amount
At 31 October 2017 96.2 619 160.1
Ac 31 Octeber 2016 t05.7 7412 1799

The carrying amount of the Group’s plant and equipment inciudes £nil (2016: £0.2m) in respect of assets held under finance leases.

In 2047, £1.2m (2016; £1.2m) of capitalised interest was charged as depreciation. This results in a net book value for capitalised interest of £12.3m (2016:

€43.5m).

Land and buildings were revalued st 30 September 1997 by Chestertons Chartered Surveyors, independent valuers not cannected with the Group, on
the basis of depreciated replacement cost for two pyratechnic sites and on open market for the remainder, which represent level 2 measurements in

the fair value hierarchy.

007 2018
im im
30 Seprember 1997 depreciated replacement cost 5.8 5.8
Freehold at cost LI 1ne.t
Cost of land and buildings as at 3] Qctober 2017 117.2 121.9
If stated under historical cost principles, the comparable amounts for the total of land and buildings would be:
017 16
(L. &m
Cost 1s.2 1199
Accumulated depreciation {(20.3) (15.5)
Historical cost value 949 104.4

All other tangible fixed assets are stated at historical cost.

Ar 31 October 2017, the Group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and eguipment amounting to

£2.8m (2016: £2.5m).
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13. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

All subsidiary undertakings have been reflected in these financial statements. The subsidiary undertakings held at 3t October 2017, alt 100% owned by
the Group, are shown below. All of these subsidiary undertakings are wholly controlled by Chemring Group PLC.

Courtry of incorporation {or registration) and operation

Crperating segment

Subsidiary undertaking
Chemring Australia Pty Limited

B.D.L Systems Limited

Celco Industries (USA) Limited
Chemring Countermeasures Limited
Chemring Defence UK Limited
Chemring Energetics Limited
Chemring Europe Limited

Chemring Finance Europe Irvesynents Limited
Chemring Finance Europe Limited
Chemring International Limited
Chernring Investments Limited
Chermring Limited

Chemring North America Unlimited
Chemring Prime Contracts Limiged
Chemring Technology Saiutions Limited
CHG Design Limited

CHG Overseas Investments Limired
CHG Overseas Limited

Chemring UAE Limited

Coated Electrodes UK Limited

Greys Exports Limited

Haley and Weller Limited

Karma Induseries No | Limited
Karma Industries No 2 Cimited
Kembrey Corporate Trustee Limited
Kembrey Electronics Limited
Kembrey Engineering Limited
Kembrey Group Limited

Kembrey Industries Limited

Kembrey Limited

Kembrey Technologies Limited
Leafield Engineering Limited

Nobel Energetics Limited

Parkway No 3 Limited

Parkway No 7 Limited

Parkway No 8 Limited

Parkway No 9 Limited

Parkway No 10 Limited

Protox Environmental Systems Lirnited
PW Defence Limited

Richmond EEl Limited

Richmaond Electronics & Engineering Limited
Ripault Drivex Limited

Roke Manor Research Limited

Sarclad Rolltex Limited

Schermuly Limited

Chemring Luxembaurg Finance SARL
Chemvring Luxembourg Holding SARL
3d-Radar AS

Chemring Nobel AS

Chemring Energetics UK Limited
Allied Technology LLC

Alloy Surfaces Company, lne.

ASC Realty LLC

Chemring Energetic Devices, Inc.
Chemring Military Products, Inc.
Chemring North America Administration, Inc,
Chemring North America Group, Inc.
Chemring Qrdnance, Inc.

CHG Flares, inc,

CHG Group, Inc.

Kilgore Flares Cormpany LLC

Australia
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Norway
MNorway
Scotland
USA
USA
UsA
USA
USA
USA
USA
UsA
usA
USA
USA

Countermeasures
Dormant
Dormant
Countermeasureas
Energetics
Darmant
Non-trading
Mon-trading
Non-trading
Dormant
Nan-trading
Dormant

Halding Company
Energetics
Sensors

Dormant
Non-trading
Holding Company
Non-trading
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Carmant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Non-trading
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant

Sensors

Dormant
Dormantc

Holding Company
Holding Campany
Sensors
Energetics
Energetics
Holding Company
Countermeasures
Property Helding Company
Energetics
Energetics
Dormang

Holding Company
Energencs
Holding Company
Head Office
Countermeasures
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

| 13. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS CONTINUED

Country of incorporation (or registration) and operation Operating segment
Chemring Sensors and Electronic Systems. Inc. UsA Sensors
| Tactical Systems and Ordnance, Inc. USA Sensors
i Twan Dynamics Systems, Inc. UsA Dormant
Associated undertaking
Chemring Aasia Services Pvt Limited (%) India Non-trading

*  The Group owns 49% af the issued share capital. The assocate did not trade during the year.

See page |27 for the registered offices of the subsidiary undertakings.

f4. INVENTORIES 2017

., CHG Overseas Limited, Chemring North America Unlimited, Parkway No 10 Limited, Chemring Investments Limited, CHG Overseas Investments Limited
are exempt from the requirement to file audited aceounts for the year ended 31 October 1017 by virtue of section 479A of the Companies Act 2004.

016

fm im

Raw materials 45.7 kYRS
Work in progress 30.6 38.6
Finished goods 0.3 28.5
7.4 104.8

£3.2m) as a write down of inventories to net realisable value.

I15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

There are no significant differences between the replacement cost of inventory and the fair values shown ahove. The Group recognised £8.8m (2016:

07 2015

im im

Trade receivablies 92.9 8346
Allowance for daubtful debts B .9 (0.9)
2.0 827

Cantract receivables 0.7 132
Advance payments to suppliers 25.8 17.0
Other receivables 1.2 25
Prepayments and accrued income ) FL3 9.8
131.0 114.2

All amounsts shown above are due within one year.

receivables from the date of invoice to payment.

The Group’s palicy is to provide in full for trade receivables outstanding for more than (20 days beyond agreed terins, unless there are facts and
Circumstances that support recoverability.

The directers consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair vaiues.
6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. The carrying
amount of these assets approximates to their fair value,
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17. BORROWINGS 2017 pLTS

im £m
Within current liabilities
Loan nates —JS dollar depominated 46.1 295
— Sterting denominated 5.3 -
Short-term borrowings = US dollar denominated 0.2 -
Finance leases - Sterling denominated - a.l
Borrowings due within ane year 516 296
Within non-current liabilities
Loan nates — Sterling denominared - 53
—US dollar denominated §19 118.7
Preference shares e.l 0.1
Borrowings due after more than one year 2.0 12).1
13.6 150.7
Analysis of borrowings by currency:
w7 Pl
tm £m
Sterting 5.4 3.5
LS dollar 108.2 145.2
3.6 150.7
The weighted average interest rates paid were as follows:
w017 1016
% %
Bank overdrafts 1.9 19
UK bank jaans — Sterling denominated Iy 29
l.oan notes - Sterling denominated 1.2 76
— US dollar denominated 6.0-4.7 6.0-70
An analysis of borrowings by maturity is as follows:
2017 2006
Bank Bank
leans and Loan Othar foans and Lean Other
averdrafis notes  barrowings Total overdrafts nates borrowings Tocal
im &m im Im £m £m fm £m
Borrowings falling due:
~ within one year 0.2 51.4 - 518 - 295 0.1 296
Borrowings falling due;
- within pne to two years - - - - - 538 - 538
— within ewo to five years - 61.9 - 61.9 - 67.2 - 67.2
—after five years - - 0.4 0.1 - - 0.1 0.0
- &1.9 ol 62.0 - 121.0 0.l 121.1
Total borrowings 0.1 13,3 ol 113.6 - 150.5 0.2 150.7

Other borrawings comprise finance leases and preference shares.

The Group has a £100.0m, four year revalving credit facility with a syndicate of three banks expiring in July 2019. In addition, the Group has ancillary UK
facilities of £56.0m in respect of bonding and trade finance requirements, and a £17.5m facility to fulfil US wrade finance and working capital
requirerments. None of the borrowings in the current or the prior year were secured.

There have been no breaches of the terms of the loan agreements during the current or prior year.

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities available, in respect of which all conditions precedent have been met. Interest costs under
these facilities are charged at floating rates.

w7 016
£m £m
Undrawn borrowing facilities 106.0 108.0

The Group is subject to two key financial covenants, which are tasted quarterly. These covenants relate to the leverage ratio, being the ratio hetween
undetlying earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation {“underlying EBITDA") and debrt, and the interest cover ratio between
underlying EBITDA and finance costs. The calculation of these ratios involve the translatior of non-sterling denominated debt using average, rather than
closing, rates of exchange. The Group complied with these covenants throughout the year:
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

8. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Minirmum Present value af
lease paymencs mingamum lease payments
007 2016 w17 2018
im &m tm &m

Amounts payable under finance leases.

—within one year - 0 - 0.1
— within two to five years -~ - - -
Present value of lease obligations - 0.1 - Q.
Less amounts due within one year shown within current liabilities - o.n
Amounts due for sertlement after one year - -
9. TRADE AND OTHER PAYARLES 2017 2046
im im
Within current liabilities
Trade payables 31.7 53.5
Other payables 20.0 177
Interest payable 3.2 4.1
Other tax and social security 3.7 3.0
Advarce receipts fram customers 30.7 12.4
Accruals and deferred income te.b 16.6
1t.9 107.3
Within non-current labilities
- 4.0

Other payables

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts autstanding for trade purchases and angoing costs. Advance receipts from customers arise
on farger contracts to fund working capital. The directors consider that the carrying amount of payzbles approximates to their fair vaiue.

The average credit period taken on purchases of goods is 42 days (2016: 75 days) using year end trade payables divided by cost of sales. No interest is
payable on trade payables from the date of invoice to payment.

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group uses financial instruments to manage financial risk wherever it is appropriate to do 6. The main risks addressed by financial instruments are
foreign exchange rate risk and liquidity risk. The Group's policies in respect of the management of these risks, which remained unchanged throughout
the year, are set out betow.

The Group's global activities expose it to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Group enters into forward foreign
exchange contracts to manage its exposure to transactional foreign currency risks.

Foreign exchange risik management
The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies, giving rise to expasures to exchange rate fluctuations. Foreign exchange
risk can be subdivided into two components, transactional risk and translation risk:

Transactional risk The Group's policy is to hedge transactional currency exposures through the use of forward foreign exchange contracts. The
measurement and control of this risk is menitored on a Group-wide basis,

Translation risk The Group transtates the results and net assets of overseas operations in accordance with the accounting policy within the
Accounting Policies section. The translation risk on net assets is mitigated by the transfer of currencies between Group
companies and the appropriate use of foreign currency borrowings.

The sterling equivalents of the carrying amounts of the Group's foreqgn currency denominated monetary assets and labilities at the year end were
as follows:

2017 pild
Morwegian Austealian Norwegian Australian
US dotlar Euro krone dofar US dollar Euro krone doblar
Monetary assets {fm) 577 0.5 8.l 1.7 85,1 - 78 6.4
Monerary liabilides (£fm} (141.5} - (3.4) (0.9) (184.8) (0.3) (3.6) 4

Fareign currency denominated net assets are partially hedged by foreign currency borrowings. The borrowings detailed below were designated as
hedging instruments in net investrnent hedges.

1017 2016
Morwegian Australian Norwegan Austrahan
US dollar Eurp krone dollar LS dollar £ura krone dotar
Borrowings {£m) 109.0 - - - 148.1 - - -
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED
The Group uses forward foreigr exchange contracts (o hedge its currency risk, most with a maturity of less than one year from inception. The exchange
rate which has the most significant effect on the Group is the US dollar. The following table details the forward foreigr exchange contracts outstanding;

Expiring within Expiring within
Average exchange rate Expering within one year one [0 two years. twe Lo frve years
017 s 1017 2016 017 W0ta i

2007 016 im £m £m m £m £m
US dollar 1.32 1.28 33 417 .n 0.2 (.1 -
Euro 1% - {4.0) - - - - -
AU doflar 1.72 .63 kR 5.1 - 0.2 - -
Norwegian Krane l0.70 18.63 1.2 1.7 - - - -

The principal amounts of the Group's US dollar loan notes have been accounted for s a netinvestment hedge of the US businesses. This hedge was
effective throughout the year and the gains arising on translation of the loan notes were taken to reserves alongside the losses on retranslation of the US
businesses. The Norwegian and Australian businesses have no net investment hedge. The retransfation of these businesses is taken directly to reserves.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The folowing exchange rates applied during the year:

2007 1016
Average Closing Average Closing
rate rate rate rate
LIS dollar L30 1.33 1.28 1.22
AU dollar 1.68 1.73 1.82 1.60

For the year ended 31 Ccrober 2017, a | cent decrease in the \JS dollar exchange rate would have increased reported net debzt by approximately £0.8m.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10 ¢cent movement (n the refevant foreign currencies against sterling with regards to its income
statement. This sensitivity represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. This sensitivity analysis only
inciudes translation of the results of foreigh currency denominated companies and so does not reflect the impact on the results of sterling or other
currency companies that have transactions in US dollars.

4|0 cants —40 cents
US dollar impact 4JS dallar smpace

7 2018 2017 2018

ém im £m fm

Revenue (24.0) (19.0) 7.0 20

Underlying operating profit (2.4) (2.0) 1.8 23
interest a5 0.6 (0.6) 0.73

Underlying profit before tax (.9 (1.4} 1.2 1.6

Interest rate risk
The Group finances its operations through a combination of retained profits, bank and loan note borrowings, and finance leases.

The UK barrowings are denominated in sterling and US dolfars, and at the sherter end are subject to floating rates of interest.
At 3] October 2017, the Group had outstanding fixed interast loan notes it the US totalling £114 3m (2016: £153 4m). On 21 November 2016, the
Group repaid $36.0m of outstanding loan notes out of existing cash resources. The remaining loan notes are repzyable in Novernber 2017 (£5.3m and

$61.2m) and November 2019 ($83.6m). The loan notes provide a natural hedge against the Group's investment in its US businesses.

As the Group has predeminantly fixed interest rate debt, a change in interest rates would not have an immediate significant impact on the income
statement. A change in interest rates of 1% would cause the Group’s finance expense to change by £0.1m.

Liquidity risk
The table below details the maturity profile of the Group’s derivative financial instruments and other assets:
1017 1016
Derivative Other Derivative Other
receivables ASIECE Totad recevables assats Tota)
im im Em £m £m £m
Falling due:
- within one year 16.4 133.8 169.9 64.0 153.4 217.)
-~ within one to two years 11 - 1.1 09 - 09
— within two to five years (] - [N - - -
383 133.8 172.1 64.9 153.4 218.¢
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Financial Statemenrs

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED
The prafile of the Group's financial assets by underlying currency and balance sheet classification is as follows:

2007 2018

im €m

Sterling 7.3 114.6
US dollar 125.1 135.6
AU dollar 7.3 1L.é
Euro {6 2.5
Other currencies 89 11.5
215.2 275.8
Qverdraft offset {43.h) (52.7)
172.1 218.1

2017 046

im £im

Cash at bank and n hand 31.6 63.1
Trade receivables 92.0 8.7
Accrued income 1.0 48
Other recaivables L2 2.6
Derivative financial instruments is3 649
172.1 218,

The ageing of financial assets past due but hot impaited is as follows:

017 W0le

im &m

Current 147.6 202.3
Up to 30 days 4.2 23
Mare than 30 days 203 13.5
172.1 218.1

The tota! amount of past due receivables is £24.5m (2016: £15.8m).

The majarity of cash balances held in the UK and the UJS have a right of offset against overdraft balances,

The foreign currency balences are predominantly attributzble to oversaas business ynits znd therefore do not result in significant expasure to ransactional

risks for the Group.

The table below details the maturity profile of the Group's derivative financial instruments and loans (excluding finance leases, preference shares and

capitalised facility fees): 2017 2016
Derivative Loans and Loans and
payabias averdrafts Taeal overdrafts Totad
£m K £m m im
Falling due:
— within one year 34.2 120.4 156.4 119.9 186.0
— within one to two years L - [N 554 56.%
— within twa 1o five years [ §2.0 63.1 68.3 68.5
35.4 182.4 220.3 2438 30
The profile of the Group's financial liabilities by underlying currency and balance sheet classification is as follows:
007 2016
Fixad rute Fixed -ate Total
Im £m {m
Sterling é5.% 63.0 63.6
US dollar 189.4 294.1 294.1
AlJ dollar 09 28 2.8
Euro 4.9 36 36
Other currencies 32 4.8 43
263.9 368.3 368.3
Overdraft offser (57.7)
310.6
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUFT

wiIT 1le

S im Em

Loan notes 113.3 i50.5
Preference shares (note 23) 0.1 0.1
Short-term borrowings 0.2 -
Obligations under finance leases {note 18) - 0.1
111.6 150.7

Trade payabies 377 53.5
Accruals 14.2 13.7
Interest payable 3.2 4.1
Other payables 13.7 2.7
Derivative financial instruments 8.4 66.9
220.8 ilo.s

The weighted average interest rate of fixed rate financial liabilities at 3| October 2017 was 6.7% (2016: 6.6%) and che weighted average period of funding
was ane year (2016: two years).

Derivative financial instruments
The following table details the fair value of derivative financial instrument liabllities recognised in the balance sheet:

2017 2016

&m im

Inciuded in current assets 0.4 053
Included in current liabilities (0-4) {2.5)
Forward foreign exchange contracts - (2.0)

The following table details the {gain)/loss on the movement in the fair value of derivative financial instruments recognised in the income statement:

2017 046
£m £m
(Gain)/loss on the movement in the fair value of derivative financial instruments (.7 1.0

Fair value hierarchy
IFRS 7 Finoncial Instruments: Disclosures requires companies that carry financial instruments at fair vatue in the balance sheet to cisclose their level of
visibility, determining into which category those financial instruments fall under che fair valua hisrarchy.

The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:

»  Level | - quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

+ Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices inciuded within Level 1 that are observable for the asser or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

+ Level 3~ inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. as unobservable inputs).

The fallowing tables present the Group's assets and iabilities that are measured at fair value:

07 1015
Level | tevel 2 Total Level | Level2 Tortal
m im £m im £m m
Assets
Forward foreign exchange contracts - 0.4 9.4 0.5 0.5
Total assets - 0.4 0.4 - 05 0.5
2047 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level | Level 2 Toal
&m Em im £m im £m
Liabilities
Borrowings - (113.6) (H3.6) (150.5) (150.5)
Forward foreign exchange contracts - (0.4) (0.4) - (2.3) (2.3)
Total abilities - (114.0) (114.0) - (153.0) (153.0)

There were no assets or liabifities that were classed under Level 3 on the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of derivative financial instruments is
estimated by discounting the future contracted cash flaw, using readily available market data.
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT CONHNUED

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are bank balances and cash. wrade and other receivables, and derivative financial instruments, which represent the
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. Whilst the Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single
counterparty in respect of bank balances and cash, the credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is monitered on an ongoing basis
using credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies, the credit default swap market and market capitalisation.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables The amaunts presented - the balance sheet are net of allowinces for doubtful
dabts, based on pricr experience and an assessment of the current economic environment. Trade receivables are atirbutabte to a smalf number of
customers spread across a diverse geographical area. Customers are mainly multinational organisations or government agencies with whom the Group
has long-term business reflationships. The Group's principa! customers are govarnment defence departments, such as the US Department of Defense,
the UK Ministry of Defence and the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia Ministry of Defenice and Aviation, US and UK defence prime contractors, such as
Lockheed Martin, BAE Systems and General Dynamics, and distributars of products for their onward sale to end users.

Counterparues ars monitored on an ongoing basis for credit risk and, at the balance sheet date, the risk was deerned to be low. Ongoing credit
evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable and action is taken ro minimise credit risk.

The Group's accounting policies and contral pracedures require letters of credit to be putin place for the majority of contracts with
overseas custamers.

The Group's pricing risk is primarily in relation to the cost of raw materials and is not considered significant. Pricing risk is managed through negotiations
with suppliers and, where appropriate, the agreement of fixed-price supply contracts.

Capital management

The Board seeks to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence, and to sustain future development of the
business. From time to time, the Group purchases its awn shares in the market; the timing of these purchases depends on market prices. Primarily, such
shares are intended to be used far satisfying awards under the Group's share-based incentive schemes. Buy and sell decisions are made on a specific
transaction basis by the Board.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally-imposed capital requirements.

21. PROVISIONS

Legal Enmvironmental YWarranty  Restructuring Disposal Orther

provision pravision arovidlon provision prowsign provisian Toxal

m ém £m £m im im im

At | November 2016 EX] 4.1 0.1 1.3 76 - 16.2
Provided - 0.2 - 6.7 - 04 7.3
Foreigr exchange adjustments ©.3 (0.3) - - 0.1 - (0.4)
Paid (1.2} 0.2) (0.1} (2.1} {0.5) ©0.2) “4.3
Released {©0n on - - 2.7 - (3.5)
At 3| October 2007 1.& 3. - 59 4.5 8.2 i5.3

These provisions are classified on the balance sheet as follows:

2007 2016

(4] £m

Included in current liabilities 8.5 45
Included in nan-current lizhilities 8.8 .7
153 16.2

The legal provision represents the estimated legal liabilities faced by the Group at the balance sheer date. Further details of the Group’s contingent
liabilies are sec outin note 34

The environmental pravision is held in respect of potential liabilities associzted with the Group's facility in Chicago, USA.
The reszructuring provision relates to the closure of a Countermeasures facility in Philadelphia, USA and an Energetics facility in California, USA.

The disposal provision relates to estimated liabilities faced by the Group in respect of Mecar and Simmel under the terms of their respective sale
agreements. The risk of economic outflow relating (o these reduces with the passage of time.

Provisions are subject to uncertainty in respect of the outcome of future events. Legal provisions will be utilised based on the cutcome of cases and the
level of costs incurred defending the Group's position. Environmental provisions will be utilised based on the outcome of further environmental studies
and remediation work. Restructuring provisions will be utilised based on actual costs incurved for redundancy, dead rent and dilapidations and these will
be impacted by the final negotiated sertdement of any claims with iandlords. Disposal provisions will be utilised based on the cutcome of certain events
which are specified in sale and purchase agreements. It s not possible to estimate more accurately the expected timing of any resutting cutflows of
economic benefits.
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12. DEFERRED TAX
The following are the principal deferred rax liabiliues/(assets) recognised by the Group and movements thereon:

Accelerated
tax US Interest Tax Acquired
depreciation Pensions deductions osses ntangoles Other Total
£ £m im im ém £m £m
At | November 2015 14.0 (3.5 (16.2) (3.3} 19 {5.3 (2.4)
Charge/{credit) tc income 1.8 1.0 7.3 .1} (2.6 34 )
Charge/(credit) to equity 0.8 0.9} 5.7 - Q.5 (0.3) (5.5)
At | Navember 2016 16.6 (3.3 (14.6) (74) 9.8 (22) (1.1}
Charge/(credit) to income (4.6) 1.2 (10.8) 5.7 0.9 2.2) {2.8)
Charge/(credit) 1o equity 03 20 238 0.2 0.4 3.7 1.2
At 31 October 2017 12.3 (0.1} (22.6) (1.5) 10.3 (8.0) 0.7

The Finance Act 2018, which provided for reductions in the main rate of UK corporation tax from 20% to 9% effective from | April 2017 and to 17%
effective from | April 2020, was substantively enacted on 19 September 2016.

The closing UK deferred tax asset as at 31 Ocrober 2017 has been calcufated at the rates which will be in force when the assets and liabilities are
expected to reverse.

The Group's deferred tax provision at the balance sheet date includes an asset of £22.6m (2016: £14.6m) in relation to amounts carried forward under
the US interest limitation regulations. These carried forward amounts are available for offset in future periods in accordance with the regulations,
subject to available US taxable profits. Management prepare long-term forecasts for the upcoming five-year period for all entities in the Group and have
used these to determine the amount of the deferred tax asset which should be recognised ar the balance sheet date. Due 10 the Inherent uncertainties
associated with preparing long-term forecasts, particularly in the current global environment, the final outcome may vary significanty, whilst a range of
outcomes is reasonably possible, the extent of this range is potential additional assets of up 10 £13.6m or a reduction in the asset of up to £22.6m.

The US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act {("TCJA™) was substantively enacted on 22 December 2017, The TC)A provides for a reduction in the main rate of federal
corporate income tax from 35% to Z21% for accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2018. As the legislation was not subsiantively enacted at
the balance sheet date its effect has not been included in these financial statements. If the changes had been taken into account in preparing the financial
statements the impact would have been to reduce the value of the Deferred Tax Asset by approximately £3m.

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Deferred tax balances after offset are
analysed on the balance sheet as follows:

10i7 2018

im £m

Non-current liabilities 53.5 58.5
Non-current assets (63.2) (59.6)
on___ (b

Ar the balance sheet date, the Group had unrecognised tax losses of £27.5m (2016: £8.0m) potencially available for offset against future profits in certain
circumstances, the increase arising primarily as a result of the tax losses arising in the UK. No deferred tax asset has been recoghised in respect of this
amount because of the unpredictability of future taxzble qualifying profit streams.

13. SHARE CAPITAL

2017 016
im £&m

1ssued and fully paid
281,588,075 (2016: 281,425,256) ordinary shares of Ip each 1.8 2.8

During the year, 162,819 ordinary shares (2016: 5,337) were issued for cash to employees under the Group's approved savings-related share schemes.

©On 24 February 2016, 85.915.828 new cordinary shares were issued pursuant to the rights issue, with four new ordinary shares issued for every nine
existing ordinary shares held.

The Company's share capital also includes 62,500 7% cumulative preference shares of £1 each, which are ali issued and fully paid-up, and are cfassified
for accounting purposes within non-current liabilities. The cumulative preference shares carry an entitlement to a dividend at the rate of 7p per share
per annum, payable in equal instalments on 30 April and 31 Ocrober each year. Halders of the preference shares have the right on a winding-up 10
receive, in priority to any other classes of shares, the sum of £1 per share together with any arrears of dividends.

24. RESERVES
The share premium account, the special capital reserve and the revaluation reserve are not distributable.

Included within retained earnings are £3.6m (2016: £3.0m) relating to the share-based payment reserve and £nil (2016: £nil) of the Company’s own
shares held by the Group's Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

5. OWN SHARES 017 2006

im £m

9.6 9.6

At beginning and end of the year

The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares in the Company purchased in the market and held by the Group to satisfy awards under the
Group's share-based incentive schemes, details of which are set out in note 27. No ordinary shares (2016: nif) were acquired during the year and no
ardinary shares (2016: nil) were distributed following the vesting of awards under the PSP. The total number of ordinary shares held in treasury at
3F October 2017 was 2,198,814 (2016: 2,198, 814), with an average cost of 439.0p (2016: 439.0p) per share.

This represents 0.8% (2014: 0.8%) of the tortal issued and fully-paid ordinary share capital.

14, OBLIGATIONS UNDER NON-CANCELLABLE OPERATING LEASES 2017 200
£m im
L3 1.9

Mimmum lease payments under operating leases recoghised in the income statement

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases, falling
due as fallows;

ey b1

m £m

Within one year 2.3 .7
In the second to fifth years 30 52
Over five years 02 0.4
5.5 8.3

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group, Leases are negotated for ah average term of three years and rentals are fixed for the
lease period. with an option to extend for a further period at the then prevailing market rate.

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
The Group operates share-based compensation arrangements to provide incentives to the Group's senior management and eligible employees. The

Group recognised a net charge of £1.9m (2016; £1.0m) in respect of share-based payments during the year,
Details of the four schemes which operated during the year are set out below.,

The Chemring Group Performance Share Plan (the “PSP"™) and

The Chemring Group Performance Share Plan 2066 (the *“20i6 PSP")

Under the PSP and the 2016 PSP, conditional awards of ordinary shares are made at nil cost to employees. Awards ordinarily vest on the third
anniversary of the award date. The PSP commenced in March 2006 and expired in March 2016, when it was replaced by the 2016 PSP, which has broadly
similar terms. Awards remain outstanding under the PSP but all new awards will now be made under the 2016 PSP,

PSP 2016 PSP
Number of condinonal shares  Number of conditional shares
087 2016 2017 2046
Cutstanding at beginning of the year 4,503,592 3,966,720 - -
Adiustmens relating to rights issue - 704,701 - -
Awarded - 2,313,385 2,295,577 -
Lapsed (1,333,619) (2,481,219 (111,690) -
Outstanding at end of the year 3,169,973 4503591 2,183,B8T7 -
Subject to vesting at end of the year - -

The following awards were outstanding at 31 October 2017:
Number of

ardinary  Vesting price Date when
shares pershare awards due
Date of award under award Pence 1o vest
26 January 2015 1,237,848 ail 26 fanuary 2018
235 fanuary 2016 1,673,526 nil 25 fanuary 2019
7 March 2016 258.579 nil 7 March 2019
24 March 2017 2,183,887 nil 24 March 2020

1 Thase awards were granted under the 2016 PSP.
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONIINUED
The Group has applied a discount to the share-based payments, to reflect the anticipated achievement of the stipulated targets for each PSP and 2016 PSP
award based on the predicted figures within the Group's financial projections and the expected number of leavers over the life of the awards.

Tne 2016 PSP awards made in the year ended 31 Octaber 2017 had targets based ch earnings per share growth and total shareholder return.
The awards have been valued using the following madelling inputs:

Date awarded

24 March 25 Janwary 7March

2017 16 2016

Share price at valuation 196p 138p 1340
Exercise price nil fill nil
Risk-free rate 0.2% 0.7% 0.4%
Expected volatility 28.8% 36.4% 38.6%
Fair value 165.5p 107.0p 85.5p

The weighted average fair value of awards made during the year was 165.5p {2016: 102 .4p).

No awards were exercised in the year ended 31 October 2017 or the year ended 31 October 2016. The charge recognised in respect of the awards is
based on their fair value at the grant date.

The Chermnring Group Restricted Share Plan (the “RSP")
Under the RSP, deferred awards of ordinary shares are made at nil tost to employees. Awards ordinarily vest on the second or third anniversary of the
award date. The first awards under the RSP were made in February 2013.

Number of deferred sharey

mir 2016

Outstanding at beginning of the year 50,000 130,000

Awarded - 50,000

Exercised - {I130,000)

Outstanding at end of the year 50,000 56,000

Subject to vesting at end of the year - -
The following RSP awards were outstanding at 3| October 2017

Number Vesting Oate

of ordinary prce when

shares under per share award

Date of award award Pence due to vest

7 March 2016 50,000 nit 7March 2019

The Group has applied a discount to the share-based payment relating to the RSP, to reflect the expected number of leavers over the life of the
RSP awards.

The Chemnring Group 2008 UK Sharesave Plan {the “UK Sharesave Plan™)
Options were granted during the year on 27 July 2017.

bl 1016
Weighted Weighted
average average
Mumber exercise Number exercise
of share price of share price
options Pance options Pence
Outstanding at beginning of the year 1,728,037 281 1,302,225 186.4
Adjustment relating to the rights issue - - 172,519 186.4
Granted 518,998 148.0 1031147 105.0
Exercised (162,819) 14%.3 (5.337) 163.0
Lapsed (180.541) 166.7  (772,517) 163.5
Qutstanding at end of che year 1,813,653 126.7 1728037 i28.1
Subject to exercise at end of the year 74,792 150.7 53,44| 559
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

17. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONIINUED
The following options were outstanding at 3| October 2017:

Number
ofordinary  Exervse pnce

shares under per share Dates batween which
Date of award award Perce aptions may be exercised
30 july 2012 12,283 195.0 | October 2017 — 31 March 20118
30 July 2013 29214 20940 | October 2018 — 31 March 2019
30 July 2014 62,509 1420 | Ocrober 2017 =31 March 201B
30 July 2014 54,615 142.0 1 October 2019 — 31 March 2020
30 July 2015 153,209 152.0 | October 2018 — 3} March 2019
30 July 2015 33,848 1520 | October 2020 - 31 March 2021
27 july 2016 874,013 105.0 | October 20]9 - 31 March 2020
27 July 2016 78,853 1050 § October 2021 — 31 March 2022
27 july 2017 435760 148.0 | October 2020 - 31 March 202 |
27 July 2017 78,645 1480 | October 2022 — 31 March 2023

The weighted average fair value of options granted in the year was 37.0p (2016: 26.0p).
The weighted average fair value of options exercised in the year was 36.7p (2016: 41.3p).
The weighted average share price on exercise of the options during the year was 141{,3p (2016 {46.6p).

The fair values of the share options 1n the UK Sharesave Plan are based on the difference barween the exercise price and the share price on the grant
date of the option.

28. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 4 May 2016, che Group acquired patents, equipment, inventory and selected contracts relating to Esterline’s UK-based subsidiary, Wallop Defence
Systems Limited, for an initial cash consideration of £2.5m. Additjonal payments of up to £3.0m, which are conditional upon the receipt of specific
orders in the period aftar acquisition, may be made over the next two years. At 31 October 2017 an accrual for £1.6m has heen made and this may

increase if further orders zre received.

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed £m
Inventory 0.2
Property. plant and equipment 0.2
Identifiable intangible assets 2.1
Total consideration 2.5
Satisfied by
Cash 25
Total consideration transferred 2.5
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 2.5
Less: cash and cash equivatents acquired -
25

Cash outflow from investing activities

Acquisition-related costs {included in administrative expenses in the consolidated mcome statement) for the year ended 31 October 2016 amaunted
to £0.2m.

There were no aisposals during the year, however the £3.5m credit (2016: £4.6m) from discontinued operations relates to disposals made in prior years.

2007 2015
£m fm
European munitions businesses disposal 2.7 4.1
Disposed praperty dilapidations 0.l 0.6
Marine business disposal 8.7 -
Tax on discontinued operations - (0.0
15 4.6
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29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

In the UK, the Group operates a defined benefit scheme (the “Chermring Group Staff Pension Scheme™), In Norway, Chemring Nobel operates a
defined benefit scheme (the "Chemring Nobel Scheme™). The Group's other UK and overseas pension arrangements are all defined contribution
schemes, with a combined cost of £6.1m (2016: £6.2m).

The Chemring Group Staff Pension Scheme is a funded scheme and the assets of the scheme are held in a separate trustee administered fund. The
scheme was closed to future accrual on 6 April 2062, A full actuarial valuation of the Chemring Group Staff Pension Scheme as at 6 April 2015 has been
completed and updated to 3| Octaber 2017 by a qualified actuary, using the projected unit credit method. The main assumptions for the scheme are
detailed below. The deficit of the Chemring Group Staff Pension Scheme was £0.6m at 31 October 2017 (2016: £17.3m}.

Under the funding plan agreed with the trustees following the 2015 actuarial valuation, the Company has agreed 1o eliminate the deficit indicated by that
valuation over 2 period of four years. This funding plan provides for contributions of £5.0m per annum to be paid in monthly instalments unti june 2019.
The Company and the trustees monitor funding levels annually, and a new funding plan is agreed with the trustees every three years, based on actuarial
vatuations. The Group considers that the current contribution rates agreed with the trustees are sufficient to eliminate the calculated deficit over the
agreed period.

The Group has given a bank guarantee and letter of credit totalling £7.2m {2016: £8.5m) to the scheme in respect of future contributions, which are
progressively reducing as contributions are paid under the agreed funding schedule.

The trust deed provides for an unconditional right to a return of surplus assets in the event of a plan wind-up. The trustees gave no rights to unilateraily
wind up or augment the benefits due ta members of the scheme. Based on these righes, any net surplus in the UK scheme is recognised in full.

The Chemring Nobel Scheme is an unfunded scheme. The actuarial liabikity has been calculated at 31 Qctober 2017 by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. The main assumptions used were a discount rate of 2.0% and rate of increase in deferred pensions of 3.5%. The net
surplus of the Chemring Nobel Scheme was £nil at 31 October 2017 (2016: £nil) and as such is immaterial for further detalled disciosures.

The movement in the net defined benefit liability is as follows:

Defined benefit obhgauans Defined benetit asset Net detined benetit labdity
2017 2016 1047 2016 o7 2016
im £€m £m m tm im
At | November (94.7) [CIN)] T7.4 63.4 {17.3) (7.7
Included in profit or loss
Netinterest cost (2.5) (3.0 2.1 22 (0.4) {0.B)
(2.5) (3.0 2.1 12 (0.4) 0.8)
Included in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement gain/(loss):
Actuarial gain/(loss} arising from:
- Demographic and financiat assumptions 7.6 (16.5) - - 1.6 116.5)
— Experience adjustment [ 27 - - 1.8 27
— Return on plan assets excluding interest income - - 1.5 10.0 2.5 10.0
9.4 {13.8) 25 10.0 .9 (3.8)
Other
Contributions by the employer - - 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Additional contributions by the employer - - 0.1 - 0.2 -
Net benefits paid out 4.0 32 {s.0) (3.2 - -
At 3] Ocrober (83.8) (94.7) B83.2 774 (0.6) (17.3)

The Chemring Group Staff Pension Scheme had 1,030 members at the end of the year {2016: £,071). Of these members 53.1% (2016: 51.1%) were
pensioners drawing benefits from the scheme and the balance were deferred members. The duration of the liability is long with pension payments
expected to be made for at least the next 40 years.

The pension schemes’ assets are analysed as follows:

017 2016 2007 018

L im % %

Equities 54.6 523 &5.6 675
Liability Driven Investment 0.7 14.7 149 19.0
Corporate bonds 1.5 9.5 9.0 12,3
Cash 0.4 09 0.5 1.2
83.2 774 100.0 100.0

The schemes’ assets are invested in accordance with the statement of investment principles after taking professional advice from the schemes’
investrnent advisers. The investment strategy is to split the assets into a growth portfolio of index trading equity funds and real return funds, and a
matching portfolio of leveraged liability driven pocled funds.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONIINUED
The principal assurmptions used in the actuarial valuation of the Chemring Group Staff Pension Scheme were as follows:

07 06

% %

Discount rate .7 .7
Rate of increase in deferred pensions 3.0 34
Rate of increase in pensions in payment fwhere a2pplicable) 3.0 34
inflation — RPI 3. 36
- CPl 1.0 27

In desermining defined benefit obligations, the Group uses mortality assumptions which are based on published mortality tables. For the Chemring
Group Staff Pension Scheme, the actuarial table currently used s SAPS Normal Health pensioner tables with future improvements i tine with CM1 2014
and a 1.25% jong-term trend rate.

This resylts in the following life expectancies at age 65:

2007 2016

Future pensioners —male 8.5 8e.1
~female 90.5 90.6

Current pensioners —male 87.1 86.5
—female 8%.0 88.8

The most significant assumptions in the pension valuation are the discount rate applied to the liabilities, the inflation rate to be applied to pension
payments and the martality rates. If the discount rate used in determining retirement benefit obligations were to change by 0.1% then itis predicted that
the deficit in the scheme would change by approximately £1 3m. A change it the rate of inflation by 0.1% is predicted to change the deficit by
approximately £0.5m and a one year change to the longevity assumption would change the deficit by approximately £2.9m. The principal risks to the
schemes are that the invéstmenis do not perform as well as expected, the discount rate continues to fall driven by lower market interest rates and that
the rate of improvement in mortality assumed s insufficient and life expectancies continue to rise.

The Group anticipates contributions to the defined benefit schemes for the year ending 31 Qctober 2018 will be £5.0m (2017: £5.0m).

10. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2007 2018
im im
Operating profit from continuing operations 15.3 262
Operating profit from discontinued operations 3.5 47
8.9 309
Amortisation of development costs 6.9 68
Intangible amortsation arising from business combinations 15.0 4.8
Amortisation of patents and ficences g¢.2 a.1
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 8.3 0.2
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 18.5 184
{Gain)/loss on the movement in the fair value of derivative financial instruments {L.7) 1.0
Share-based payment expense L9 1.0
Operating cash flaws before movements in working capital 599 731
{Increase)/decrease in inventories {6.0) 13.6
({Increase) in trade and other receivables {32.3) {5.8)
Increase /(decrease) in trade and other payables 1.3 (.h
(Decrease) in provisions {0.1) 0.3)
23.8 79.6
Add back non-underfying items:
Acquisttion and disposal elated credits {1.2) (4.4)
Business restructuring and incident costs 14.3 5.4
Claim related costs/{credits) 0.4 0.8)
Impairment of business 9.8 -
Loan note repayment costs - 1.4
Cash generated from underlying operating activities 47.4 814
Cash impact of non-underlying items (5.3 (8.1
Cash generated from operating activities 40.8 73.3

104



31. RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT

1047 1016

L im

(Decrease}/increase In cash and cash equivalents (29.4) 54.6
Decrease in debt and lease financing due to cash flows ) 29.4 49.6
Decrease in nec dehe resulting from cash flows - 104.2
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 10.0 (34.7)
Amortisation of debt finance costs {2.4) (1.5
Movement in net gebrt, 1.4 66.7
Net debt ar beginning of the year (87.6) (154.3)
Net debt at end of the year (89.0) (87.6)
32. ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT A Ac
| November Non-cash Exchange 31 October

046 Cash flows charges rate effacts 7

im m £m £ im

Cash at bank and in hand 63l (29.4) - 0.9 33.4
Debt due within one year (29.5) 28.8 (54.5) 3.6 (5t.8)
Debre due after ane year (121.0) 0.5 52.1 6.5 [{1R)]
Finance leases 0.1 0.1 - - -
Preference shares 0.1 - - - {0.1)
(87.6) - (2.4) 0.0 (80.0)

33. ADOPTION OF IFRS 15

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers ("IFRS 15™) for its 2017 financial year. The majority of the Group's transactions
are unaffected by IFRS 15, however when IFRS (5 is applied to a smalt number of customer contracts this leads to a difference in the timing of
recognising revenue. As permitted by the standard, the Group has taken advantage of the modified transitional pravisions and as such the 2014 resuits
remain as previously reported. Under the modified approach the cumulative approach of initially applying the standard is recognised at | November
2016 with no restatement of prior periods.

An adjustment to brought forward retained earnings of £10.2m has been recogrised in the Consclidated Statement of Changes in Equity. representing
the reversal of certain revenue that met the criteria for revenue recognition under previously applicable accounting standards but does not do 50 under
IFRS 15. This also reduced receivables and payables but increased inventory as at | November 2016.

The impact of adoption in the year to 3| Ociober 2017 can be seen below and arises from revenue recognised in prior years which would instead have
been deferred to the current year under IFRS 15,

IFRS I5
PreifFRS IS adjustment Asreported

im &m £m
Continuing operations - underlying
Revenue 53h.2 16.3 547.5
Operating profit 50.5 4.9 55.4
Finance expense (11.3) - (11.3)
Profit before tax 392 4.9 44.1
Tax charge 73 (0.9 a.0h
Profit after tax 32.0 4.0 36.0

{n addition, a number of rransactions, with a broadly quivalent operating profit impact. will now be recognised in 2018 that could have previously been
recognised in 2017. This timing difference is expected to recur at each reporting period end, albeit at a different quantum.

The adaption of {FRS |5 had the effect of increasing revenue by £0.2m and operating profit by £0.5m in Countermeasures, increasing revenue by £2.8m
and operating profit by £1.5m in Sensors, and increasing revenue by £13.3m and operating profit by £2.9m in Energetics.

The affected contracts are a combination of contracts for the provision of products. The significant risks and rewards of ownership had transferred but

there remained an element of contral, typically an undertaking to arrange elements of shipping on behalf of the customer, and hence the timing of
revenue recognitioh is later under IFRS 5.
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group enters into cantracts which have offset commitments. These requirements are valued at the time of the contract being awarded, The cost of
the offsets are reviewed throughout the contract life and provided for within the contract costings to the extent of the potential liability.

Ar 3t October 2017, the Group had contingen liapilities in respect of bank and contractual performance guarantees and cther matters arising in the
ordinary course of business. Where it is expected that a material liability will arise in respect of these matters, appropriate provision is made within the
financial statements. As the conditions of these guarantees are currendy being met, no obligating event is foreseeable and therefore no provision has
been made.

The Group is, fram time to time, party to legal proceedings and claims, and is involved in correspandence refating to potential claims, which arise in the
ordinary course of businass.

A dispute between Allay Surfaces Company, Inc. and the 1S Army, in relation to disputed pricing of a certain historic contract fulfilled by Alloy Surfaces
Compaty, Inc., proceeded to a hearing in front of the US Armed Services Board of Contract Appeals ("ASBCA™) in April 2017, ASBCA 15 expected to
take approximately two years to issue its decision in relation to this matter. The range of possible outcomes is between £nil to £12.0m. A provision of
£1.im (2016: £1.8m) exists to cover estimaced legal casts for che Group with regards to this issue.

The Serious Fraud Office (the “SFO”} 1s currently undertaking a formal investigation into concerns about bribery, corrupuon and money laundering '
involving intermediaries who previously represented one of the Group's UK-based subsidiaries, Chemring Technology Solutions Limsted ("CTSL") and

its predecessor companies. The investigation commenced following a voluntary report made by CTSL relating to two specific historic contracts, the first

of which was awarded prior to the Group’s awnership of the business concerned and the second in 204, neither of which are considered to be material

in the context of the Group. It is too early to predict the outcome of the SFO's investigation, in which the Group continues to co-operate fully.

The Group has a £2.5m deductible per claim under 1ts material damage and business interruption insurance policy, subject ta a maximum aggregate
deductible of £3.5m in any one year. .

35. RELATED PAARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this
note. Transactions with the Group's pensian schemes are disclosed in note 29.

Trading transactions
There were no trading activities between the Group and its assodiate in this period or the comparative period.

Remuneration of key management personnel

For the purposes of remuneration disclosure, key management personnel includes only the executive directors and excludes the other senior business
managers and members of the Executive Committee. Their remuneration is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in [AS 24
Reiated Party Disclosures. Further information on the remuneration of individual directors is provided in the audited part of the directors’ remuneration
report on pages 64 to 74.

The directors of the Company had no material transactions with the Company during the year, other than in connection with their service agreements.
The remuneration of the executive directors is determined by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the performance of the individuals and
market trends. The remuneration of the non-executive directors is determined by the Board, having regard to the practice of other companies and the
particular demands of the Group.

07 2016
im im
Remuneration of key management personnel 2. 2.0

Further detail car be found in the directors’ remuneration report on pages 56 ta 74,

36. EVENTS SINCE THE END OF THE YEAR
On 13 Novemnber 2017, the Group repaid £5.3m and $61.2m of outstanding loan nates aut of existing bank debt facilities and cash resources.

106



PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 CCTOBER 2017

2017 2016
Note im im &m £m
Non-current assels
Property, plant and equipment | 0.3 04
Investments in subsidiaries 2 4252 511.3
Deferred tax 1z - 8.7
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 4 3160.3 376.2
9858 894.6
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 4 12.9 2.5
Cash and cash equivalents 153 217
38.2 50.2
Total assets 1,024.0 9448
Current Hahilities
Trade and other payables 5 (245.5) (164.1)
Nan-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 5 {124.7) {165.4)
Provisions 4 (0.2) (1.6)
Deferred tax 10 {0.4) -
Preference shares 7 ©.1) .0
Retirement benefit abligations n (0.2) 6.3)
{115.8) (173.4)
Total liabilities (614 M) (337.5)
Net assets 8319 607.3
Equity
Share capital 8 1.8 28
Share premium account 305.3 305.1
Special capital reserve 12.9 12.9
Retained earnings 325 296.1
642.5 6169
Crwn shares 9 (9.6) (9.6)
Total equity 6329 607.3

Profit attributable to shareholders
In accordance with the concession granted under section 408 of the Campanies Act 2006, the profit and foss account of Chemring Group PLC has not
been presented separately in these financial statements. There is no material difference between the results disclosed and the resuits on an unmodified
historical cost basis. The Company reported a profit for the year ended 31 October 2017 of £27.4m (2016: £1.5m loss).

These financial statements of Chemring Group PLC (registered number B6662) were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

|18 January 2018.
Signed on behalf of the Board

Mesd) Re

Michael Flowers
Director

Sanov

rah Ellard
Drirector
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Financial Statements

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTQOBER 2017

2017 2016
im £m
Profit/(loss) after tax attributable to equity holders of the parent as reported 17.4 {19
{tems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Actuarial gains/(losses) on pension scheme, net of deferred tax 2.8 (1.3)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to the equity holders of the parent 30.2 2.8)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 QCTOBER 2017
Share Specal
premivm capical Retaneq
Sharc capital account reserve earnings Own shares Toeal
im im £m £m im im
At | November 2016 28 305.1 12.9 296.1 (9.6} 607.3
Profit after tax - - - 274 - 274
Other comprehensive income - - - 28 - 18
Total comprehensive ncome - - - 302 - 30.2
Ordinary shares 1ssued - a2 - - - 0.2
Share-based payments (net of settlement) - - - i.6 - 1.6
Dividends paid - - - {64} - (6.4)
At 31 October 2017 1.8 305.3 1.9 3215 (9.6) 632.9
Share Special
premusm capitaf Retaned
Share capital accaunt reserve aarmngs QOwn shares Totat
im &m £€m £m im im
At } November 2015 20 2307 12.9 2979 (9.6) 5339
Loss after tax - - - (1.5) - (1.5}
Other comprehensive losses - - - .3 - (1.3
Total comprehensive losses - - - (2.9) - 2.8)
Ordinary shares fssued 08 744 - - - 752
Share-based payments {het of settlement) - - - 1.6 - 1.0
At 31 October 2016 28 3051 12.9 296.1 (9.8) 607.3

The auditor’s remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in note 4 to the Group financial statements.

Afinal dividend of 2.0p per ordinary share has been proposed. See note 8 to the Group financial statements.

As at 31 October 2017 the Company had distributable reserves of £316.9m (2016: £293.2m). When required, the Company can receive dividends from

its subsidiaries to further increase distributable reserves.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Lant and Plang ang
buildings equipment Total

- im fm £m
Cost
At § November 2015 0.1 1.3 1.4
Additions a.l 03 o4
Disposals N 0.1y (1.2) (1.3)
Ar 3! October 2016 ot 04 0.5
Disposals - 0.1) {0.1)
Ar 3l Ocrober 3017 G.l 0.3 Q.4
Depreciation
Ar | November 2015 - 1.2 1.2
Charge - ol ot
Disposals - (1.2) {1.2)
At 3! Ocwober 2016 - L1 X 0.1
Charge - ol 0.1
Disposals - ©.1) (0.1)
At 3l October 2016 - 12} 0.1
Carrying amount
At 31 October 20i7 o.l 0.2 6.3
At 31 October 2016 0.1 Q.3 0.4

The Caompany had no capital commitments as at 31 October 2017 or 31 October 2016. Land and buildings ~epresent leasehold improvemenss.

1. INVESTMENTS

Shareswn Loans te
subsidiary subsidiary
undertakings  undertakings Toral
im £m im
Cost
At | November 2015 and 31 October 2016 548.6 6.6 555.2
Additions 113.9 - 113.9
At 3} October 2017 661.5 5.6 669.1
Impairment
At | November 2815, 31 October 2016 and 31 Cctober 2017 43.9 - 419
Carrying amount
At 3] October 1017 618.6 &8 525.2
At 3| Ccrober 2016 504.7 6.6 511.3
The additions of £113.9m in the year represent a capital contribution to CHG Overseas Limited.
3. INVESTMENTS IN GROUP UNDERTAKINGS
Details of the Group undertakings at 31 October 2017 are set out in note 13 to the Group financial statements,
The directors consider tha the carrying value of the investments does not exceed their fair value.
4. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 017 018
m £m
Within current assets
Other receivables 12.2 212
Corporation tax recoverable - 0.5
Prepayments and accrued income 0.7 0.8
2.9 22.5
Within non-current assets
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 360.3 3762
360.3 376.2

An asset of £0.4m (2016: £0.5m) is recognised within other receivables in respect of the fair value of derivative financial instruments, as set out in note
20 to the Group financial statements. The directors corsider that the carrying value of the trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABRLES

2017 2016
im £m
Within current liabifities
Corporation tax payable r2 -
Derivative financial instruments (note 20 to the Group financial statements) 0.4 2.5
Trade payables 0.k 09
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 105.5 125.9
Other payables 3.5 1.0
Orther 1ax and socizl security 0.2 0.2
Accruals and deferred income 3.2 4.1
Loan notes 51.4 29.5
165.5 164.1
Within non-current liabilities
Loan notes 1R} 1200
Armaunts owed to subsidizry undertakings 61.8 44.4
124.7 1654
An analysis of barrowings by maturity is as follows:
00y W08
m £m
Borrowings falling due:
- less than one year 54 295
— within one to two years - 538
— within two to five years &1.9 67.2
13.3 150.5
The interest incurred on the above borrowings is detailed within notes 6 and 17 to the Groyp financial statements.
6. PROVISIGNS Environmental Disposal Legal
prowvisian provision provision Total
£m im im m
At | November 2016 0.7 0.1 0.8 1.6
Released ©.7) - o.n 0.8
Paid - - 0.6) ©.6)
At 31 October 1017 - 0.1 0.1 8.2

It is not possible to estimate more accurately the expected timing of any resulting outflows of economic benefits. The environmental provision relates
to estimated liabities in respect of the sale of the Marine business In 2012. The legal provislon relates to a legacy property lease.

7. PREFERENCE SHARES 2017 1016
£m m
Cumuilative preference shares (62,500 shares of £1 each) o.1 Q.

The cumulative preference shares carry an entitlement to a dividend at the rate of 7p per share per annum, payable in equal instalments on 30 April and
3| October each year. Holders of the preference shares have the right on a winding-up to receive, in priority to any other dasses of shares, the sum of
£ per share together with any arrears of dividends.
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3. SHARE CAPITAL o7 2016
Im £m

Issued, allotted and fully paid
281,588,075 (201é: 281,425,256} ordinary shares of |p each 2.8 28

During the year, 162,819 ordinary shares (2016: 5,337) were issued for cash to employees under the Group's approved savings-related share schemes.

OCn 24 February 2016, 85,915,828 new ordinary shares were issued pursuant to the rights issue, with four new ordirary shares issued for every nine
existing ordinary shares held.

The preference shares are presented as a liability and accordingly are excluded from called-up share capital in the balance sheet.

Share-based incentive schemes
Full details of the schemes are set out in nete 27 to the Group financial statements.

9. OWN SHARES 1017 016
im Em
Az beginning and end of the year 9.6 9.6

The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares in Chemring Group PLC purchased in the market and held by the Group to satisfy awards under
the Group’s share-based incentive schemes (see note 27 to the Group financial statements). During the year, no ordinary shares (2016: nil) were
acquired and no ordinary shares (2016: nil) were distributed following the vesting of awards under the Chemring Group Performance Share Plan. The
total humber of ordinary shares held in treasury at 31 October 2017 was 2,198,814 (2016: 2,198,814), with an average cost of 43%.0p (2016 439.0p} per
share, This represents 0.8% (2016: (.8%) of the total issued and fully-paid ordinary share capital.

10. DEFERRED TAX 2007 2016
_ £m tm
At beginning of the year 6.7 B.2
Charge to income statement {5.6) (1.5)
Charge to other comprehensive income (1.5) -
Deferred tax (liability)/asset at the end of the year (0.4) 6.7
The amount provided represents:

Qther timing differences (0.4) 6.7

At the balance sheet date, the Company had unrecognised tax (osses of £21.1m (2016: £nil} potentially available for offset against future profits in certain
circumstances, the increase arising primarily as a result of the current year tax losses arising in the UK. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of this amount because of the unpredictabllity of future taxable qualifying profit streams.

1. PENSIONS
The Company has assumed its share of the assets and liabilities of the Group’s defined benefit pension scheme.

An analysis of the provision balance is shown below:

Tauwal

im

Ax | November 2015 6.6
Contributions (2.0}
Other finance costs 03
Actuarial movements 1.5
At 3] October 2016 6.3
Contributions (z.1)
Orher finance costs 0.3
Actuarial movements 4.3
At 31 October 2017 0.2

Further details are set out in hote 29 to the Group financial statements.
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Fimancral Statements

NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

12. STAFF COSTS w17 016
Numbasr Nymber
Average monthly number of total employees (including executive directors) 24 5

The costs incurred in respect of these employees (including share-based payments) were:
2007 W6
im im
Wages and salaries 4.3 4.1
Social security costs 0.5 0.7
Other pension costs 0.4 04
5.2 5.2

Disclosures in respect of directors’ emoluments can be found in the directors’ remuneration report oh pages 56 1o 74,
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Chemring Group PLC is a company incorporated in England and Wales under registration number 86662, The address of the registered office is Roke
Manor, OHd Salisbury Lane, Romsey, Hampshire, SO5] 0ZN. The nature of the Group’s operations and its principal activities are set out in note 2 and in
the directors’ report on pages 40 to 43. These financial statements are the consolidated financial statements of Chemring Group PLC and its
subsidiaries {the “Graup”).

The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, being the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates, and
rounded to the nearest £0.Im. Foreign operations are included in accordance with the foreign currencies accounting policy.

Going concern

The directors have, at the time of approving the financial staterments, 2 reasonable expectation that the Group and the Company have adequate
rESCUrces 1o continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing these financial statements. Further detail is contaired in the statement
on going concern on pages 50 to 51.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

The following International Financial Reporting Committee (“IFRIC") interpretations, amendmenzs to existing standards and new standards were
adopted in the year ended 31 October 2047 but have not materially impacted the reported results or the financial position;

*  Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28, Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception;

= IFRS Il (amended) Accounting for Acquisitions of an Interest in a jJeint Operation;

+  Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, Clorification of Accepteble Methods of Depreciotion and Amortisation;

» |AS [ Presentotion of Financial Stetements, amendments resulting from the disclosure initiative;

= 1AS 27 (amended) Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements; and

= Annual improvements to IFRSs 20{2-2014 Cycle.

Early adoption of revised standards and interpretations
In the year ended 3} October 2017, the following standard was adoprted and has affected the amounts reported in these financial statements:
» IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective for periods beginning on or after | fanuary 2018 with early adoption permitted)

New and revised standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective:

Ar the dare of authorisation of these financial starements, the following standards and interpretations that are potentiaily relevant 1o the Group and
which have not yet been applied in these financial statements were in issue but not yet effective (and in some cases hag not yet been adopted by the
Eurcpean Union):

Effectiva for periods beginning on or after | January 2017
+ Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
«  Amendments to |AS i2 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

Effective for periods beginning on or after | Janvary 2018

« Amendments to IFRS 2 Clossification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions;
» IFRS 2 financiol Instruments Recognition and Measurement;

*  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle; ang

= IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

Effective for periods beginning on or after | January 2019
» IFRS 16 Leases

+  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cy«cie

+ IFRIC %3 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Effective for periods beginning on or after | January 2021
+ IFRS |7 Insurance Contracts

The directors do not expect the adoption of these standards and interpretations will have a material impace on the financial statements of the Group in

future periods except as follows:

= [FRS 9 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement will impact the measurement and disclosure of financial instruments; and

= IFRS [6 Leases will impact the measurement, recognition, presentation ahd disclosure of leases, particularly operating leases where the term is
longer than FZ months.

The Impact of IFRS 16 Leases is currently being assessed. Under IFRS {6 Leases, lessees wifl be required o apply a single model to recognise a lease
liability and asset for all leases, including those classified as operating leases under current accounting standards, unless the underlying asset has a low
value or the lease term is F2 months orless. The adoption of IFRS 16 will have a significant impact on the financial statements as each lease will give rise
to a right of use asset which will be depreciated on a straight-line basis, and a lease liability with 2 related interest charge. The depreciation and interast
will replace the operating lease payments currently recognised as an expense. The impact will depend on the transition approach and the contracts in
effect at the time of the adoption. At 31 Geiober 2017, operating lease commitments were £5.5m and operating lease payments for 2017 were £1.8m,

Beyond this informaticn, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of these standards until 2 detailed review has been
canducted during 2018.
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Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

3. GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS adapted for use in the EU and therefore comply with Aruicle 4 of the Eu IAS
Regulation. These financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with |AS, IFRS and related IFRIC interpretations, subsequent
amendments 1o those standards and related interpretations, future standards and refated interpretations issued or adopted by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") that have been endorsed by the EU (collectively referred 1o as IFRS). These are subject to ongoing review and
endarsement by the EU or possible amendment by interpretive guidance from the IASB and the IFRIC, and are therefore still subject o change.

The financial statements are prepared under the histerical cost convention, except as described below under the heading of 'Derivative financial
instruments and hedge accounting’

The particular accounting policies adopted have been applied consistently throughout the current and previous year, except for the adoption of IFRS |5
in the year ended 31 Octaber 2017 where the modified transitional provisions have been adopted as described in note 33, and are described below.

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. A subsidiary undertaking s an entity over which the Group |
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Tha results of subsidiaries acquired are

consolidated from the date on which contral passes to the Group and the results of disposed subsidiaries are consolidated up to the date on which

contral passes from the Group.

The Company considers that it has the power to govern the financial and operating palicies of the US entities fafling within the Special Security
Agreement and these entities have tharefore been consolidated in these financial statements.

The Company and all of its subsidiaries make up their financtal statements te the same date. All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Operating profit

Operating profit is stated before the share of results of associates and before finance income and expense. The use of underlying measures, in addition
to total measures, is considered by the Board to improve comparability of business performance between periods. Underlying measures referred to are
stated before costs relating to acquisitions and disposals, business rescructuring and incident costs, profit/loss on disposal of businesses, items deemed
to be of an exceptional nature, impzirment of goodwill and acguired intangibles, impairment of assets held for sale, amortisation of acquired intangibles
and gains/losses on the movement in the fair value of derivative financial instruments, and excludes discontinued operations.

Operating cash conversion
Cash conversion of underlying operating profitis defined as cash generated from underlying operations, less purchases of intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment and proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment, as a proportion of underlying operating profit.

Revenue recognition
Revenye is measured at the fair value of the consideration which is expected to be received in exchange for the goods and services provided, net of

applicable taxes.

Sale of goods

Reveanue from the saie of goods is recognised when all of the following conditions are satisfied:
* the Group has identified a sales contract with a customer;

+ the performance obligations within this contract has beer identified;

+ the transactions price has been determined:;

«  this transaction price has been alfocazed to the performance obligations in the cantract; and
* revenue is recognised as or when each performance obligation is satisfied.

Performance obligations are satisfied when the customer gains controf of promised goods or services from the contract.

Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services, including custamer funded research and development, is recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract. Stage of completion is typically estimated by either completion of relevant milestones or proportion of contract costs
incurred for work performed to date, as appropriate.

Investment income
Dividend inceme fram investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established, provided that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and the amsunt of mcome can be measured reliably.
Interest incorme is recognised when it is probatile that the econamic benefits will flow 1o the Group and the amount of income tan be measured reliably.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3. GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONIINUED

Acquisitions and disposals

On acquisition of a subsidiary, associate or joindy controlled entity, the cost is measured as the fair vatue of the consideration. The assets, liabilites and

contingent liabilities of subsidiary undertakings that meet the IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Cambinations recognition criteria are measured at the fzir value at

the date of acquisition, except that

+ deferred tax assets or lizbilities, and Kabilities or assets relating to employee benefit arrangements, are recognised and measured in accordance with
IAS [2 income Taxes and IAS 19 (Revised) Employee Benefits respecuvely.

+ liabilities or equity instruments related ta the replacement by the Group of an acquiree’s share-based payment awards are measured in accordance
with IFRS 2 Shore-based Payments; and

» assets (or disposal groups) that are dassified as held for sale, in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operdations,
are measured in accordance with that standard.

Where cost exceeds fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is recorded as goodwill.

Whera the fair value of the net assets exceeds the cost, the difference 5 recorded directly in the income statement. The accounting policies of
subsidlary undertakings are changed where necessary to be consistent with those of the Group.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting pericd in which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisiona! amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see
below), or additional assets or liabilities recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as at the acquitition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as at that date.

The measurement period runs from the date of acquisition 1o the date the Group obrains complete infermation about facts and circumsrances that
existed 25 at the acquisition date, subject to 4 maximum peried of cne year,

tn accordance with IFRS 3 {Revised) Business Combinations, acquisition and disposal related items are recognised through the income statement.
Acquisition and disposal related items refer to credits and costs assaciated with the acquisition and disposal of businesses, together with the costs of
aborted bids and the establishment of joint ventures.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

The purchased goodwill of the Group is regarded as having an indefinite useful econamic life and. in accordance with |AS 36 Impairment of Assets, is not
amortised butis subject to annual tests for impairment. On disposal of a subsidiary, 2ssociate or jointly controlled entity, the amount attributabie to
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Acquired intangibles

The Group recognises separately from goodwill, intangible assets that are separable or arise from cantractual or other legal rights and whose fair value
can be measured reliably. These intangible assets are amortised at rates calculzted to write down their cost or valuation to their estimated residual
values by equal instalments over their estimated useful economic lives, which are:

+ technology - average of ten years
+  customer relationships - average of ten years
+ order bocks - average of two years

Development costs
Development costs that qualify as intangible assets are capitalised as incurred and, once the relevant ntangible asset is ready for use, are amortised on a
straight-line basis aver their estimated useful lives, averaging five years (2016: five years).

The carrying value of development assets is assessed for recoverability at least annually or when a trigger 1s identified.

Patents and licences
Patents and licences are measured initially at purchase cast and are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful ives, averaging seve-
years (2016: seven years).

Property, plant and equipment
Orther than historically revalued land and buildings, property, plant and equipment is held at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised
impairment loss. Barrowing costs on significant capital expenditure projects are capitalised and zllocated to the cost of the project.

Mo depreciztion is provided on freehold tand. On other assets, depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write down their cost or valuaton to their
estimated residual values by equal instalments over their estimated useful ecanomic lives, which are:

+ frechold buildings - up 1o fifty ymars
= leasshold buildings - the period of the lease
« plant and equipment - up to ten years

investments in associates

The resulis and the assers and liabilities of associates are accounted for using the eguity methad of accounting. Any excess of the cost of investment over
the Group's share of the fair value of identfiable assets and liabilities within the associate at the date of acquisition is accaunted for as goodwill thar is
included in the carrying value of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of that investment.
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Financial Sratemenrs

ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

3. GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINULD

{mpairment of non-current assets

Assets that have ndefinite ives are allocated to the Group's cash-generating units and tested for impairment at least annually. Assets that are subject to
deprecration or amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever changes in crcumstances indicate chat the carrying value may not be recoverable,
To the extent that the carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recorded for the difference as an expense in the income
statement. The recoverabie amount used for impairment testing is the higher of the value-in-use znd the asset's fair value less costs of disposal. For the
purpose of impairment testing, asses are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash lows.

Inventories

Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost and net realisable vaii.e, Cost represents materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
overheads, and is determined using the “first-in, first-out” (“FIFO") method. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price, less further costs
expected to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Provision is made for slow-maoving, obsolete and defective iterns where appropriate.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substanuial period of ume to prepare for their intended use, are added to the cost of thase assets, untit such time as the assets are ready for their
intended use. Once the assets are ready for their intended use, these capitalised borrowing costs are depreciated in line with the underlying asset.

Ail other borrowing costs are recognised in the Income statement in the periad in which they are incurred.

Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there s reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the

grants will be received.

Government grants for staff retraining costs are recognised as incorme over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs and are
deducted in reporting the related expeanse.

Government grants relating to property, piant and equipment are treated as deferred income and released to the income statement over the expected
useful economic lives of the assets concerned.

Tax
The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based an taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are raxable or deductible in other years, and it excludes items of income or expense that are never taxable or deductible, The
Group’s [iability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheer date.

Deferred tax represents amounts expected to be payable or recoverable on differences berween the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised 1o the extent that
it is probable taxable profits will be available in the future against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and Fabilities are
not racognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in 2 business combination) of other assets and
liabitities in a transaction thac affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax kabilities are recagnised for taxable tamporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in jainc
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it1s probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred rax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow al! or part of the asset ta be recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period wher the fiability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except where it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities, when they
relate to income taxed by the same tax authority, and when the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Special capital reserve
The special capital reserve was created as part of a capital reduction scheme involving the cancellation of the share premium account which was

approved by the Courtin [986, in accordance with the requirerments of the Companies Act 985,
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3. GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONITINUED

Foreign currencies

The individual finandal statements of each Group company are presented in its functional currency, being the currency of the primary econamic
envirpnment in which it operates. For the purpose of these Group financial statemerts, the results and financial position of each Group company are
expressed in pounds sterling, which is the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for these financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of each Group company, transactions in foreign currencies, bemng currencies other than the entity’s funcrional
currency, are recorded at the rates of exchange prevaling on the dates of the transactions, At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities
that are denominated in foreign currencias are retransiated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencias are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary itemns and on the retranslation of monetary items are ncluded i the iIncome statement for
the period.

In order to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into forward foreign exchange contracts which are accounted for as
derivative financial instruments (see below for details of the Group's accounting policies in respect of such derivative financial instruments).

For the purpose of presenting these financial statements, the assets and liahilities of the Group's foreign operations are transiated at exchange rates
prevading on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated ar the average exchange rates for the period.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and transiated at
the closing rate.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilitias are recognised in the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party o the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets

Frade receivables
Trade receivables da not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand depaosits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a
knawn amaunt of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial liabllities and derivative financial instruments
Financial lial ies
Financial liabilities 2nd equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into.

Bank borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, including pramiums payable
on settlement or redemption, and directissue ¢osts are accounted for on an accruals basis in the income statement using the effective interest mathod,
and are added to the carrying amount of the instrurment 1o the extent that they are nat settled in the period in which they arise.

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
The Group's activities expose it to the financiai risks of foreign currency transactions, and 't uses forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its
expasure to these transactional risks. The Group does not use derivative financlal instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised az fair value on the date the derivative contract is entered into and are revalued o fair value at each
balance sheet date. The fair values of derivative financial instruments are calculated by external valuers.

The method by which any gain or loss is recognised depends on whether the instrument is designated a hedging instrument or not. To be desigrated as a
hedging instrument, the instrument raust be documented as such at inception, and must be assessed at inception and on an ongoing basis to be highly
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

Hedge accounting principles are used for forward foreign exchange centracts where appropriate, with movements in fair value taken to equity for cash
flow hedges and to the income statement for fair value hedges, until such time as the underlying amounts of the contract mature. At maturity or disposal
of the net investment, the amounts held in equity will be recycled to the income statement. Changes in fair value of any ineffective portion of net
investment hedges and interest rate swap contracts are recognised in the income staternent immediately.

Where derivative financial instruments do noL meet the crileria "or hedge sceounting, the changes in fair value are immediately recognised in the
income statement,
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Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

1. GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES CON'INUED

Hedges of net investments in foreigh operations

Any gain ar less on the hedging instrument refating to the effective portion of the hedge 1s recognised in the scatement of comprehensive income and
aceumulated in the translatior reserve. The gain or loss relating Lo the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Embedded derivative financial instruments
Embedded derivative financial instruments that are not closely related 1o the host contract are treated as separate derwvative financial instruments, with
uhrealised gains and lossas reparted in the income statement.

Retirement benefit costs

Fayments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an administrative expense in the period to which they relate. For defined
benefit schemes. the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each
balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprenensive income in full in the period in which they occur.

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the henefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the average period until the benefits become vestad,

The discount on scheme liabilities less the expected return on scheme assets on defined benefit obligations is included within finance expense.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represants the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for |
unrecognised past service cost and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost,
plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme,

Leased assets :

Where the Group enters into a lease which entalls taking substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset, the lease is treated as a finance
lease. The asset is recorded in the balance sheet as property, plant and equipment, and is depreciated over the shorter of its estimated useful economic
life and the lease term. Future instalments under such leases, net of finance charges, are recognised as a liability. The finance element of the instalments
is charged to the income statement at a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the abligation.

All other leases are operating leases, for which rental charges are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.

Share-based compensation
The Group gperates equity-settled and cash-settled share-based compensation schemes.

For grants made under the Group's share-based compensation schemes, the fair value of an award is measured at the date of grant and reflects any ;
market-based vesting conditions. Non-market based vesting conditions are excluded fram the fair value of the award. At the date of grant, the Company

estimates the number of awards expected to vest as a result of non-market based vesting conditions, and the fair value of this estimated number of

awards 15 recognised as an expense in the income statement oh a straight-line basis over the vesting period. At each balance sheet daze, the impact of

any revisich to vesting estimates is recognised in the income statement over the vesting period. Proceeds received, net of any directly attributabie

transaction costs, are credited to share capital and share premium.

For cash-settled share-based grants, the total amount recognised is based on the fair value of the liability incurred. The fair value of the lizbifity is
remeasured at each balance sheet date, with changes in the fair value recognised in the income statement.

Pravisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation, either legal or constructive, as a result of & past event, itis probable that the Group
will be required to sectle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision fs
the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the batance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surraunding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the estimated cash flows to settle the present obligation, i1s carrying amount is the
presant value of those cash flows.

When sore or ali of the economic benefits required to settle 2 provision are expected 1o be recovered from z third party, a receivable is recognised as
an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be receved and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Environmental provisions
Where the Group is liable for decontamination wark or the restoration of sites to their original condition, an estimate is made of the costs needed to
complete these works, discounted back to present values, relying upon independent third party valuers where appropriate.

Restructuring provisions

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Group has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a valid expectartion in
those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The
measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring and not those associated with the ongoing
activities of the entity,
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1. GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Warranty provisions

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under local sale of goods legislation are recognised at the date of sale of the reievant products,
based upon the best estimate of the expenditure required 1o sette the Group's obligations.

Disposal provisions
Disposal provisions relate to esimated liabilives faced by the Group in respect of discontinued operations and other disposed enuties under the terms
of their respective sale agreements.

Contingent liabilities

The Group exercises judgement in recognising exposures to conungent fiabilities related to pending litigaton or other outstanding claims subject to
negotiated settlement, mediation, arbitration ar government regulation, as well as other contingent liabilities. [udgement may be necessary in assessing
the likelthoad that a pending claim will succeed, or a Hability will arise, and/or to quantify the possible range of the financial settiement.

Alternative Performance Measuras

In the analysis of the Group's financial performance and position, operating results and cash flows, APMs are presented to provide readers with
additional information. The principal APMs presented are underlying measures of earnings including underlying operating profit, underlying profit before
tax, underlying profit after tax, underlying EBITDA, underlying earnings per share, and underlying operarting cash flow. In addition, EBITDA, net debt,
and constant currency revenues are presented which are also considered non-tFRS measures. These measures are consistent with information regularty
reviewed by management to run the business, including planning, budgeting and reporting purposes and for its internal assessment of the operational
performance of individual businesses.

The directors beliave that the use of these APMs assist in providing additional information on the underlying trends, performance and position of the
Group. APMs are used to improve the comparability of information between reporting periods by adjusting for items that are non-recurring or
otherwise non-underlying, Management consider non-underlying items to be:

* amortisation of acquired intangibles;

* marteriat exceptional items, for example relating to acquisitions and disposals, business and inoident costs, and claim costs;

« gains or losses on the movement in the fair value of derivative financial instrurnents; and

= the tax mpacet of all of the above.

Our use of APMs is consistent and we provide comparatives alongside all current period figures.

Further detail on the APMs presented within these financial statements, induding a recaonciliation to the IFRS equivalent, is presented in note 3.

Post balance sheet events
In accordance with |AS |0 Events after the Baiance Sheet Date, the Group continues to disclose events that it considers material, non-disclosure of which
can influence the econamic decisions of users of the financial statements.

4. CHEMRING GROUP PLC ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FRS 10! Reduced Disclosure Framework
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS (0] Reduced Disclosure Framework.

The Company operates a multi-employer defined benefit scheme including emgloyees of ather Group companies. Following FRS 10t, the scheme assets
and ligbiliies have been allocazed across the Group companies using a method that -nznagement considers 1o be the most appropriate, based on
scheme membership.

The following exemptions from the requirements of IFRS have been applied in the preparation of tnese financial statements, in accordance with FRS 101
» share-based payments;

= business combinations;

» fimancial instruments;

»  fair vaiue measurements;

» presentation of comparative information in respect of certain assets;

» IFRSs issued but not yet effective;

* related party transactons;

» assumptions and sensitivities for impairment review; and

» cashflow.

Investment in Group undertakings
Investments are stated at cost less any pravision for impairment in value.

Critical accounting judgements and sources of estimation uncertalnty
There are no criucal accounting judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty for the Company.
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Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

When applying the Group's accounting policies, management must make judgements, assumptions and estimates concerning the future that affect the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and the amounts of revenue and expenses recognised during the period. Such
judgemenzs, assurnptions and estimates are based upon factors including historical experience, the observance of trends in the industries in which the
Group operates, and information available from the Group's customers and other external sources.

The key judgements and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the bakance sheet date that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment 1o the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year indude:

Critical accounting judgements

Revenue recognition

During the year the Group adopted IFRS |5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The smndard recognises revenue on the basis of the satisfaction of
performance obligations. The :dentification of these obligations requires management judgement, particularly with respect to milestone contracts that
contain multiple obligations. Revenue of £3.9m (2016: £10.3m) was recognised i the current year in respect of such milestone contracts.

Additionally, management has to consider whether performance obligations should be recognised at a single point in time, which is generally the case for
the sale of preducts by the Group. or over a peried of time, which is more commonr for certain service contracts.

In making its jJudgement about obligations that are satisfied at a point in ime, management has to consider at what point control has passed to the
customer, allowing revenue to be recognised. This is typically determined through a consideration of customer acceprance testing, contract terms and
delivery arrangements.

For obligations that are recognised over time, a separate judgement must be macde as to the Most appropriate measure of progress, This is often ona
straight-ling basis over the life of the contract, though ar alternative measure of progress may be more appropriate where the work is not evenly spread
over the [ife of the contract.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Goodwill impairment

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the vajue-in-use of the cash-generating units 1o which goodwill has been allocated.
The value-in-use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit, and to determine a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value (see note 1C). In reviewing the carrying value of goodwill of the Group's businesses, the Board
has considered the separate plans and cash flows of these businesses consistent with the requirements of IAS 36 Impairment of Assets. The plans and
cash flows of these businesses reflect current and anticipated conditions n the defence industry. The total goodwill intangible asset is set outin note 10,
which shows a carrying value of £125.4m ax 31 Ocrober 2017.

Capitalised development costs

1AS 38 intangible Assets requires that development costs, arising from the application of research findings or other technical knowledge to a plan or
design of a new substantially improved product, are capitalised, subject to certain criteria being met. Determining the future cash flows generated by
the products in development requires estimates which may differ from the actuai outcome, In particular, this can depend on the estimation applied to
future milestone events to secure long-tarm positions on production contracts, for example Programs of Record for the US DaD. The taval capitalised
development intangible asset is set out in note |1, which shaws a carrying value of £33.7m at 31 October 2017. Included in this balance are individually
material balances relating to CENTURION (£2.9m), electronic attack (£3.0m), Perception (£2,2m), Joinz Biclogical Tactical Detection System (£8.Im)
and Next Generation Chemical Detector {£B.4m).

Deferred tax assets on tax losses and US interest deductions
The category of deferred tax asset which contains significant estimation uncertainty and which requires management judgement in assessing its
recaverability relates to US interest imitations and tax losses carried forward (see aate 22).

Applicable accouncing standards permit the recaogrition of deferred tax assets only to the extent that it 1 probable that future taxable profits will be
available to utilise the tax losses carried forward. The 2ssessment of future taxable profits involves significant estimanon uncertainty, principally relating
10 an gssessment of management's projections of furure taxable income based on business plans and ongoing tax planning strategies. These projections
include assumptions about the future strategy of the Group, the economic and regulatary environment in which the Group operates. future tax
legistation, and customer behaviour, amongst other variables.

(20



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHEMRING GROUP PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

In our opinion:

« the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 October 2017 and of the
Group's profit for the year then ended;

+ the Group firancial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financiat Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the Furopean Uinion;

+ the parent company financial staterments have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
including Financial Reporting Standard |01 “Reduced Disclosure Framework ™ and

* thafinancial statements have heen prepared in accordance with the requiremants of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial
statements, Article 4 of the JAS Regulation,

We have audited the financial statements of Chemring Group pic (the ‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries {the ‘Group’) which comprise:
+ the consciidated income statement;

+ the ronsolidated and parent company statement of comprehensive income;

+ the consolidated and parent company balance sheets;

+ the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity;

+ the consolidated cash flow statement;

+ the accounting policies; and

+ the related notes | 1o 36 for the consclidated financial statements and notes | to 12 for the company financizi statements.

The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union, The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 10| "Reduced Disclosure Framework” {Lnited Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practive).

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)} and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibiliies for the audit of the financial staterments section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibllites in accordance with these requirements. We canfirm that the non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not
provided to the Group or the parent company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obrained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Summary of our audit approach

Key audit mactters The key audit marters that we identified in the current year were:
= Valuation of goodwill and other intangible assets; and
» The application of IFRS 15 to material contracts.
‘Within this report, any new key audit matters are identified with [l and any key audit matters which are the same as
the prior year identified with [l

Materiality The materiality that we used in the current year was £2.1m which was determined on the basis of profit before tax
adjusted for certain items which are explained below. This is a change in the current period which is explained fater in
this report.

Scoping We have focused our Group audit s¢ope primarily on work at 13 componems of which |0 were subject to full scope

audit procedures. These locations account for 33% of the Group’s net assets, 3% of the Group’s revenue, and 95% of
the Group's underlying profit before tax. This covarage is consistent with the prior year.

Significant changes inp our There have been no significant changes in our approach in the year.
approach

(21

L0 S_NNOIIV UNY LHUGSY IWINNY Dd dNOND DNIEWANHD



LICTS NOODIY ONY 19063 TWIiNY ITd dOND DNIAWIHD

Finanaial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHEMRING GROUP PLC continued

Conclusians relating to principal rsks, going concern and viability statement

‘We have reviewed the directors’ statement regarding the appropriateness of the going cancern We confirm that we have nothing material
basis of accounting contained within the accounting poticies in the financial statements and the to add or draw attention to in respect of
directors’ statenent on the longer-term viability of the Group contained within the Corporate these matters.

Governance report on page 51,
We agreed with the directors’ adoption of

We are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention toin the gaing concern basis of accounting and

refation to: we did not identify any such material

+ the disclosures on pages 28 to 33 that describe the principal risks and axplain how they are uncertainties. However, because not all
being managed or mitigated; future events or conditions can be

+ the directors’ confirmation on page 43 that they have carried out a robust assessment of predicted, this statement is not a
the principal risks facng the Group, including those that would threaten its business model, guarantee as to the Group's ability co
future performance, solvency or liquidity; continue as a going cohcern.

+ the directors’ statement in the accounting policies about whether they considered it
appropriate 1o adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing them and ther .
identification of any material uncertainties to the Group and the parent company's ability to
continue to do so over a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the
firancial statements;

« the directors’ explanation an page 5/ as to how they have assessed the prospects of the
Group, over what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be
appropriate, and their statament as to whether they have a reasonable expecration that the
Group will be able to continue in operatian and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the
perisd of thew assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention 10 any
necessary qualifications or assumptions: or

» whether the directors’ statements relating wo going concern and the prospects of the
company required in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) are materially inconsistent with
our knowledge obeained ir the audic.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current
period and include the mast significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included
those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement
team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In the financial statements for the year ended 31 October 2016 we included provisioning for taxation and the appropriateness and completeness of
provisions as key audit matters. (n light of the Group’s financial performance in the year and the financial position as at 31 October 2017 we nc longer
consider these 10 be key audit matters. Our key audit matter in relation to revenue recognition has been revised in light of the adoption of the new
ravenue standard.

Valuation of goodwiil and other intangible assets

Key audit matter The Group recognises gaodwill as at 31 October 2017 of £125.4m (2016: £132.9m) and capitalised development
description costs at 31 October 2017 of £33.7m (2016: £40.9m). Both categories of assets are recognised initially at cost but are
assessed against [AS 16 Impairment of Assets each year. The assessment of recoverable amount is a judgemental
process as z result of the estimation uncertainty in forecasting future cash fiows. For example assumptions are
required when determining whether certain contracts will be won. Our key audit matcer is limited to CGUs and
assets where the estimation is critical to supporting the recoverable amount and therefore this area of focus related
to the following CGUs and assets:
»  The CGUs are Chemring Sensors & Electronic Systems Inc,, Chemring Technology Solutions Limited, and
Chemring Defence UK Limited. An impairment charge of £10.6m has been recognised against the goodwill and
ather assets of Chemring Defence UK Limited.
«  The capitalised development costs relate to CENTURION {£2.9m), electronic attack (£3.0m), joint Biologital
Tactical Detection System (£8.Fm) and Next Generation Chemical Detector (£8.4m).

The directors further explain the sources of this estimation uncertainty on page 120 and provide sensitvity
disclosures in respect of goodwill and development costs in notes 10 and [} respectively. Thisis also identified asa
significant issue considered by the Audit Committee on page 54.
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How the scope of our audit
responded to the key audit
matter

The procedures performed focus on the specific uncertaintes highlighted above. We have:

* Obtained an understanding of the processes and tested the design and implementation of the key cantrols
relevant to the impairment considerations and reviews performed;

* Inspected management forecasts and evidenced critical assumptions as well as considering reasonable changes in
those assumptions in order to assess the impact that has on the outcome of the impairment madels;

* Held discussions with management 50 as to understand future plans for CGUSs and whether those have bearing
on the valyation used in the impairment model;

= Asgessed third party evidence including the marker capitalisation of the Group and known fixed and firm orders
50 as to assess internal information against that which is available elsewhere;

* Analysed and evidenced sales, and development milestones met in respect of the Programs of Record, for the
capitalised development programmes a5 set out in the key audit matter above;

* Reviewed and recalculated the impairment waorkings for Chemring Defence UK Limited and inspected the
support for the eventual far value attributed to the CGU: and

«  Evaluated the disclosurs against the requirements set aut in 1AS 36.

Key observations

In our opinion the valuation of goodwill and other assets is reasonable.

The application of IFRS 15 to material contracts &

Key audit matter
description

Given the transition o IFRS 15 Revenue firom contracts with customers we identified a key audic matter that revenue

couid be materially misstated because IFRS 15 is incorrecdy applied. We believe that there are a small number of key

Judgements relevant to Chemring that must be made upon initial applicavon:

= The conclusion as ta whether to recognise revenue aver time or at a pointin time;

+  The denrification of performance obligations in contracts where multiple deliverables exist; and

+  The timing of the recognition of the transfer of control on contracts with material revenue to be recognised ata
point in time (i.e. cut-off).

Given the complexity and judgement involved in those items listed above, we also determined that there is potential
for fraud through possible manipulaticn of the revenue on material contracts.

The directors further explain the critical accounting judgements made on page 120, This is also identified as a
significant issue considered by the Audit Committes on page 54.

How the scope of our audit
responded to the key audit
matter

The procedures performed address the key audit matter identified above. We have:

+  Obtained an understanding of the processes and tested the design and implementation of key tontrols relevant
to the ongoing and transitional requirements of [FRS 15;

»  Evaluated each of the contracis identified as complex against the five step model of IFRS 15, In order to arrive at
the appropriate revenue and cost recognition for each contract

»  Concluded on the most appropriate method of measuring progress on contracts for which the conclusion has
been reached to recognise revenue over time. We ther compared this to management's assessment of the
contract;

+ Inspected individual contracts oh which revenue has been recognised in the year, obtaining supporting invoices,
proof of delivery and evidence of transfer of control to the customer where applicable;

« Re-calculated the impact to opening reserves, which has occurred as a consequence of the new revenue
standard; and

+ Considered the disclosures against the transitional and angoing requirements of IFRS 15,

Key observations

In our opinion the requirements of [FRS 15 have been applied correctly te material contracts.
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Fingncial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHEMRING GRQUP PLC continued

Qur application of materiality
We define marteriality as the magnitude of misstaternent in the financial stacements that makaes it probable that the econemic decisions of a reasonahly
knowledgeable persan would be changed or influenced. We use mareriality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of

our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group materialicy £2.1m (2016: £1.[m}
Basis for determining We determined rmateriality based on the statutory profit before tax of £4 Om adjusted for the following certain
materiality non-ynderying or one-off items:

+  Acquisition and disposal costs {charge of £2.3m);

= Business restructuring and incident costs (charge of £14.3m);

= Claim related costs (charge of £0.4m);

+ Impairment of Chemring Defence UK Limited (charge of £3.8m);

+ Intangible amortisaton arising from business combirations {charge of £15.0m); and

+ Gain on the movernent in the fair value of derivative financial instruments (credit of £1.7m).

fFurther details on these ftems is included in note 3 to the financial statements.

Our mareriality of £2.1m equates to 4.8% of this profit measure.

Rationale for the Underlying profit before tax is a key performance measure for the group and 1t is therefore an appropriate basis on
benchmark applied which to determine materiality.

Our basis for determining materiality has changed since the financial statements for the year ended 31 October 2016 1
in which we used a three year averaged profit measure rather than wholly based on the results of reporting period. :
This change has been made to reflect the increased stability in the business.

We agreea with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £0.Im (2016: £0.1m), as well as
differences below that threshold that, in pur view, warranted reporting oh qualitative grounds. We alsc report to the Audit Committee on disclosure
matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.

An gverview of the scope of our audit

Our group audit was scoped by abtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including group-wide controls, and assessing the risks of
marterial misstatemnent at the group level. Based on that assessment, we focused our group audit scope primarily an the audit work at 13 components
(2016: 14 components). 10 (2016: [0) of these were subject to full scope audit procedures, whilst the remaining 3 (2016: 4) were subject to either an
audit of specified account balances or specified audit procedures. The extent of our testing was based on our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement and of the materiality of the Group’s operations at those locations. These |3 components represent the principal business units and
account for 93% (2016: 97%) of the Group’s net assets, 93% (2016; 96%) of the Group’s revenue and 95% (2016: 95%) of the Group's underlying profit
before tax. They were also selected to provide an appropriate basis for undertaking audit work to address the key audit matters identified above. Our
audit work at the 13 locations was executed at Jevels of materiality applicable 1o each individual entity which were lower than group materiality and
ranged from £0.2m to £1.4m (2016: £0.3m to £1.4m).

Az the parent entity leve! we also tested the consolidation process and carried out analytical procedures to confirm our condusion thit there were no
significant risks of material misstatement of the aggregated financial information of the remaining components not subject to audit or audit of specified

account balances.

The group audit team continued to follow a programme of planned visits that has been designed so that the Senior Statutory Auditor or a senior
member of the group audit team visics each of the locations where the group audit scope was forused at least once every three years and the most
significant of them at least once a year. We wisited all full audit scope locations with the exception of Chemring Australia Py, L1d. Of the 3 locanons
subject to specified audit procedures the Senior Statutory Auditor visited Chemring Sensors & Electronic Systems. Every year, regardless of whether we
have visited or not, we include the companent audit team in our team briefing, direct the scope of their work for the purposes of our group audit,
discuss thesr local risk assessment, and review documentation of the findings from their waork.
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Other information

The directors are responsibie for the other information. The other information comprises the We have nothing to report in respect of
information included in the annual repors induding those titled Overview, Strategic Report, these matters.

Governance, and Other information, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informatior and. except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any forrm of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial stazements, our responsibility is 1o read the other
information and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is materiaily inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materialfy misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial stacements or a material
misstatement of the other information, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

In this cantext, matters that we are specificalty required to report to you as uncorrected material

misstatements of the other infarmation include where we conciude that:

» Fair, balanced and understandable — the statement given by the directors that they consider the
annual report and financial statements taken as a whoie is far, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders 1o assess the group’s performance,
business madel and strategy, is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit;
or

*  Audit committee reporting — the section describing the waork of the audit committee does not
appropriately address matters communicated by us to the audit committee: or

* Diractors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code -- the parts of
the directors’ statement required under the Listing Rules relating to the company’s compliance
with the UK Corporate Governance Code containing provisions specified for review by the
auditor sh accordance with Listing Rule 59.8.10R(2) do not properly disclose 3 deparwire from a
relevant provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibifities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internat control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing as applicable, matters ralated te going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the group or the parent company oF 10 cease operations, or have no realistic alternarive but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial starements as a whole are free from materizl misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 2 high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect 2 material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is locared on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.irc.
org.uk /auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report,

125

L1383 S_NNODIY ANY LYY TvDNAY I dNOED INISWIHD



LIOLS_NNODIW ONY 15043y TWNNNY 3714 dNOWD SNINWIHY

Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHEMRING GROUP PLC continued

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work
has been undertaken 5o that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fulless extent permitied by law, we da not acrept or assume responsibility 1o anyone other than the company and the campany's
mermhers as a body. for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

In cur opinicn, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ theinformation given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements; and

+ the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and of the parent company and their environment obrained in the course of the audit, we
have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records We have nothing to report
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you i, in our opinion: in respect of these matters.
+ we have not received all the information and explanations we reguire for our audit; or
*+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, ar returns adequate for our audit have

not been received from branches not viswed by us; or
= the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

Directors’ remuneration We have nothing to report
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are zlso required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of directors’ in respect of these matters.
remuneration have not been made or the part of the directors’ remuneration report 1o be audited is not in

agreement with the accounting records and returns,

Other matters

Auditor tenure

Touche Ross & Co. were appointed by the Board on 20 August 1990 upon their merger with the previous auditor, Spicer & Oppenheirn, to audit the
financial stacements for the year ending 30 September 1990 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagement including
previous renewals and reappointments of the firm is therefore longer than 27 years, covering up to 3t October 2017,

Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Audit Committee
Qur audit opinion is consistent with the additional report te the Audit Committee we are required to provide in accordance with I1SAs (UK).

Ao lINge A

Anna Marks FCA (Senior staturory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitee LLP

Statutory Auditor

Reading, United Kingdom

18 January 2018
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For more information about Chemring Group PLC, please visit www.chemring.co.uk where the latest shareholder information can be

accessed, including:
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= Financial calendar

» Shareholder services and notices
+ Corporate governance

*  Results and presentations

«  Apalysts’ forecasts

* Regulatory news

Chemring Group PLC's Annual Report and Accounts 2017 and the Notice for the Annual General Meeting can also be viewed and downloaded at

www.chemring.co.uk/investors

© Chemring Group PLC 1017

The infortmation in this document is the property of Chemring Group PLC and may not be copied or communicated to a third party or used for any
purpose, ather than that for which itis supplied, without the express written consent of Chemring Group PLC, This infermation is given in good faith
based upan the latest information available to Chemring Group PLC; no warranty or representation is given concerning such informacion, which must
not be taken as establishing any contractual or other commitment binding upon Chemring Group PLC or any of its subsidiary or associated companies.
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